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LIU Libin, Chairman
B R

I am pleased to present the 2016 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

In 2016. Our Group’s revenue increased by approximately 12.0%
to approximately RMB5,576.7 million (2015: RMB4,977.8
million) as a result of the increase in our sales volume. Our
sales volume rose by approximately 12.3% to 324,645 tonnes
(2015: 289,137 tonnes). Net profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders increased by approximately 12.3% to approximately
RMB298.5 million (2015: RMB265.8 million). The Directors did
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: HK$0.09).

3% Annual Report 2016

Chairman’s Statement
ENF 8

ANFRR BB R AR A A (TR
A ] [ LR A R AR [ AR ) T N4
AR JE A o

TR ONAR S A SR 2 g [N B B i 1
R#12.0%% # N R %5,576,700,0007C ( — &
— T4 N R H4,977,800,0007T ) © A< £ [ 2 84
EE ETA12.3%F324,645M ( = F — H4F:
289, 137MF) o A% 7 ) A B M Al A A - A £912.3%
ZE# R H298,500,0007T ( & — LA AR
265,800,0007C) » # FH A HRIRAHE ZF—N
FETZH= T —HEFEEZRKBRE (ZF—H
4F10.09#70) ©
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In 2016, Xingfa Aluminium achieved a steady growth in terms
of revenue, production and profit while product quality and
efficiency are being maintained. We have developed our export
market and it will become another growth engine to the Group
in the future. Meanwhile, Xingfa Aluminium was accredited as
National-recognized Enterprise Technology Center, marking its

technology innovation into another new milestone.

In the years onward, Xingfa is undergoing the whole system
upgrade on production processes to further enhance the overall
production capacity and efficiency in the long run. More efforts
and resources will be invested to develop the industrial aluminium
profiles and R&D meanwhile expanding the sales channels of
construction aluminium profiles into those cities lied on One-Belt-
One-Road region.

Due to uncertain economic environment in China in line with
our prudent approach, strengthening balance sheet management,
optimizing product mix and enhancing operating efficiency are
still our main focuses in 2017. With our commitment and efforts,
I believe our Group will maintain its growth in 2017 and deliver
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of Xingfa, I would like to take this opportunity to thank
every member of the Board, management and staff for contributing
the success of the Group. Last but not least, I would like to
express my appreciation to the customers and business partners
and shareholders for their continuing support.

LIU Libin, Chairman

Foshan China, 31 March 2017
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£
R IRBATE S RBEWFITESR ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ§$ HiFESE
2SR e ZHBPLE BERELA
Chairman & Executive Director Honorable Chairman & Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Mr. Liu Libin EX%SI““‘I’T D“'Se“‘"' Executive Director Mr. Liao Yugqing
r. Luo Su

Mr. Luo Riming

BUAT 5 e B A BATH BATHH
HigkE EAWEE TEELEE
Executive Director & Executive Director Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer Mr. Law Yung Koon Mr. Wang Zhihua
Mr. Dai Feng
Review of operations e TN

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profiles HLEFIRZE R P Z ELEMMREN 2 — T
manufacturers in the PRC and principally engaged in the &% %k S8 8 A E @4 ) L2EM B2 SR T Hf o
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are applied as  H Hil » 448 [8 75 v B f K 1) 5% o 28 75 6 780 1L 1
construction and industrial materials. Currently, we are one of the P .2 — o #8 & = 14 » A4 [ & 5 Jo 3 AF 25 g
largest providers of electricity conductive aluminium profile for  J&¥VE & 2 B » it o B S g A0 57 JR 17 KRR E
metro vehicles in the PRC. Leveraging on our advanced research X i H #i#4k o

and development capability and commitment to quality, our Group

has established extensive and stable sales networks in the PRC and

overseas for the past 30 years.



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 $8 2 iR AR A

Annual Report 2016 4 #f

Management Discussion and Analysis

o LI B g3 M

Revenue

Revenue and sales volume recorded approximately RMB5,576.7
million and 324,645 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2016
(“Year”) respectively (2015: RMB4,977.8 million and 289,137
tonnes). The increase in revenue during the Year was mainly due

to the increase in sales volume.

Our sales volume increased by approximately 12% year-on-year
to 324,645 tonnes in the Year. In particular, industrial aluminium
profiles increased by approximately 24% year-on-year to 63,640
tonnes in the Year (2015: 51,163 tonnes). Our sales volume for
construction aluminium profiles also increased by approximately
10% year-on-year to 261,005 tonnes (2015: 237,974 tonnes).

The following table sets forth our revenue and its percentage of
revenue by product category for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015:

A]

e

HE-Z—ARNFET+-A=Z1+—HLEFE (£
) B EBE A E SR BREHNRE
5,576,700,0007C % 324,645Mf ( % — F4F : AR
#4,977,800,0007C [ 289,137Wf ) o it 7 4F FE A %%
SEREBEIN TS LR B T e

AL BN AS AR FE 2 S R R A 12% %.324,645
M o ELBE T T 2ESR MM 2 B B A AR AR B AR Y
R 4124% % 63,640 ( — & —TL4F : 51,163MF) o 2%
S 2 A SR TR bE B R HE AR HE TN A9 10% % 261,005
MR (. — HAE 1 237,974MF) o

TEREINAEEMEE T NFER F A
T oA = Bk AR R R R O 2 iR
HAnt:

2016 2015
—F-A SR
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR KT 7t % ANRWT T %
Manufacture and sale of aluminium A R AR b
profiles
— Construction aluminium profiles — 4R T A 4,522,819 81.1 4,138,807 83.2
— Industrial aluminium profiles — L340 B 968,861 17.4 757,894 15.2
5,491,680 98.5 4,896,701 98.4
Others (Note) HAt (Htat) 85,016 1.5 81,128 1.6
Total M5t 5,576,696 100.0 4,977,829 100.0
Note: Our Group’s other revenue represented revenue generated from the B - A B T HC At i a4 B0 R g R AR B A e E

manufacture and sale of aluminium bars, moulds and spare parts
and the provision of processing services.

AR - DA RHR A R 5 T A 2 Mg
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Our Group’s revenue by geographical segments during the years AEBMREE L —RNEK -EF—HIFE+ A

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: =+ —H I EE s E# 0 2 k SnE
2016 2015
ZE AN CE A
RMB million % RMB million %
AR ¥ BT % AR BH # T %
The PRC Gl 5,459.3 97.9 4,885.1 98.1
North America B[S 0.2 0.0 13 0.0
Europe el 0.2 0.0 1.9 0.0
Hong Kong i 88.0 1.6 60.0 1.2
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC and  Hi RMIE (7[5 &

Hong Kong) kRSN 26.8 0.5 27.2 0.6
Others HAth 2.2 0.0 2.3 0.1
Total st 5,576.7 100.0 4,977.8 100.0

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, domestic sales BE X -ANELF—-HAF+_H=1+—H
in the PRC in aggregate accounted for approximately 97.9% and Ik 4F B > v [ [ A i 5 48 B0 A A 4 910 25 49 1l 49
98.1% of our Group’s revenue respectively. 97.9% /% 98.1% °

Our Group also exports directly to the United States, Europe A< %2 [ & 5 78 B3t O % 95 80~ R & HoAth 58
and other Asian countries. For the years ended 31 December YEIZK - % — XK — N4FE K ZF—HAFE T H
2016 and 2015, non-domestic sales in aggregate accounted — — 1 — H 1IE4F > Ik B A 85 5 B AR AL A< 45 B L 25
for approximately 2.1% and 1.9% of our Group’s revenue 43l #12.1% %% 1.9% °

respectively.
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A A5 I W R R
B AR S F R 2 8 T4 6

The following table sets forth the sales volume and average

selling prices of our principal products during the years ended 31

December 2016 and 2015:

f&:

2016 2015 Change in %
—'x ST A 528 %
Construction aluminium profiles & %& g4 7% 1
Revenue (RMB’000) BEENRKFTIL) 4,522,819 4,138,807 9%
Quantity (tonnes) B () 261,005 237,974 10%
Average selling price per tonne g W7 14 B
(RMB) (AR #c) 17,328 17,392 0%
Industrial aluminium profiles TR A
Revenue (RMB’000) EEF(NRKTIL) 968,861 757,894 28%
Quantity (tonnes) B () 63,640 51,163 24%
Average selling price per tonne g M2
(RMB) (AR ¥or) 15,224 14,813 3%
Total st
Revenue (RMB’000) SRR (NRBT L) 5,491,680 4,896,701 12%
Quantity (fonnes) B () 324,645 289,137 12%
Average selling price per tonne i ME - 35 5
(RMB) (ARWITL) 16,916 16,936 0%
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Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased by approximately 15% year-on-year
to RMB4,751.6 million in the Year (2015: RMB4,148.1 million)
which was aligned with the increase in revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin
Gross profit margin decreased to 14.8% during the Year (2015:

16.7%) and sales to production ratio slightly decreased to 99%
(2015: 100%).

o P W B g i

B 8 A

7 A5 [ AR AE T 2 B AR AR R A15% %
N R ¥4,751,600,0000C ( —%F — H 4 NR¥
4,148,100,0007T ) - iff Bl LRI B AR R — 2o

EY D EVIE
IAAEREN > BRI R FEE14.8% (—F—HF:

16.7% ) > T &1 8 A4 2 LU R T 9% (&
— T4 100% ) ©

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our | # %A% 4 @ 45 B bf 2 B F %K
aluminium profiles:
2016 2015
—F A ik
Industrial aluminium profiles T 2E R R A 11.7% 15.2%
Construction aluminium profiles A 5 g 7 A 14.9% 16.7%

The slight decrease of gross profit margin by 1.9 percentage point
was mainly due to the Group lowered the processing fee in order
to maintain the existing customers and attract new customers in
the Year.

TAARAEBE > BRI AR 1.9 43 B ) 3 2
ARS8 7y MR BUA 5 B 5 & 5 AR
TP ECe
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o LI B g3 M

Other income

Our Group recorded other income of approximately RMB40.1
million for the Year (2015: RMB41.4 million).

Government grants represent various forms of incentives and
subsidies received from the local government authorities in the
PRC. During the Year, the Group recognized government grants
of approximately RMB30.8 million (2015: RMB24 million)
as other income. Besides, due to the appreciation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi during the Year, our Group recorded
the net foreign exchange gains of approximately RMB3.7 million
(2015: losses of RMB6.8 million), in relation to the receivables

denominated in foreign currencies.

In contrary, due to the decrease in pledge deposit balance during
the Year and lower interest rate applicable to pledged deposit,
interest income decreased to approximately RMB7.5 million
(2015: RMB10.2 million). In addition, the Group recorded loss
on disposal of fixed assets of approximately RMB16.6 million
(2015:RMB1.6 million) for the Year, mainly because the Group
conducted an operational efficiency review on its machineries at
the end of the Year, and disposed some of the moulds with net
book value of RMB15.8 million (2015:Nil), which were no longer
suitable for the current production.

Distribution costs

Distribution costs increased by approximately 16% to
approximately RMB123.8 million for the Year (2015: RMB107.2
million), which was aligned with the increase in revenue.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately RMB279.7 million
for the Year, which was approximately 5% lower than that in 2015
(2015: RMB294.0 million). During the Year, by strengthening
our balance sheet management, we made less provision for bad
debt of trade and other receivables during the Year of RMB6.8
million (2015:RMB17.3 million). Our administrative expenses
as a percentage of revenue also decreased to approximately 5.0%
(2015: 5.9%).

A

3 At e A

AR E O OR A BS E I AR AR
40,100,0007C ( —F — H 4 AR %41,400,000
JC) °

TR JFF A U 8 s BB v [ D T AR 2 % R A T T
Al Bl 4 o i AS A B 5 S A [ 51 IBORT I 40 N R
#30,800,0007C ( — & — H 4 AR #24,000,000
IG ) FERR 2y HA A o BUA > p B AR AR R AN LN
W THE > BICHE LA A (B 2 B U R TN AR
45 3] B AT A R i 45 35 A A9 A R HK3,700,0000T (-
T —FAE R A R %6,800,00078) o

JR2Z o H AR A B I A7 R A A e D B
LG A 3 2 R RN B> FILE R A & 49 R
#7,500,0007C ( —F — T4 AR #$10,200,000
I ) o MEAN > AR S [ A AR AF B BR AT R B E
B £ N R ¥16,600,0007C ( - F— 14 NRHF
1,600,0007C) > J3 32 B i A 4 9] A 4R B R
HARSEAT AT R HE % R BRI 4 A
R ¥15,800,0000C ( =& — HAF : #) 2 % T A H
B A R R L BT

5 85 A

AR BE Oy B ORI A 16% B AN R W
123,800,0007C ( — % — L 4F : A R 107,200,000
J6) > MBI SR — B

7 BB 32

AAEFE AT B A B N R 279,700,000 0T
B oE - HEWMDES5% (ZF—HE: AR
294,000,00070 ) ° FAAAEFE - 375 8 s e B s R
EHL FRAMAE N AE H 2 38 S B H A R i R O R
B &8 B N R %6,800,00000 (—F —H
A0 N 17,300,00000) o 4T BB A AR 2
AR FRFEELS.0% ( —FE—HFE59%) -
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Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately 21% to approximately
RMB118.0 million for the Year (2015: RMB149.1 million) mainly
due to the decrease in average loans borrowings and average
borrowing interest rate during the Year.

Profit for the Year and the net profit margin

During the Year, our Group recorded profit for the year of
approximately RMB298.5 million (2015: RMB265.8 million) and
the net profit margin kept stable at 5.4% (2015:5.3%).
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s current
and quick ratios as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

o B B o3 B

St 5 A

AR BB R A A K21%E K AR K
118,000,0007C ( — & — F4F : A R 149,100,000
Je) o T E B R AR B 2 T R T s
R B BT S e

A JIE 385 M) B 4l 1) 3R

SRR AR ] BR S AT R 3 A A9 N IR 5298,500,000
JC ( & —HA4E - AR %0265,800,0007C) » 1 %l F)
ARG E F5.4% (. F—F4F :153%) o

10 %R 8 43 A

i B S o B b R

FREGIALEPD T - ANER TR
H=+— B Z 8 Fos @) LR

2016 2015

—F AN —E—HAF
Current Ratio (Note) W LL R (M) 1.01 0.85
Quick Ratio (Note) HMOH) 2R (M) 0.70 0.63

Note:

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current
assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end
of the year.

During the year, sales orders and sales volume increased due
to the successful implementation of marketing strategies and
expansion of sales channels, leading to increase in both trade
receivables and inventories. As such, both current ratio and quick
ratio increased in the year.

Wi

U B bl A LA A 2 Ui B AR PR DA B B AR
o

TR B AR DLAR 2 U B R R R 2 SR R DA
) B AR

A AR AT BE > BB 5T B T B 2 DR A T B it G OR M
T A T 5 5 YR 1T A B B RE R R AT
L B o R > A AR B 2 D LG R % LR Y
A e

13
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o LI i B g3 M

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

R R

NREIIALEPR T NEFEL TR
H=1T—HZ AR

2016 2015
—E A — A
Gearing ratio (Note) BB (HiE) 33.8% 40.8%

Note:

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases divided by total assets and multiplied by
100%.

Benefited from the improvement in operating cash flows, our
Group borrowed less from banks in the Year as compared to that in
2015. As such, gearing ratio dropped in the Year.

Inventory Turnover Days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s

inventory turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015:

Wit

A LU R DL R R B DL R i A B AT R LB AR
T3 LA 100% 5T -

5 3% BB B 2 % $%@M$$ﬁzﬂ
oy Sl iy A 2
HT R

17 £ 8 W

TERINAEHBEE T ANFER T AF
ToH =1 B 2 A 8 A

2016 2015

—NAE —E AR

Inventory Turnover Days (Note) 175 R () 63 58
Note: Wit

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Inventories balance as at the respective years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 represents aluminium profiles segment including
our raw materials, work in progress and the unsold finished goods
and property under development for sale.

The inventory turnover days increased due to: 1) the increased
balance of property under development for sale; 2) the Group
stocked up more raw materials in advance with as it anticipated

* that the aluminium ingot price may increase in early 2017.

178 JE SO DL SR B4 T 2 A S A 2 A R A R T
R DAAFE N 2 8 8 A BE R T 5 DA36S H TR

R E _F—ARNF; _F—HF+_H=1—
Hi%@ﬁZﬁ\m%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’@ﬁﬁﬁ
R ARG ROR A RRR U RTEE Y
%o

F B RN > Ty i - 1) B R R S A R
BN 5 2) PR AR 4R 0 FE ) S g (AR AT REY —F — b
AF A0 K8 T T £ A 22 TR R BT 2



B 2% En 2 AR A BR 2 A) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3% Annual Report 2016

Management Discussion and Analysis

Debtors’ Turnover days

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s debtors
turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:

o B B o3 B

OB WS i 5k i e 30

TEHIAREBHBE "B ANFER -E—AF
A b E R AR BE 2 O K T A

2016 2015
L
Debtors’ Turnover Days (Note) JE M R R T AR (MY ) 88 95

Note:

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of trade and bills receivables for the periods divided by
turnover during the years multiplied by 365 days.

By strengthening management over collection of account
receivables , debtors’ turnover days in the Year was improved.

Creditors’ Turnover days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s creditors

turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:

JRE A IR R R M BT LA B ) B 1 ¢ 2 22 o R s I I I i 22
P& R 2 P B DLAFE A 2 8 SR T R DA365 H RHAT -

AR 348 R oA SR A A [ P R R B AR AR T 2 B U
MR AT R A5 B B -

VBB oF W ok i e 39

TERINAEHEE - F - ANFER T LF
T A=t HAR AR AT IR G AR I

2016 2015
L
Creditors’ Turnover Days (Note) JEAT W SR FE AR (B ) 89 105

Note:

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Benefiting from the increasing profit and effective cash
management in these two years, less payables recorded at the
end of 31 December 2015 and 2016, which led to the creditors’
turnover days decreased to normal level in 2016.

JRE A5 B T B 30 A A B0 ) e B e 2 A8 B IR AT K TE K E
o SR 45 i 2 73 BUSR DAUAT TR 2 B 65 A 4 8 1 0R DU
365HFHE -

Z 3 T W AR 2 % R B 2R B & A R Bl A
BHRAERE X -AF R _EF—-XRNFE+_H
= H o AR AR Bk AR AT R R D AT HR SR
FUIR A A = — N AR D & IEF KT o

15



16

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 $8 24 iR AR A

Annual Report 2016 F#f

Management Discussion and Analysis

o LI B g3 M

Cash flow

The table below summarises our Group’s cash flow during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

A

BEnE

THEMEAEMRE T - AER E—TE
FoA=St—HILEEZH SRR

2016 2015

—F-AN SRR

RMB’million RMB million

A R Wi B A R WA E T

Net cash generated from S B T AT Bl R

operating activities 488.7 464.2
Net cash used in investing activities 18 T B 7 B A R A (115.2) (161.8)
Net cash used in financing activities il V% ) i P R 4 9 AR (352.4) (196.2)

We generally finance our operations through a combination
of shareholders’ equity, internally generated cash flows, bank
borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents. Our Directors
believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from
operations and, if necessary, additional equity financing or bank
borrowings.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayment. During the Year, our Group’s
capital expenditures were approximately RMB188.0 million
(2015: RMB224.1 million). The significant capital expenditures
during the Year were mainly for the acquisition of equipment for

Xingfa’s four plants.
Loans and borrowings
As at 31 December 2016, our Group’s loans and borrowings

amounted to approximately RMB1,803.4 million (31 December
2015: RMB2,000.5 million).

AL ] — OB M A S IR A R AR 2 B
T RITEEAAER R MR EEEY R
HEEBRME & - ARBEF MG RN A
S 2 P AR B R (A ) A
e A il B BR AT

BEA B X

BB ST A E 2 R R M B LAY
T4 o A AR AR 2 EAB LA NR K
188,000,0007C ( — & — F4F : A R 224,100,000
JG) o A RE 2 REEA T FEAEKE R
FEVUR R 2 WA o

ok & i &
B FE=ARNETZA=Z T —H A EHZ K

FAS B4y N R #1,803,400,0000T ( & — H.4F
+=H=+—0: AR%2,000,500,0007C) °
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Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2016, the banking facilities of our Group
amounted to approximately RMB4,006.3 million (31 December
2015: RMB3,564.5 million), of which approximately RMB2,311.0
million were utilised (31 December 2015: RMB2,222.0 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, our Group did not provide any guarantee
in respect of liabilities of any company not being a member of our
Group. Our Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016.

Foreign Currency Risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction
imposed by the PRC government. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings
from banks. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates profile of the
Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed in note 24(c) to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a

certain amount.

o B B o3 B

AT BB K I

Mo —ANE+H=+—H  AEHEZ BT
{5 BHE 4 A N R %4,006,300,0000C ( —F—F
FE+ T H=+—H: AR¥3,564,500,00070) > H
A N R 52,311,000,0000C ( —F—H4E+ A
=+—H: ANR%2,222,000,00050) &8

Sl 416 SR AT 15 L E 28 B2 A £
LI
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o 7 A2 M) R B B 2 A 5L o A S TR K
Bl 5 2 A AME UL AR AR AR 6 BB R B A
24(c) i & °

fi £ L Bg:

AL W 2 A5 8RB E AR A 38 Sy B H At R iR
T B HEC 6 E R EER TR RZER
PRI o 58 B B FCA SRR IR T 5 > 3 B 2R £
FEH — E B8 2 BT A &5 AT (R A5 SRR -
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Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 26 of the consolidated financial statements, the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.
PROSPECTS

In line with our prudent approach and in view of the fragile China
economic environment, strengthening balance sheet management,
optimizing product mix and enhancing operating efficiency are
still our main focuses in 2017. Meanwhile, aiming to develop
Xingfa as an all-rounded and one-stop aluminium service
provider, we are actively looking for business opportunities for
both semi-upstream and downstream merger and acquisitions in
China.

A

Wi fo B B 55 i R BT RE26 B it A 2 WA Hh 2 B 5 4f
PRAN > A 42 B 37 M08 £ (3 AE (o] LAt 98 O > SRl A 4R
P B 2 ) R 32 A B Ja B o
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin, aged 44, became the Chairman of the Company
since 8 September 2011. Mr. Liu obtained a Degree of Executive
Master of Business Administration from South China University
of Technology and has held various senior positions in financial,
marketing and governmental fields. Mr. Liu had been the vice
section chief (@l #}{£) of finance division of Department of
Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province,
finance manager and deputy general manager of Sinomart
Development Co. Limited (#8 & B F¥ A R A 7)) , director and
general manager of the finance department of Goldsland Holdings
Company Limited (& B # A BR A A]) , deputy chairman of
Guangdong Advertisement Co., Ltd. (& H % B 24 A BR A ) and
chairman of Guangdong Guangxin PACO Technology Co., Ltd.
(B AD = B AT R A #) , a subsidiary of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd. (& &8 # & B £ B4 B A R A
7)) . Mr. Liu is the chairman of the board of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd. (/& B %% §5 264 R A &) (“Guangdong
Xingfa”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Luo Su, aged 78, is the honorable chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and founder of the Group. He has over
20 years of experience in the aluminium profile industry. He is
responsible for the overall management, operations, financial
aspects, corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Luo
is qualified as an T.ZEZEJEHT (industrial economist) based on
his previous experience with Nanhai Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory. Mr. Luo was certified as an outstanding entrepreneur of
private enterprise by the People’s Government of Foshan City
in 2003, an outstanding entrepreneur by the China Non Ferrous
Metals Industry Association in 2005 and received an outstanding
Guangdong patent award for the patent titled $ 7 4 i £5 £ [F] 7K
T T $5% 26 (aluminium alloy flat ingot horizontal heat-top
casting device) in 2005. Mr. Luo is a deputy to the 12th Session of
the People’s Congress of Foshan City for a term of five years from
2003 to 2008. Mr. Luo Su is the father-in-law of Mr. Liao Yuqing,
an executive Director.

HELARHAEMAR
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Mr. Luo Riming, aged 60, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
procurement and utilisation of equipment and infrastructure for
the business of the Group. Mr. Luo is also responsible for the
procurement of raw materials and the assessment and selection
of suitable suppliers. He has over 30 years of experience in
the aluminium profile industry. Mr. Luo established the Group
in 1980s. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo has worked at
Nanhai Hardware Factory (township enterprise), Nanhai Power
Supply Bureau, Nanzhuang Electric Appliance and Furniture
Factory, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory and
Xingfa Group. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in economic

management by the Guangdong Radio & TV University in 1998.

Mr. Liao Yuqing, aged 48, is an executive Director. He is also the
supervisor of the sales and marketing department in charge of the
sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible for
the planning, development, implementation and evaluation of the
marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group in
January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between
1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of China
Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the son-in-law of
Mr. Luo Su, the chairman of the Group and an executive Director.

Mr. Dai Feng, aged 45, is the executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since 8 September 2011.
Mr. Dai obtained the Degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from Jinan University, and held the
qualifications of an accountant and auditor, China Certified Tax
Agent, International Certified Internal Auditor and Master of
International Public Accountant of Australia ({8 G55/ &
#HAT) (“MIPA™). Mr. Dai has extensive experience in accounting
and auditing fields. He was the head of the supervising and
auditing department and the finance department of J& 1 2 3k Jk 24
LA R/ A (unofficial English name being “Guangzhou
Yang Cheng Zhao Ye Enterprise Group Ltd.”) , seconded finance
controller of Guangzhou Lingnan International Enterprise Group
Co., Led. (J N 38 B0 R A 26 4L MG BR A A ) | assistant to the
head of finance department of Guangdong Guangxin Holdings
Group Ltd. (J& B J& B 4 % 4E [ A R A 7)) and manager of
finance department of Guangdong Guangxin Investment Holdings
Co., Led. (& HJE B EHEBAR/AF) . Mr. Dai is currently the
supervisor of FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. ( i tLi il ¥8 B} 55 4= [ A% 17y
A PR/ W) , a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.

~ Dai is also as a director and chief financial officer of Guangdong

Xingfa.

A]

HEHWIJEA > 605K > A AT 3 AT LA
B SR W S 2 W e Bl it bR I e
I B TR S IR L B A O 2 O A R
P AT 304 §i UM AT SE AR BR o B e A
N AL A SR B o i AR 2 B > S R S
To M (BREHARSE) ~ ML S - M At S AR
Rk~ JR AR AL i TR B D B % 4 I AR o AR SR
T — JUIU /N AR A5 i R84 7 45 R B K 37 1L 2
LA

BRI - 485 BUATHE R HAT S K HfE
Ji V0 B o B TS AR G B T 85 4 R ) -
HAA TR H - B - $UAT Mot A 4R B 2 i 35 4
JERE WS o BRI — UL =4 — A AR SE I -
IAZRSE B B — LN E— UL —
FMREA B — UL F B UL RO
B Ji SESRAT SV AT o B SEAE T A 4 1 32 7 et
TTH BB Ll -

W 45K E - E—— LA NB R EA
2N TR AT B8 g5 S AR B o e A i B R R
BAS TP 45 PHRE £ E2 2 (EMBA) - I 5 4 & 5t il
P73 L N e s 2 I i s ol N =i
Fill B YRR ) i N S @ Bl (TMIPA J) &% - 85T
A A B ST B A% I TR A AR o 1 NG A AT R
JH 3k IR 3 A 36 4R AT BR AN W) 2 B B B s A I
PRS0 24~ B S B PR EE I A R A A 2
AR BATS A B TR RO R A IR A F 2
R SR T = Dy 2~ B R R A3 I A PR A B
5 50 40 L R ok L) Pk M R B AR E A A PR A (—
R GEINRE SR 58 5 fir Ll 2 A 7)) B 5 - ek
TN AT 7 Sl R B % 2 o < e P S A G o



B 2% En 2 AR A BR A &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3% Annual Report 2016

Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Law Yung Koon, aged 59, is an executive director. He is
responsible for the sales and marketing of our products in overseas
market. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general
manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Company Limited,
which was the sole distributor of the Group in Hong Kong and

Macau and one of the suppliers of aluminium ingots.

Mr. Wang Zhihua, aged 46, is an executive Director. Prior to
joining the Group in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang
worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in statistics from the Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang was certified as a
securities agent for the period from September 2001 to September
2004 by the Securities Association of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Shengguang, aged 53, is a non-executive Director of
the Company since 8 September 2011. Mr. Chen held a master’s
degree in Sun Yat-Sen University and is a non-practicing certified
public accountant in the PRC. He has extensive experience in
accounting and finance fields. Mr. Chen was the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Corporation
(ERBANE B3\ 7)), the head of finance department,
the head of clearing centre and the deputy chief accountant of
Guangdong Foreign Trade Group Co., Limited ( 5% 5 & i # 4 &
S A M2 F) and a director of FSPG Hi-Tech CO., Ltd. (i1l
YRR EE E M A BR/AF]) , a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen is currently deputy general manager of
Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Limited ( & 5 % &% B 4 i
LEARAT) .
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He obtained the
lawyer qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. He has been a
practicing lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner
of Goldsun Law Firm ([ {5 ¥ & 3 il 3585 B ) from 1998 to
2011. Mr. Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department
of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and obtained
=R & (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department of
Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Political Education Department of South China Normal
University (5 [fi#i K £%) in 1986. He has been granted the
CRERT A 5 58 IR 5 A EF B A8 W &) (Certificate of Engaging
in Securities Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and
China Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the {fHfifi
HEBMPHCEEMR CEEEHEEHEE) (Certificate of
Engaging in Delimitation of Property Rights of Collective Science
and Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic of
China and the State-owned Asset supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the { LT/ A
WL S BE 45 26§ ) (Certificate of Completion of Training
on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management
of Fudan University jointly in 2001. Currently, Mr. Chen has been
a partner of Guangdong Junhou Law Firm ( & 5 H J= {3 fiff 25 5
B .

Mr. Junius K. Y. Ho, aged 54, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He is a Senior Partner
of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where he is the
head of the Litigation and Commercial Department. He is also the
Principal Representative of the Guangzhou Office. Having studied
at Anglia Ruskin University in the United Kingdom (formerly
known as Chelmer Institute of Higher Education), Junius
obtained his Bachelor of Law Degree in 1984. He then joined the
University of Hong Kong for the Post-graduate Certificate in Laws
study. Junius was further awarded with the honorary degree of
Doctor of Laws by Anglia Ruskin University in 2011.
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Junius was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He
was subsequently admitted in Singapore and England and Wales
in 1995 and 1997 respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer.

Junius has over 20 years of legal experience and is committed in
serving the community and contributing to the business economic
co-operation between Hong Kong and the Mainland. Being
the Past President and Council Member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong, he actively participates in its current affairs. Apart
from serving his own legal profession, he also serves various

government and advisory boards as follows:—

1. Member of the Legislative Council (2016/2020);

2. Elected Member of the Tuen Mun District Council
(2016/2019);

3. Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong

Kong (2015/2018);

4. Arbitrator of Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission and
South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration

Commission (Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration);

5. Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Tsuen;

6. Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011/2019);

7. Founder of Butterflyers Association Limited, a charitable
organization;

8. Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group; and

9. Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene

Articles Tribunal.
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Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He is an
associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained
his master’s degree in professional accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of
experience in the accounting, banking and finance sectors and
currently is working as the General Manager of Viking Logistics
Limited, a private company which is an airfreight operator and
transportation company. Mr. Lam was also the president of Dragon
Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong
in 2005. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited and Synertone

Communication Corporation.
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Mr. Liang Shibin, aged 76, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 14 December 2013. He completed the
programme of Nonferrous Metal and Heat Treatment in the
Department of Special Metallurgy from "' 7 8% /A 2 B (unofficial
English translation being Central South Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy) (now known as " F K£ (Central South University)).
From 1965 to 1982, Mr. Liang had worked in the special
workshop of HALHE A 4 il LK (unofficial English translation
being Northeast Light Alloy Processing Factory) first as technician
and later as engineer and specialized in atomic reactor technical
matters. From 1982 to 1992, Mr. Liang had worked in EREH
6,42 J& Jin T (unofficial English translation being Guangdong
Nonferrous Metal Processing Factory) first as workshop manager,
and later as deputy factory general manager and then factory
general manager. From 1988 to 1992, he also served as the
president of J# H & §5 B # 15 & (unofficial English translation
being Guangdong Aluminium Profile Association). From 1992 to
2003, he first served as the general manager of L 7% B #5348 7
(unofficial English translation being Hangzhou Hongchang
Aluminium Company) and later as the deputy general manager
and chief engineer of % J} 1 3 4 Al (unofficial English
translation being Ningbo Aluminium Company). From 2003 to
2011, he served as a senior consultant of i 4t & [ %5 58 2E I 1o
A B2 F] (Fujian Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (a company listed
on Small and Medium-sized Enterprise Board of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange with stock code: 002578). Mr. Liang has been acting as
an independent director of &% & [ 4% 85 2 M FRA A (Fujian
Minfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) since April 2008.
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ERLAEKBEHEANE

Alternative Director to LIU Libin

Mr. Wong Siu Ki, aged 41, is the Alternative Director to Mr. Liu
Libin. He has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
capital market fields. Currently, Mr. Wong is the Chief Investment
Officer of the Group since April 2015. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wong worked in an international accounting firm from 1997
to 2003. Subsequently, between 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wong was
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer cuam Company Secretary
to Eagle Brand Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Singapore. From August 2007
to April 2010, he was the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. From April 2010 to December 2012 Mr.
Wong was appointed a non-executive Director of the Company.
Since December 2012 Mr. Wong was appointed as alternative
director to LIU Libin, who is the Chairman and Executive Director
of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong is an Independent Non-
Executive Director to Major Holdings Limited and AMCO United
Holding Limited, both are main board listed companies in Hong

Kong.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with First
class honors from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Senior Management

Mr. Lin Yan, aged 48, is Vice President of the Company and was
appointed on 26 August 2011. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Company. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium,
Mr. Lin worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals
& Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation ([ # 2 . 4 fi%
EEHEH 04 AR, with more than 20 years of experience in
international trade. He was awarded a certificate of Economist by
Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Jinan University, the Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) at South
China University of Technology. Mr. Lin was also appointed as
Vice General Manager of Guangdong Xingfa.
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Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is responsible for production management of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group in October 1993,
Mr. Liu worked at Nanhai Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd.
from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu was granted a bachelor’s degree in
engineering by the Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He
was certified as assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City
Science Technology Committee and certified as engineer in 2001
by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau. He was awarded
as senior engineer by Guangdong Human Resources and Social
Security Department on 4 May 2015, and was granted a senior
executive master in business administration degree by Sun Yat-sen
University on 29 December 2015.

Mr. Du Jinhong, aged 61, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is head of the internal audit department. Prior to
joining the Group in 1999, Mr. Du was the director (designate)
of the finance department and chief financial officer of Xingfa
Group from 1999 to 2005. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Du worked at
Nanhai Hengxing Architectural Ceramics Factory (1992 to 1993)
and Nanzhuang Town Economy Development Head Office (1993
to 1999). He was certified as assistant accountant by the Nanhai
City Science Technology Committee in 1993. Mr. Du holds a
diploma in economics management granted by the Guangdong
Administrative University in 1997.

Mr. Guan Dubiao, aged 46, is the deputy general manager and
head of finance department of Guangdong Xingfa. Mr. Guan,
senior CPA is currently the council member of Foshan City CPA
Institute. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guan, after university
graduation, started his accounting career in Foshan Nanzhuang
Economic Development Company in 1991. Subsequently, Mr.
Guan served as several important financial positions within the
Group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development
Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in 1999 as deputy head
of finance department and Chief Accountant and subsequently
promoted as head of finance department. He was further promoted
as deputy general manager since September 2011.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Ka Wai, Kelvin is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Tam is a solicitor of Leung & Lau, a law firm
practising in Hong Kong laws. He has experience in corporate
finance and compliances matters for the listed companies in Hong
Kong. Mr. Tam was admitted as solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong in 2013.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collected referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 12 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2016.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 108
of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$0.09).

3

BLEE e AR A ([AAF ) EH ([
F1) ' LR (A AR 2 m) K 2 R
(SRR [ A%LE ) BE_F—XNEFE+_H=1—
H k4R B 2 585 ARG B 3k o

FEREH
AR 2 BT BB R AR S A A

IS A2 TS R O A5 B R I sk 2 B
FF12 °

MBE_F-NETH=+—HILEER A
£ ] 2 2 98 2 BT 4R K A ) o
E3 9 &l

AEEBE L —-NFT_H=T—H1FEZ
W ER B0 EHEE SR %K -

AR BB B

HHRARRREEE T -ANETA=1+—H
IFAERE 2 R E (B — FHAE 1 0.0905 ) ©



B 2% En 2R A BR 2 &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 30 June 2017, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
26 June 2017 to Friday, 30 June 2017 (both days inclusive).
During such period, no transfer of the shares in the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance in the
annual general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23
June 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out on page 216.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 19 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 10 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s property under development
for sale amounted to approximately RMB254,278,000. Such
property, namely Project Xingfa Plaza, is 100% owned by the
Group and is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and the
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The development of the
property is in the final stage of construction and is scheduled to
be completed in August 2017. The land use rights of the property
have been granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19 May
2050 for commercial service, office, culture and entertainment
uses. The property comprises a parcel of land with a site area
of approximately 16,961.36 sq.m.. Upon completion, the
development will have a planned gross floor area of approximately
123,716.39 sq.m.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 23 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB445,000 (2015: RMB132,000)
for charitable or any other purposes during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the Year
or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.

Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) on 29 February 2008. The Scheme became effective
on 31 March 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants under the Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; any suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants of the Group or any Invested Entity; any persons or
entities that provide research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; any holders of
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and any other groups or classes of participants whom the
Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group must not exceed 41,800,000 Shares,
being 10% of Shares in issue on the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) has been obtained, and which must not

* in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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No share option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 41,800,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of listing of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange and as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares from time to time.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be
such price as the board of Directors (“Board”) may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the option but the
subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving the grant of
an option, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”); (ii) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing immediately after the business day on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme (“Commencement Date”) and expiring on such date
of the expiry of the option as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and which shall not exceed ten years from
the Commencement Date but subject to the provisions for early

termination thereof as set out in the Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years

commencing on 31 March 2008.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in note 23 in notes to the consolidated financial

statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies,
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB621,087,000 (2015:
RMB605,869,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 20.3% (2015: 22.2%) of the
Group’s revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
8.5% (2015: 6.7%) of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 54.5% (2015:
55.6%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 30.9%
(2015: 20.6%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s
business, financial key performance indicators and performance
and indication of future development of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 can be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form part of

this report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The
effects of such risks may vary over time. The following table
sets forth material risks classified by the Group and the relevant
alleviating measures for each material risk for the management of

such risks.
Business Risk

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from
customers in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse
change in the political, economic, legal or social conditions in
the PRC and the Group is unable to divert sales to other markets
outside of the PRC, the turnover, profitability and prospects may
be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will put efforts to expand
overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas sales. The
Group will also continue to review competitive edges of the Group
in the industry and market trend.

Secondly, the Group’s production activities of aluminium profiles
rely on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply of
aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with
any of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility
in purchasing aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various

times.
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In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct
investigation and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure
stable supply source of raw materials.

Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period
by the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks
and have an impact on financial performance and operating cash
flows of the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivable due from major customers on a regular basis and
control over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage
and control strictly internally and put additional efforts to collect
trade receivables overdue.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

1. Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success.
The Group is committed to providing our employees with
a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment. The
Group rewards and recognises employees by competitive
remuneration package and implements a key performance
index scheme with appropriate incentives, and promote
career development and progression by providing
opportunities for career advancement.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible
for determining its training needs for employee in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers
shall be submitted to the senior management of the
Group for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of
employees are vital to continuous business growth and
success of the Group. The Group strives to ensure that
all employees can fulfill the relevant job requirements
in terms of education, training, technical and work
experience.
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2 Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure
that they share our commitment to quality and ethics.
We carefully select our suppliers and require them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track
record, experience, financial strength, reputation, ability
to produce high-quality products and quality control
effectiveness.

3 Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We
require our distributors and customers to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations and our sales and marketing
policies, including but not limited to selling price,
promotional activities and use of our ERP system. We also
monitor the financial condition and repayment history of
our distributors and customers, and sales performance of
them.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection, the Company strives
for efficient and effective use of energy and resources in operation
and management level of the Company. Energy conservation is a
priority under environmental protection and energy-saving devices
are used to reduce power consumption for lights. To enhance
environmental awareness and encourage daily participation among
the staff, there are policies in relation to energy conservation so as
to minimize negative environmental impacts.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the Group
shall comply with different laws and regulations, including i) laws
regarding employee recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor
Law of the PRC”, the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the
“Rulings of Implementing the Labor Contract Law of the PRC”;
and ii) the PRC national and local laws and regulations with
respect of environmental protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group was in strict compliance with these said laws and

regulations.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and as at
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yuqing

Mr. DAI Feng (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Director:

Mr. CHEN Shengguang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin
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Alternative Directors to Mr. Liu Libin
Mr. WONG Siu Ki (Chief Investment Officer)

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
each of Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. LIAO Yuqing and
Mr. DAI Feng will retire from the office of Director by rotation
and each of them, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting.

Mr. LAW Yung Koon has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 May 2009 and his term of appointment has been renewed for a
further three years commencing on 1 May 2012 and thereafter for
a further three years commencing from 1 May 2015.

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM Ying
Hung Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of two years
commencing from 1 March 2016.

Mr. LIANG Shibin has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
14 December 2012 and thereafter for a further three years
commencing from 14 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 27 of the annual report.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2016, our Group employed a total of
approximately 6,091 full time employees in the PRC which
included management staff, technicians, salespersons and workers.
In 2016, our Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were approximately RMB503.5 million, represented
9.0% of the revenue of our Group. Our Group’s emolument
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart
from the provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong
employees) or state-managed retirement pension scheme (for the
PRC employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees according
to the assessment of individual performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in the paragraph headed “Equity-linked Agreement” in this
report.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the paragraph headed “Connected transactions”
in this report, (i) no Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2016;
and (ii) no other contract of significance was entered into by, and/
or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with
the controlling shareholder during the Year; and there is no other
contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position
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Company/Name of Numberand +-H=+—H

associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities IFi) 8 8 77 i I

A2 w4 R HREH 50 w7 WO R B Aalkk

Company LUO Su Beneficial owner 57,109,200 13.66%
AT i3 73 Hia A A ordinary Shares
57,109,200/5
5

Company LUO Riming Beneficial owner 51,813,700 12.40%
PN/ 2 H e =& % DN ordinary Shares
51,813,700/
5 i

Company LIAO Yuqing Beneficial owner 48,200,100 11.53%
b /| B R HaAa A ordinary Shares

48,200,100 &
3 fi
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2016
() S
Company/Name of Number and +Z-H=1—H
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities [Fi] 2 5 27 o I
A W) Tk 4 LA g w o B H R [ifid:A
Company LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,050,000 4.56%
A # e Ha A A ordinary Shares
19,050,000/
Interest of spouse 1,719,000 0.41%
Fic 18 1 4 ordinary Shares
1,719,000/
3 Ik
Company WONG Siu Ki Beneficial owner 50,000 0.01%
NN K HamEAa A ordinary Shares
50,000/

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such

b _ rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
competing business against the Company or any of its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS
PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons, other than a
Director or the executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position
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Percentage
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R =N

Number and +ZHA=+—H

Name of entities Capacity class of Securities 7] %60 % 77 i =

TS AW 50 w2 B R R ISR 41

Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 125,360,000 29.99%
7 vk B R i A PR A T Ham AN ordinary Shares
125,360,000/

Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Interest of controlled 125,360,000 29.99%
HWF O EARA A corporation ordinary Shares
S 5 U5 P HE 4 125,360,000/8

State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest of controlled 125,360,000 29.99%

Administration Commission of the corporation
People’s Government of Guangdong 2 T RE 45

Province
R A N BB A G E R
(EElE =Ry

ordinary Shares
125,360,000/
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Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31
December 2016, no other person had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.

The following entities are connected parties of the A.
Company and had continuing connected transactions with

the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016:

Name of the entity
A

B b 30 Bt T3 5 7 AR 28 ) e H M gk T 2 i
73~ R B e M MR S b 2 M | — B T B R
G R -RNFEF A = — B A A
LR AR T 2 B B AR R R A7 o AR A BT
1713 ZE T Sk A A % ) AR 05 i 2 M B 0 91 S 3361k
11 7 2 5wl Ao

3R 3 22 5
DUT A A B A A A 2 B+ SR
SN A S AR AR R AR

EEET BB S

Connection with the Company

B 2y W 2 B 4R

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall,
Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

B SR L% A 1 A PRA A
(B BEH N )

Guangzhou Jinxing Construction
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Jingxing”)

JBE M Bt B SRR A BRA W
(T8 S5 L ])

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the following  B.
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt

continuing connected transactions and are subject to

announcement requirements.

Owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and as
to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing. Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and
Mr. LIAO Yuqing is an executive Director.

G E AR AR ST AR OB SRR OB R B O R HEAT46% ~ 33% K21 % HE
dit o FERRSCAE B H WIS R R B AES A BRATES -

A shareholder holding 20% equity interests in Jiangxi Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd (“VL VY & 3t Bl g 4 pl B 45
FRZy ™) (“Jiangxi Jingxing”), a company which the Group holds the
remaining 80% equity interests and accounted for as an associate of the
Group.
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continuing connected transactions:

ii.

Sale of aluminium profiles by
Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa
Curtain Wall

Joi R B % i) L A A A R A

Granting of a right to use the patents
and other related technologies and
services by Guangzhou Jingxing to
Jiangxi Jingxing

JE ] 5% L 1) Y 7Y 5 BLAE o o ) 2R
B JFC A AR R 452 fil B 5 ) HEE )
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, Guangdong
Xingfa sold to Xingfa Curtain Wall certain construction
materials specified by Xingfa Curtain Wall. The
construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall
were further processed into window and curtain wall and
sold to its customers.

WEE —FE—ANFET A= —HIRFEE R R
[e] SEL % 50 il L AR B BRI A 0 2 A T A o BLER R A
W 2 b P T 2 P R R AR 1 LR R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Guangdong Xingfa
sold construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for
approximately RMB160,483,000.
WEZZ-ANET A=+ HIRFEE S BREEHE
T BB 2 M A N R 160,483,0007C ©

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Guangzhou
Jingxing agreed to grant to Jiangxi Jingxing a right to
use of certain patents and other related technologies and
services.

IBE R —NET A= — B IIRERE R BN 5
(] 738 1) Y1 VG S5 LA ) {6 1) 1 SR R JHL Al A Bl il B e
B I HER

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Jiangxi Jianxing
has paid RMB2,377,000 licence and service fee to
Guangzhou Jingxing.

WEZZ-ANFEH A= HIFEE I REC [
Jo M S5 BB S R AT MR 5 N R 2,377,000 0T
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2. Set out below is the annual caps for the year ended 2. N SCHA b S R g T R A R 2
31 December 2016 of each of the continuing GWEZE—ANETZH = —
connected transactions set out above: R4 RE 2 AR RE R

For the year ended

31 December 2016

BE F—N
+ZH = H IR
i. Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to RMB220,000,000
Xingfa Curtain Wall

i. Joi R L 5% 1) BBL % R R L A N R #$220,000,0007C
ii. Granting of a right to use the patents and other related technologies RMB3,200,000

and services by Guangzhou Jingxing to Jiangxi Jingxing

N E#3,200,0000C

ii. Jo P 5 B i VG S5 LA Y SR R EL At A I i B A s ) R A

3. Views of the independent non-executive Directors:

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company also confirmed that it has followed
the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the transactions
during the year.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his letter to the Board containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

a. nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

b. for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the

Group;

c. nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;
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d. with respect to the aggregate amount
of each of the continuing connected
transactions, nothing has come to the
attention of the auditor that causes the
auditor to believe the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the

annual cap as set by the Company.

C. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements (except the transactions with
Jiangxi Jingxing) fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, save as set out in
the Company’s corporate governance report in this annual report,
the Company had complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules for year ended 31 December 2016.
MODEL CODE

The Company adopted a set of codes for securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force such that the Directors should be
indemnified by Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses they may incur or sustain in the

execution of their duty.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22 September
2016 (the “Joint Announcement”) jointly issued by the Company,
Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited, Mr. Luo Su, Mr. Luo
Riming, Mr. Liao Yuqing, Mr. Law Yung Koon and Ms. Lam
Yuk Ying (together, the “Joint Offerors”), the Joint Offerors put
forward a pre-conditional proposal for the privatisation of the
Company by way of a scheme of arrangement under section 86
of the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961), as consolidated
and revised, of the Cayman Islands. The pre-condition to make
the proposal was satisfied on 21 March 2017. As at the date of
this report, the proposal and the scheme of arrangement were
still subject to a number of conditions and had not yet become
effective. Further details of the proposal and the scheme of

arrangement are set out in the Joint Announcement.

Save as disclosed above, there were not important events affecting
the Company that have occurred since the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re—
appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin

Chairman

Foshan China, 31 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company (“Directors”), save as mentioned in this
Corporate Governance Report, the Company had complied with
all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a set of codes of securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code™) as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the board of Directors
(“Board”) consisted of the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yuqing

Mr. DAI Feng

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHEN Shengguang
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin

Alternate Director to Mr. Liu Libin:

Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Chief Investment Officer)

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing the plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”)
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(i)

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there

were three full board meetings held, at which:

- the Directors approved the continuing
connected transaction involving the new

master supply agreement;

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 and reviewed the results
announcement, annual report and the
circular to the shareholders of the Company
in relation to the general mandate proposal
and re-election of the Directors retiring by

rotation;

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and reviewed the results

announcement.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Board also discussed and approved the
following matters by way of circulation of written

resolutions:

- the Directors approved the issue of profit
alert announcement in respect of the
results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015; and

- the Directors approved the issue of profit
alert announcement in respect of the results
of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2016.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes for

the Board meetings.
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Attendance record

The following is the attendance record of the board
meetings held by the Board and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2016:

3% Annual Report 2016

Corporate Governance Report
AR 5 B R

(i) R R ER
DR AHEREGREE T — N4
+o A=+ —HILEE T %
LS g8 V8§ N A

Attendance at meeting

LS
Board General
Meetings Meeting
EHEG R JB 3ROK €1
Executive Directors HIT#EF
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) BISLAR e e (F ) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman) — #ERRSEE (B LIE) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LUO Riming A H WS AR
(Chief Executive Officer) (TTBCA ) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LIAO Yuging BLE B 3/3 1/1
Mr. DAI Feng &k
(Chief Financial Officer) (BT 5 3 B ) 3/3 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhihua FAEIESA 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAW Yung Koon e S AR 3/3 1/1
Non-executive Director FE B 178 F
Mr. CHEN Shengguang Bl B O e 2k 3/3 0/1
Independent non-executive Wy P ATEFE
Directors
Mr. CHEN Mo o 2R SR 3/3 1/1
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fl B 28 e 4 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy R SE A 3/3 0/1
Mr. LIANG Shibin Pt e A 3/3 1/1

According to the code provision A.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Board has held three full board meetings.
Instead, the Board has discussed the company
matters through exchange of emails and informal
meeting among the Directors and obtaining board
consent through circulating written resolutions.
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(iv)

(v)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate and sufficient industry
or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, has over 22 years in the accounting,
banking and finance sectors and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received their annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent.

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director, is the
son-in-law of Mr. LUO Su, an executive Director
and the Honorary Chairman. Save as aforesaid,
there is no other family relationship between any of
the Directors or chief executive officer. All of them

are free to exercise their independent judgment.

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)  Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and
on the latest business development of the Company.
The Directors confirmed that they have complied
with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in areas related to their
roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance, regulatory updates and
topics related to aluminium industry, and provided

a record of training to the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LIU Libin is the chairman of the
Board. The chairman of the Board is chiefly responsible
for managing the Board. Mr. LUO Riming is the chief
executive officer of the Company who takes charge of the
supervision of the execution of the policies determined by
the Board. The chairman also chairs the Board meetings
and briefs the Board members on the issues discussed at

the Board meetings.

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code requires the Chairman of the Board to hold
meetings at least annually with the non-executive Director
(including independent non-executive Director) without
the executive Directors present. As Mr. LIU Libin, the
Chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director, the
Company has deviated from this code provision as it is
not applicable. Currently, the Chairman may communicate
with the non-executive Directors on a one-to-one or group
basis periodically to understand their concerns, to discuss
pertinent issues and to ensure that there is access to
adequate and complete information.
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D. INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE D. ByIEPITESF
DIRECTORS
Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM BRER S 2 ~ o) 32 S A ORI IB SE A 45 B
Ying Hung, Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of ZEEBEFENE —F—RNFE=A—HH
two years commencing from 1 March 2016. o By W4 o
Mr. LIANG Shibin has been appointed for a fixed term of DR S A 2 [ 8 AT AR & — 4R
three years commencing from 14 December 2015. THTIHHBG A=A
The independent non-executive Directors have attended the WAL AT ERC LR E TG
Board meetings and provided independent judgment on the JIT B T 2 2 T AR 4 ST R B o
issues discussed.
E. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS E. #HHGM
The Company established a remuneration committee Zl—‘“ﬂﬁ@?ﬂé%%?ﬁ?ﬂ” BT I 2
with written terms of reference in compliance with the By Al DA TE A R R o B &
Corporate Governance Code. The remuneration committee BE WM B A (FM) - BB e - AR
comprises Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, BEPE AR B R O A L B ST e AR AL
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy, Mr. LUO Su and Mr. LIU B B BT S b T % i
Libin. The primary duties of the remuneration committee LA~ T AL B HAth A 2 = B v 5 3 T
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration Z & 2 e
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management.
It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package MIEARANFABR  GHAER LR ERZ
of each Director and senior management shall be B G H 2 % & N2 T T
determined by reference to the duties, responsibilities, A B T A T A o
experience and qualifications of each candidate.
The following is the attendance record of the committee T AHMERGREE _—F—REHZ
meetings held by the remuneration committee during the AZ+T—HIMFERTZEFGHRZ D
year ended 31 December 2016: k&
Attendance
at meeting
LTS
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu T s 5k 172
Mr. CHEN Mo BB B R 212
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy AR S 2/2
Mr. LUO Su FREMR T 2/2
Mr. LIU Libin IRV e 2/2
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The nomination committee
comprises Mr. LUO Su (Chairman), Mr. LIU Libin, Mr.
HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy. The primary duties of the nomination committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the nominees
for appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no nomination
committee meeting was held.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third shall retire from the office and offer themselves
for re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 31 March
2016, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 3 June 2016 and approved to
recommend the re-election of such Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to comply with a
new code provision of the Corporate Governance Code
which was effective from 1 September 2013. The Company
believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
cultural and educational background, race, gender and
other qualities. In informing its perspective on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The composition, experience and balance of skills on
the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains a core of members with longstanding knowledge
of the Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from
time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. The process for the nomination
of Directors is led by the Nomination Committee, which
has been made on a merit basis. The Board will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the nomination committee was satisfied
with the diversity of the existing Board composition and
did not, for the time being, set up any measurable objective
regarding board diversity.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor, provided annual audit services
and other service to the Company. A breakdown of the

remuneration of the Group’s external auditor is as follows:
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ST I A 2 ) H A AT R R IR S B A
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For the year ended
31 December 2016

BE_E N
+=A=tH
1E4EJE
(RMB’000)
(ANR¥ET L)
Audit service ¥ BUIR %
Annual audit services AF B R R 1,140
Other non-audit services (mainly for reviewing  HAth IF #F 5T IR B
the interim financial information of the Group (322 75 25 B A 42 13 v HA BA 755
and conducting procedures in respect of OB B AT A B A AR
continuing connected transactions) Loy ZFEF) 683

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the provisions
and recommended practices of the Code of Corporate
Governance. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. At present, members
of the audit committee comprise Mr. LAM Ying Hung
Andy (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
being the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company and Mr. CHEN Shengguang, a non-executive
Director.

H %BEZB®

A2y F EARGE A S IR ST I 2 RSO R
RS AL 2 B 3 DA T E L
MERLE - ML Z B G 2 E WG Hw B L
B SR AR I 2 T R OB T A B R
Bio HAl FEEZBGH =44 A BT
AT F ARSI A (F) ~ BRBSEAE
B A 7 58 Se A A R IR AT 3 S B 't e 2
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MEE X —ARNFE+_H=1+—HIF
BT AR WK &L

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the audit
committee has held two meetings, at which:

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015,
who is of the opinion that such statement complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made;

the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015; and

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the

Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated

FHEZEGNACHAEEERE
F-HEFT-HEA—HIFEEZ
B T B TR AR A B I S AS Y
RSN AZ BT A AT 7 A R A
HRAT & e A B s B &
EOIHLE > IR CAF R A R

WE BT O A A A A E
BT A = —H IR
FE B2 5 2 A B B A A
%

LB &N A C AL RSN
ST A M e A AR R L F
—ANEANHEZTHIEAMEAZ KK

financial statements for the six months ended 30 B A E WL -
June 2016.

UTAEEZAEGREE _F - AHF+ 2
H=t—HILFERTZREGERZ T

The following is the attendance record of the committee

meetings held by the audit committee during the year

ended 31 December 2016: ALk
Attendance
at meeting
ok &R
Mr. CHEN Mo e 2R S A= 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu {i] 7B 3 S A 12
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy R S A 2/2

Mr. CHEN Shengguang B s Ot e 4k 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The Board has not established a
risk management committee. Instead, the full Board is
responsible for performing the risk management function,
including establishing and approving the overall risk
management strategies of the Group from time to time,
overseeing senior management’s implementation of
those strategies to align with the Company’s overall
business objectives, determining the Group’s risk profile,
overseeing risk management framework structure,
reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring
risk management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach
is supported by key business units to identify and prioritise
risks while the topdown approach reviews and assesses
if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised, and
properly addressed by key business units to accomplish
the Group’s objectives. The management team is regularly
monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based
internal audit plan and periodically assess the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls
for ongoing risk assurance purposes. This enhances the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control framework.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
system is designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s
assets, prevent and detect fraud and protect shareholders’
investment as well as to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under
review, through discussions with the management,
the internal audit team and external auditors and with
reference to a report submitted by the internal audit team,
the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system in various perspectives, including, among
others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management
and internal control systems are reviewed by the Board
annually and each review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is
subordinated to the Board, formulates the internal audit
plan of the Group based on the strategic objectives
analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment and
performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board and the guidance of the Audit
Committee. It regularly reports to the Audit Committee
and the Board for its audit findings and recommendations
on internal control. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

A B BB E B RN RS B
T ARG o B~ R B A 4 O~ 7 Ik AR
B B R I FC SR £ o R PR AR R R
Al D Bk > ST AR IR L R o R (e R AR
JE B S5 B B N B K
B ANHEAZ B AT o a1 7 2K DL
A K B 52 58 AT A B AE A5 A T
18 B A A 4 I e B I v B AR
AR b R A B B
LB P AR R B B o TR B R R A 4
fl R FHERGEL LG RELER
R A SV A

ApmlNEET R - EREES
B EEFEIREHEEAMFEREZREY
TEE T - B B B R B IR AR
AT ~ R B Al AU R > A T U
HHA AR BB > e A 4R A
REAZ AR RE > S0 5 0 A0 4 A A SR B Ay 42
HRMFEEZAEG RN EFFRIR-ZAKR
B i FE A R AR O B R BT R
A8 3 2 DR NI BT JF 52 4 T BR A 4R
BEABRZ AR IESA R M2 3%
BHE



B 2% En 2R A BR 2 &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of
the Company continuously optimised job responsibilities
and functions of different departments according to the
annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work
covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions,
taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and material
internal controls system and is of the opinion that the
resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate
and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and on
its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, nothing has been found which requires substantial

improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees
to properly comply with relevant policies on inside
information while notifying the Directors (who are also
the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such
information disclosure from time to time to keep all of
them abreast of the latest information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate government
functions in accordance with code provision D3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and has reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance, has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the year as well as the disclosures in this

Corporate Governance Report.
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e XSk N
L. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Tam Ka Wai as its
company secretary who is not an employee of the
Company. In delivering his service as company secretary
of the Company, Mr. Tam has direct contact with Mr.
Dai Feng (an executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer) and Mr. Wong Siu Ki (alternate Director to Mr.
Liu Libin and the Chief Investment Officer). Mr. Tam has
confirmed that for the year under review, he has taken no

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business, which is presently situated at
Unit No. 5, 6th Floor, Wing On Plaza, No. 62 Mody Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder enquiry may be
directed to the Board through the Company Secretary by
sending to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.
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ot XS 8y
There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put AN T 2 AL AR A B B AR 5 B e B S R
forward proposals at the general meeting under the BIEE 22T AT (— JUN—4EH3EH]
Company’s articles of association or under the Companies BEE A MABTT) NI HE I T R RO B ROR
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and PR 2 S e IR W] % b ST AR
revised), of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders may follow 4 B B SRR IO o > DA BIAT B+ 1 ok
the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary AR W 2 AT AT I -
general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no BE_ZX—-ARNF+_A=+t—HILFE
change in the Company’s constitutional documents. AN ) 2 R AL AR S I e A o
On behalf of the Board of Directors REEFG
LIU Libin E
Chairman IRy

Foshan China, 31 March 2017 L —FE—LFE=H=1+—H
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

As one of the earliest enterprises specialising in aluminium
profiles production in Mainland China, for 33 years
since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminium is always
committed to forging the development patterns and
products that meet the needs of modern society, in which
it facilitates us to continue to innovate and transcend.
Along with the nation’s and the society’s increasing
concern on environmental protection and corporate social
responsibilities, we seize the opportunities to become a
leading enterprise with sustainable development in the

industry.

High quality product is our commitment to sustainable
development. The Group cares a lot about product
innovation and scientific research, and has obtained
over 423 national patents. We pursue for higher standard
on product quality than average industry standard with
some products reaching military quality certification
system requirements. With the construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminium profiles as the two key
products of Xingfa Aluminium, we embed the principle of
sustainable development into our products development.
With construction aluminium profiles as our traditional
key products, we promote its market position as green,
environmentally-friendly, energy-saving and recyclable
aluminium profile products, giving back to the society
through our product contribution towards each family. With
the lightweight and durable characteristics, we believe
industrial aluminium has the strong potential in energy
conservation and becoming the material for the society.
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Energy conservation is the outset of sustainable
development. The energy used during our production
mainly comprises of natural gas and electricity, which
gives obvious improvement to environmental protection.
In 2013, we invested heavily in sourcing advanced
natural gas renovation equipment and was the first to
adopt large scale natural gas as production energy in the
industry. Such move reduced workshop gas emissions
by over 45%. In 2015, the government prohibited fire
coal production which better demonstrated our forward-
looking vision in sustainable development. Besides, we
participated in photovoltaic power generation projects and
utilised solar panels installed on plant rooftop for power
generation, which can reduce carbon dioxide emissions
of approximately 8,500 tonnes per annum and resulted
significant social and environmental protection benefits.
The Group is the industry’s environmental protection
demonstration unit and is the benchmark for other
enterprises to follow.

Reducing hazardous emissions is one of the essential
elements to sustainable development. The National
environmental policy has been having increasingly
stringent requirements on industrial production emissions.
Though these generally increase the cost of operation,
they bring about new opportunities. Since 2006, we
have invested over RMB23 million in waste treatment
facilities and invested approximately RMBI13 million
in equipment renovation in energy conservation and
emission reduction. In 2014, the Group obtained the
“Industrial Cleaner Production Application Demonstration
Project” promulgated by MIIT (the “Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC”). In 2015, we
obtained the honour of “Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner
Production Excellent Partners” jointly promulgated by
Economic and Information Commission of Guangdong
Province and Environmental Protection Department of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. In 2016, on a
trial basis, we invited a number of industry environmental
protection specialists to participate in a research to treat
hazardous wastes, with the objective to transform the
hazardous wastes into raw materials, thereby achieving
closed-loop production. The Group always plays a
leading industry role in green production and continues to
approach our “green plant” objective.
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Staff safety and development is safeguarding sustainable
development. In light of the human-oriented and life-
paramount concept, we give top priority to staff health
and safety in our daily works. In 2016, we strengthened
the safety and protection works, increased investments
in safety facilities, and our safety production department
carries out risk assessment on a weekly basis. On the other
hand, we put more comprehensive training courses on
safety knowledge in addition to the existing staff training
system. During the year, we focused more on building a
sound staff training system and course planning.

In recent years, the Group has always maintained a stable
financial growth. In facing the enormous demand and
potential of sustainable development in aluminium profiles
industry, Xingfa Aluminium will adhere to the goal of
“green factory”, implement the sustainable development
concept from the Group’s strategic development to
corporate culture, further promote the transformation of
social materials utilisation, and actively perform our social

responsibilities as a corporate citizen.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Basis of Preparation

This report is the 2016 Environmental, Social And
Governance Report of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Xingfa Aluminium”).
This report is prepared in accordance with the general
disclosure requirements of the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, covering the reporting period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016.

Business of the Group

Founded in 1984, the headquarters of the Group is situated
in Foshan city, Guangdong Province and is one of the
earliest enterprises specialising in aluminium profiles
production in Mainland China. During the reporting
period, the Group mainly specialised in the production
and sales of construction aluminium profiles and industrial

aluminium profiles.
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Scope of the Report

The subject that this Report covers is Xingfa Aluminium
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries and focuses on
reporting the Group’s environment and social policies
relating to the production and sales of industrial aluminium
profiles and construction aluminium profiles in the PRC

during the reporting period.

THE GROUP’S STRATEGY ABOUT
ESG DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s sustainable development strategy refers
to always maintaining constant profit growth and
improvement in overall capabilities amid the already
leading competitive sector and operation environment
of future expansion in pursuing for enterprise self-
survival and sustainable development after taking into
consideration of operation goals and market positions.
In our sustainable development strategy, we placed
great emphasis on internal management, information
management, customer management, personnel
management and market management, and established
sustainable development plans in terms of networking,
diversification and forward-looking. We formulated formal
sustainable development strategy in the environmental,
social and governance aspects, which covered the
followings:

In order to enhance our flexibility and adaptive capability,
we aim at reducing management expenses and improving
management efficiency and focus on motivating staff
enthusiasm and creativity in terms of management models.
Whilst the organisation structure of the Group shifted from
the pyramid type to more horizontal-direction structure,
the structure of each department needs to be adjusted
according to development needs. We have established
and are continuing to improve the mechanisms such as
decision-making, monitoring, interests, risks, code of
conduct, investment, capital raising, audit, information
disclosure, capital structure and equity management,
incentive-tagging and so on, with the purpose of improving

human and capital efficiency.
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The key to product sustainable development lies on
continuous innovation and optimisation. The Group is the
first to adopt clean energy production and devotes a lot
of resources in environmental protection. Not only can
our production base satisfy the national environmental
protection requirements, but can also be the demonstration
unit in the aluminium profile industry. On the other hand,
the construction of a complete sales service process
is also the key to the sustainable development of our
products. We keep on making constant sample testing and
adjustment to produce profiles meeting customer needs
from preliminary product design according to customer
needs to the testing of customized profile implementation
plan, then further to subsequent optimal design. We
value product after-sales service and persist on providing
professional and perfect service integrating customer-
oriented sales concept, which enables our “Xingfa Brand”
received well established perpetual reputation both within
and outside the industry. We always adhere to the corporate
mission of “let aluminium industry bring excellence for
better human life”, research and develop and launch more
low-carbon and energy-saving environmental protection
products, including aluminium templates substituting
wooden template operation, solar aluminium frame derived
from photovoltaic new energy and a variety of industrial
profiles clinging on environmental protection. In today’s
ecologically fragile world, we insist on the sustainable
development concept and continue to move forward
in the course of environmental protection and energy
conservation, paving a new and wonderful “aluminium”

route for the world.

Talent resources are the first essential elements for the
Group’s operation while human resources management is
the focus of our management. The sustainable development
of our talent resources is mainly focused on remumeration
design, performance appraisal, job analysis, quality model,
incentive-tagging, competition, recruitment, training
and development, etc., with an aim to fully motivate
the enthusiasm, and cohesion of our staff. Based on the
position requirements, we make adjustments to talent
resources introduction policies, introduce talent resources
through various channels and attract talents by adopting
sustainable development human resources policies.

FEE i 19 TR A% R B S A T S B 9 A
AL > A ] A SE 3R R e RUEAT 42
FE > TE B 55 PR T B K B FA
(1) A5 7 2 i S B RE O I K BR O AR ol
Ko BAER T HBMAT MR AL 5
— D7 T > A AR o B Y B IR P AR A
T BT T T A A R Y HL RS o i AR
%0 5 5 RO S - B B E ) A
2B T B T % - T EAR AR A B B AL R
wt o FAM ER R A Bt SRR A 9 R AR E
R B TR BB o BN o E B AR
M5 - BRI B3 SEE WIS & A LB S
E RSB - AT [ BB ) EAT SN Sh
A OB REEATE o FAM A By [ 8n
E- DN E S SRR T R/ NN e S S
BIF % 0 4t 5 22 (KB mE BR IR Y 1) 7 o
A5 ARG A 8 8 T 24 19 i AR~ Sl AR
T RE VL A B K 15 B B 2 AE LA % 4% DA R
PR MR TETIM o 1 2R RB M 55 19 5 K>
FAM B A5 0] 5 TR 98 R B A > BEAE R R
i RE 19 B BN BTRIAT > 5 I AURT R — 35
MY [ 8 ) AR o

ANARALEBBENE —BZE ATER
PR A AR B A ERE o FRAM I A AT
AR R R P AE B N R AT BUCE A%
AR 73 A~ ROE R R  ED 20 R 3 T
UK RIS S 13 ~ S B 8545 O T - H 92 f
T IR S E) B TR BT A
J1 o FeAM AR BE i 07 7 oK > S TR
> MR A A R IR AE G HE A AT R
B R N BUR A



3.1

3.2

33

B 2% En 2 AR A BR A &) XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3% Annual Report 2016

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Issues that concern the Group

The Group is committed to promoting the ESG
performance in the following aspects:

. Environmental protection: air emissions,
other emissions management, use of

packaging materials and use of resources

. Socially related: supply chain management,
product responsibility, health and safety

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholders include both internal and external
stakeholders, and the main stakeholders of the
Group include our staff (from management to
frontline staff), suppliers and customers. As 2016
was the first time we prepared the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, we have included
our top management and department representatives
in our stakeholders interviews and survey. In
next year, we will continue to pay attention to
stakeholders, review and update the materiality
assessment, enable our report to reflect the latest
progress in promoting sustainable development by
the Group.

Materiality Assessment

We have engaged a third party independent
consultant to conduct the stakeholder engagement
and materiality assessment. Through a questionnaire
survey and analysis on the opinions from our senior
management, in identifying the most critical ESG

issues from both internal and external expectations.

3.1

3.2

33

BB A E LB

5 [0 B T Y ik

ALEEB ST LT HHWESGE
.

. BRI AR R SRCHE i~ At
Peudown i B mAEM R
AL

. B AR B - O R B A B
ah AT - B R B A

45 H R B 2 8L

M) i FH B B A 7 A 4 A B A
S A g A B > A S ] B A
aat A B 45 R B T (44 B g
Bl AT - BrEMME S Ao 2
JR20164F 2 FAM & UK A R BT ~ 4L
BB Aol T = R
i 1 P 22 B T A YA o AR WY AE
A 5 F15 8 IR 0 45 M) 2 AT B
A3l B AR AL > DARE R
J WA B2 8] 75 T 45 A9 4% J 5 TH B
T HE JE

P T A

T ) 2 A R BELEE B AR AT AL K
S T 5% = 77 M S ] > BLAC A
] — R AT H R A o A
25 A 23 AR B o AR BN B4R R
(95 5 > DA ife e B AP F) 28 7 F A
IR P T 45 A 2 R o) L LA L ) A ol
BRI -

69



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 3% $5 242 iE B BR A &)
Annual Report 2016 4F %R

70

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB g LB E

We have identified the issues that pose significant FRAM I 3 DA A 4 [ AT R A
impact on our sustainable development. These JEA RSB e R E D
issues are listed as the key areas for our sustainable BB F R AR T 00 B AR R
development.
Environment: B3
Important issues The relevant Hong Kong HEHRE B 2 HH BA
Stock Exchange s W 22 B oK
requirements
Air emissions Emissions JBE SRR PEcy
Hazardous waste Emissions HEREY) PEY
discharge Bk
Use of packaging Use of Resources £ 561 L HEPEAE
materials 181 H
Society: e
Important issues The relevant Hong Kong HERE Bz fH B
Stock Exchange s W 22 B Bk
requirements
Supply chain Supply Chain Management Pk e g A 3t G A
management
Product responsibility Product Responsibility E b AT E b AT

Health and safety Health and Safety fR R4 TS
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HEMEFGMAERINT RE 0
follows: Environment @ ; Society @ there

The results of materiality assessment is set out as

The results of materiality assessment in enviromental aspect

B 358 i i o A AR

Key disclosures
@

Materiality on Xingfa Aluminium

HWEZEENER M
Description i
1 Plant/shop noise 1 B&E 7
2 Greenhouse gas emissions 2 EE U PRk
3 Water consumption 3 K
4 Indoor air quality 4 EBENZEREE
5 Climatic change 5 SafrsEl
6 Energy consumption related to transportation 6 FE A B AE 6
7 Non-hazardous waste discharge 7 IEE B PR
8 Energy consumption not related to 8 JF % i AH B AY BEFE
transportation
Material Environmental Aspects B 0% g 1 g R
9 Air emissions 9 JERIGH
10 Hazardous waste discharge 10 A F BEY Pk
11 Use of packaging materials 11 6 3R 41 £
12 Use of electricity 12 Hi&
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The results of materiality assessment in social aspect

7 i B A R

Key disclosures

@ ENRE

°I

O M 5 8 2 O 2 T S

Materiality on external stakeholders

Materiality on Xingfa Aluminium

HEEERNEEM
Description i
1 Child labour and labour exploitation 1 1R 2 0 2% Bl R M
2 Anti-corruption 2 RIEH
3 Employee benefits 3 BTHEA
4 Human rights 4 N
5 Community Investment 5 fLmfrE
6 Staff development and training 6 H TR
Material Social Aspects #L €7 Jig T ) R 2R R
7  Product responsibility 7 R EAR
8 Supply chain 8 fitmE g

9 Health and Safety 9 fHFRELL A
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4 Environment

4.1

Environmental Protection Related Policies

The Group has passed the certifications of ISO
14000 Environment Management System and ISO
50001 Energy Management System, and formulated
the environmental policies and sustainable
development policies.

We formulated the Xingfa Aluminium
Environmental Protection System which clearly
stated that the primary mission for the Group’s
environmental protection is to govern production
emissions by relying on technology, comprehensive
utilization of production waste residue, prevent
environmental pollution and develop clean
production. We implement environmental
protection target-oriented accountability system,
set up safe environment office to lead and take
charge of our environmental protection works. The
environmental protection management personnel
of each production workshop is responsible for
carrying out specific environmental protection
works. We implemented the reward and penalty
system for environmental protection to reward
or penalize employees with either outstanding
performance or in violation of regulations

respectively in respect of environmental protection.

Since our establishment, the Group has all
along been focusing on whether its products and
development direction are in line with the future
needs of the society. As a socially responsible
public company, we invested a lot of resources in
environmental protection. Since 2006, we invested
over RMB23 million in treatment equipment
for waste gas, waste, water and heavy metals
and approximately RMB13 million in energy
conservation and emissions reduction.

BB A E LB

R B R A B B3R

A SR B IHISO 1400088 55 4 H
X FISO 50001 HE P74 8 R 3R
> Nl ) A BR BT R S RT R AR g R
B -

A i E T LR B S BRI Ok o o
J > WA T R BR 5 ARl v AT
5 2 MK 58 BB AR A DR AR
JiE s AR A M - B IR BRI TS Ut B
JEREEE - M EATRERER
ERRAE W > B2 % BRI 4
B A AR P R BR T IR T AR o 4%
PR RS R A B AR
A7 TR L P ) RO R A o AT
FAT BRI IR T T AR SR > A
B (R i 7 1A 2R B 28 i 0RO E
BT 4T 58 i 20 &1 -

AR { L DA — H B A
IR Syl PR e s N £
T A B —F ARG ETNA R
oA AR E AT
K& - 20064 2 4> IR A" B
S BEY S KRN I 4 B i P R A %
A HH2,3008 0 A KW 75 i BE il
PR o Jr A A 41,3008 06 A
R

73



74

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 %% $2 2 5 i B BR A 7)

Annual Report 2016 F#f

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB A& LB WA

4.2

Air Emission

In our environmental policies, the Group requires
stringent restriction of air and particulates
emission into the atmosphere. Prior to air emission
discharge, it must undergo purification treatment
and shall not exceed the specified standard before
discharging. Air emissions generated during the
production process of the Group include nitrogen
oxide, particulates and organic waste gas (benzene
and xylene).

Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly come
from casting workshop. We have already invested
over RMB10 million to purchase natural gas energy
transforming equipment. The use of natural gas
as production energy has reduced air emission
in workshops by over 45%. We also invested
more than RMB3.9 million for upgrading casting
equipment to improve energy efficiency. The
natural gas resources consumed after upgrading
decreased from 80 cubic meters per unit to 60 cubic
meters per unit.

Organic waste gas is mainly generated from paint
spraying process in fluorocarbon workshop. We
started to treat the organic air emissions through
a combined technology of recycled activated
carbon absorption and catalytic combustion since
2015, which is currently the most effective way in
organic air emissions treatment. Curing furnace
flue gas generated from painting production
line in fluorocarbon workshop is collected and
treated through spray tower (liquid biological
deodorization) after integrating with the activated
carbon absorption method before discharge. The
treated organic air emission is converted into

carbon dioxide, water and some heat.

4.2
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We formulated specialized fire safety emergency
plan to prevent emergencies that may occur due
to organic air emissions treatment equipment,
regulate and strengthen the control and handling
of emergencies by the factory environment
management system.

w

Organic air emission treatment facilities

A7 SR B A

Other Emissions

The Group’s environment policies have stipulated
in details of management requirements for waste
generation. Hazardous waste is disposed of by third
party companies holding hazardous waste disposal
qualifications, with which we signed contracts
with them. For production units producing solid
waste, we require choosing the ways and facilities
that meet the requirements of environmental
protection in collection, transportation, storage
and treatment of solid waste produced. The
policies also stipulated that it is not allowed to
place, pile up and pour out solid waste at will. For
production workshops discharging hazardous waste,
when pollution incidents may or have occurred,
emergency measures must be taken immediately
to prevent pollution from spreading out, alleviate
and even eliminate the impact of incidents. Major
accident or emergent events should be reported to
the safety and environment office of the Company
for investigation within two hours after occurrence.

4.3
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For tackling hazardous waste that generated,
we implement the national environmental report
system and the “three-simultaneous system”,
including the national wastage emission reporting
and pollutant discharge permit system, Regulations
on Environmental Protection and Management of
the Construction Project of State Council of the
People’s Republic of China ( <% A R 4
B 5 B i w H R IR BT R HAR ) ), Certain
Issues relating to Environmental Protection and
Regulations on the Management of Pollutant
Discharge Fee Levy and Utilization ( <k 22 i
o 3 L 49]) ) by State Council.

In 2016, we began to start trying to separate
collection and treatment of hazardous waste (heavy
metal nickel and chrome) and invited experts in
environmental protection industry (such as college
professors, subject specialists, professionals from
environmental protection institutions, etc.) to
participate in the Group’s research on material
identification and non-hazardous treatment, with an
objective to convert waste into non-hazardous waste
before discharging or converting into production
raw materials for circulating reuse. At present,
the method to convert spraying waste into raw
materials has passed preliminary testings.
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The environmental policies of the Group requires
strengthening the sewage treatment to reduce its
discharge volume. The policies also requested
that good work must be done in the closed-
circuit circulation and comprehensive treatment
of production wastewater. Specific stipulation
regarding the prevention of wastewater pollution is
as follows:

. Each workshop is responsible for “zero
discharge” of harmful sewage.

. Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly toxic
wastewater is prohibited from discharging
into the water system. It is strictly restricted
to discharge pollutants into the water system
to prevent pollution.

. Cleaning oily or poisonous vehicles and
containers that contain and store pollutants
with water system is forbidden.

. Testing center is responsible for conducting
daily sewage inspection to ensure strictly
controlled waste water is being discharged
within standards.
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4.4

. The safety and environment office as well as
the environmental protection management
personnel of production workshop shall co-
operate and accept unannounced inspection
by the environmental protection agency on

air emission, and wastewater discharge.

We have standardised and centralised processing
of sewage generated from production workshop.
Industrial wastewater treatment is being conducted
by a qualified contractor. The contractor is required
to ensure the treated waste water discharged meets
the wastewater industry discharge standards of

Guangdong Province.

Utilization of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are
mainly plastic products. We choose packaging
materials suppliers that meet the requirements
of relevant national laws and regulations. For
sourcing packaging materials for products, the
Group formulated the group-level sourcing
management plan as its principal policy documents.
At the same time, the Group also worked out the
supplier evaluation control procedures, inspection
procedures for major accessories, purchasing
procedures for major accessories, quality target
management and statistics requirements to be
applied for the implementation of regulating and
controlling supplier evaluation procedures and
the sourcing work execution. Packaging materials
suppliers are selected by tender and has already
established long-term cooperative partnership with
them.
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The sourcing management plan of the Group
stipulates that the tender team is responsible for
the qualification investigation of the bidders and
requires that the bidder must be an unit registered
in the People’s Republic of China and possesses
the legal person capacity that is in line with the
relevant requirements of organization inviting the
tenders. Bidders shall possess enterprise business
license and tax registration certificate, and provide
product specification, quality certificate, quality
system certification, credit certifications and other
materials.

The supplier evaluation process involves risk
assessment on suppliers, of which, the score
regarding the evaluation of product quality and
hazardous substances control, environment and
safety control of suppliers accounts for 40% of the
overall risk assessment score of suppliers, which
demonstrates that we attach great importance to
whether the products of suppliers are meeting our
environmental and quality requirements.

Resources Utilization

Since natural gas transformation equipment
were fully put into use in 2013, the Group made
remarkable achievements in the effective utilization
of resources, including water, energy and other raw
materials.

The Group took effective measures to increase
resources utilisation,including using LED lamps,
monitoring room temperature, using energy-
efficient equipment, adopting more environmental
clean technology, using alternative fuels with low
emission, changing electrical machine to new
and highly efficient motors, green planting and
reclaiming waste heat of boiler. We checked carbon
emission periodically and reported to Provincial
National Development and Reform Commission
(NDRC), and provided NDRC with original data to

formulate carbon emission indicators in the future.
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Take solar photovoltaic project as an example, the
Group constructed the solar photovoltaic project
supported by original roofing sheets in factory,
and adopted the grid model of self-generating
electricity and self-use residential electricity and
operated in the forms of power line communication,
which can reach an annual generating power of
approximately 10.27 million kilowatt, saving
standard coal volume of 3,286.4 tons, reduce
carbon dioxide emission of 8,544.64 tons
annually, sulphur dioxide of 92.02 tons and have a
remarkable social and environmental efficiency as a
result. In addition, after installing the solar panels
on plant roof, the temperature in workshop dropped
by 4-6 degree Celsius, saving energy consumption
indirectly.

DS NEES R /NEIER RN N
Ry e 6 R I8 AR FE g [ A Y S
J= TE S AR AT i T SR T B 8
HARBEMWIFERL RE LH
107 SGEAT AR T E B A RA
1,027 8 B > i 7 1 HE 3 286.4 M >
UL PE A ALK 8,544. 640 - — A AL
92.02MF » #1 € I IR 55 2 45 B2 o
WA > g R TE 2 255 K B AE AR
% > B A TR P A4 -O 0% ER B > ]
P B HERE

Solar plant rooftop of photovoltaic project

JeAREHE KE

The Group started to use energy management
centre system in December 2015. Such system
automatically records data including water,
electricity and natural gas consumption in each
workshop through many automatic measuring
facilities. The data would synchronize to the
management center system which can analyse
energy usage data and trends. Through supervision,
worker can debug and repair control equipment
timely, and monitor resources consumption of the
entire factory base real time, which could further
help the Group to enhance effective utilization of

resources.
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Legal Compliance

The Group had no behaviour of breaching
of relevant laws and regulations related to
environment during the reporting period,
nor received any violation notice from the

government’s environmental protection department.

5 Society

5.1

Social-related Policy

As a leading enterprise of aluminium profile
industry in China, the Group always considers that
the existence of an enterprise is not just for making
profits as its final object, but should take social
responsibility for its clients, employees, society
and the environment. We formulated our corporate
social responsibility policy, focused on pursuing
corporate social responsibility and advocated all
employees to strictly comply with such policy.
The Group’s corporate social responsibility policy
covered the following 11 aspects:

. Comply with local laws and regulations:
The Group complies with State Labour
Laws and relevant laws of other
governments, and develops factory
regulation system that complies with local
laws. We only choose to establish long-term
cooperation relationships with partners and
suppliers who meet the requirements of laws
and regulations.

. Respect for human rights and freedom:
The Group is against discrimination, and
considers everyone is equal regardless
of gender, race, skin colour, nationality,
political preference, religious beliefs and
job positions.
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Prohibit employing child labour: The
Group prohibits employing child labour
under 16 years old, and carries out special
protection to child labour according to
laws. The Group only employs those
employees above minimum recruitment age

in compliance with Labour Law.

Sound remuneration and benefits
system: The Group provides employees
with reasonable remuneration and benefits.
The remuneration and benefits meet
all applicable relevant laws, including
minimum wage, overtime pay and statutory

benefits.

Rational reward and penalty system: The
Group commits to rewarding outstanding
employees properly in recognizing their
performance, and give proper assistance to
employees who underperformed to improve
their performance.

Train excellent employees: The Group
provides employees with suitable education
and training, helping them to enhance their
skills and abilities so as to escalate their
social and economic status.

Emphasize honest operation, eradicate
corruption and bribery: The Group
requires holding fair and honest attitudes
in any commercial behaviours. The Group
strictly prohibits any forms of corruption,
bribery, bribe-taking and embezzlement.

Establish harmonious communication
mechanism: The Group encourages
employees and management to
communicate openly and conduct direct
dialogue. We set up employees’ feedbacks
channels, and protect them and forbid any
revenge against employees expressing their

views in any forms.
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. Share operating performance: The
Group’s operating performance is achieved
by all employees, and we promise to share it
with employees and shareholders.

. Create harmonious factory and
participate in social care and enhance
culture: The Group advocates the creation
of cozy “home of employees”, positively
participates in governmental and local
activities, and helps to improve local
economic and cultural standards.

. Promote social responsibility: The
Group strives to promote corporate social
responsibility and extends these to suppliers
and dealers, and encourages business
partners to execute and perfect corporate

social responsibility policy.
Supply Chain Management

The Group formulated supply chain environmental
and social risk management policy, and proposed
environmental and social specific provisions on
supply chain partners, and required suppliers’
production to meet the laws and regulations
relevant to the environment. The Group’s tender
purchasing team is led by senior management
comprising the sourcing director and head of each
branch company and department. The main method
of raw materials purchasing is by tender invitation.
Our supply chain environmental and social risk
management policies include the followings:

. Bidder’s qualifications investigation:
The policy states that bidder must be a
entity incorporated in the People’ Republic
of China, and meets the legal person
capacity required by bidding units and
owns an enterprise business license and
tax registration certificate. He or she must
provide product specifications, quality
certificate, quality system (including
environmental management system)

certification, credit certificate.
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. Corporate Social Responsibility
Management: The policy requires the
suppliers of the Group shall satisfy
corporate social responsibility management
in three dimensions including economic
sustainability, environmental sustainability

and social sustainability.

. Environmental risk management: The
policy requires suppliers to satisfy the
requirements of regulatory, reporting and
operational measures. For chemical materials
purchased, general safety will be realized
through strengthening environmental
management, preventing environmental
pollution incident, and integrating supplier
environmental risk management and supply

chain management to achieve “total safety”.

. Letter of guarantee entered into with
suppliers on exclusion of environmentally
hazardous substances: All materials
and components provided by suppliers
are required to pass the tests conducted
by professional testing organization, and
stamped testing report with official seal
shall be submitted.

Product liability

The Group is an enterprise focusing on innovation
and scientific research and has already obtained
423 national patents currently. We have stringent
control on product quality in accordance with
ISO9001 quality management system, national
recognized laboratory management system,
metrological certification management system, and
employees’ health and environmental management
system. In addition, special requirements on
military industry certification system are also in
place in quality management. Our requirements on
product quality are higher than the average industry
standard.
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The Group commenced the implementation of
Xingfa Aluminium Product Quality Management
Manual from 1 June 2015. This manual is managed
and amended by Quality Department of the
Group. The update and amendment of its content
shall report to the Quality Department, which is
responsible for applying for amendment approval,

and arranging amendment after obtaining approval.

Our Xingfa Aluminium Product Quality
Management Manual emphasises product quality
management, which includes the provision of
satisfactory products to customers, protection of
ecological environment and protection of staff
safety and health. The general manager of the
Company convened dealers’ meeting once every
year, visited key customers from time to time every
month, and extensively seeking opinions on product
quality and improvement from customers. For those
faulty products, we prepared Control Procedure on
Faulty Products, which are applicable to regulate
and manage faulty products for recycling.

The Group advocates green life cycle on products,
which means recycling defective products from
customers for melting and re-producing aluminium

profiles.

During the reporting period, there was no
regulatory non-compliance in respect of product

liability in the Group.
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5.4

Health and Safety

The Group adheres to the human-oriented and life-
paramount concept, and regards staff health and
safety as the key focus of all importance in daily
work. To safeguard staff safety and health during
production, we prepared the Xingfa Aluminium
Safety Production and Environmental Protection
Management System, which emphasised that
“all activities are based on the life and health
of staff”. The Group established the safety
production committee which is responsible for
our overall safety production management works.
For implementation, every production department
has established its own safety production leading
group respectively and is responsible for staff’s
production safety work in respective departments.
Currently, 24 staff are specially responsible for

safety management.

Our safety production works are in line with the
policy of “Safety First, Prevention Crucial and
Comprehensive Treatment”, adhere to the principle
of “Production Management must Encompass
Safety Management and Person-in-charge is the
Responsible Person”. The staff health and safety
policy covers the followings:

. To organize regularly safety experts
to conduct safety assessment on each
production process and all equipment
facilities, including performance and risk
factors assessment, and disseminate the
assessment results to leaders and staff,
and further, placing hazardous signs at

prominent locations.
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For dust, noise, toxic gas (such as benzene,
xylene), the Group will promote and train
staff, and allocate appropriate labour
protection gear to production line staff.
The safety production leading group in
each department conducts inspection
on the actual compliance of staff safety
management, and for staff who is not
wearing safety equipment properly, a
warning will be given for the first time, and
a fine will be imposed on the responsible
leader and respective staff, i.e. strictly
adheres to the penalty principle of “Person-

in-charge is the Responsible Person”.

To focus on the implementation of fire
fighting management, including staff
trainings on fire fighting knowledge,
and deploying fire fighting facilities in
workshops and office buildings. We required
all staff whether in frontline of production
line in workshops and in office buildings
must understand fire fighting knowledge,

and could use fire fighting equipment

properly.

The environmental measures adopted during
production could reduce hazardous waste
gas, waste and waste water emissions,
which are crucial to staff health who are
working in workshops for a long period of
time. We are committed to indoctrinating
environmental protection concept to staff,
and require operating environmentally
friendly, so as to attain achievement
from actual application of environmental
protection concept as well as environmental

protection facility.
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In 2016, the Group strengthened the safety and
prevention work, increased its investment in
safety facility, such as allocating safety belts and
protective shelters when working at heights. Due
to the continuous improvement in production
technology of aluminium profiles, hazardous
sources in the course of production would
change with technology. The safety production
department would re-identify all hazards weekly,
including internal cross-checking, external experts
assessment and at Group level inspection. In the
first half of 2016, the Group made a clean sweep
of over 1,000 hidden danger. The safety situation
remained stable in the second half year, and
achieved significant effect in strengthening safety
and prevention work.

The Group offered a comprehensive safety
consciousness and skills training for staff, and
established consciousness alerting on safety of
colleagues and mutual supervision. We stimulate
staff and their families’ initiatives through
organizing monthly activity for safety education,
engaged staffs and their families to study safety
production knowledge, so as to further enhance
safety and prevention consciousness. The safety
management department established corresponding
safety Wechat communication group through
Wechat, the instant communication App, and
those staff who are team leaders or above could
blow the whistle or report the safety problems
to management at any time, thus ensuring any
information related to safety will be communicated
at management level in a timely manner.
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In future, by taking the past safety industry
accidents as precedents, we conducted research on
the mechanism of safety accidents. We attached
importance to organize safety knowledge training
for all team and group leaders, strengthened
the safety management responsibilities of
safety teams and groups, and emphasize
“Production Management must Encompass
Safety Management”. On the other hand, the
Group managed comprehensively on workshops,
dormitories, canteens and other living facilities,
including distributing protective equipment,
developing health training and employees’ health
inspection projects.

During the reporting period, there was no
regulatory non-compliance in respect of staff health
and safety of the Group.

Employment

The Group published the policies on staff
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, vacation, equal
opportunities, diversification, anti-discrimination

and other benefits and welfare.

The Group offered competitive remuneration
packages in the same industry and established
a scientific and fair remuneration mechanism to
ensure staff with excellent performance could
obtain corresponding returns. We reviewed
regularly the internal remuneration package at all
levels, collected external remuneration industry
information from labour market, strived to create
a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
system based on position, work capability, work
performance, staff skills and benefits to the Group.
Specific remuneration is implemented through the
corporate management plan that approved annually.

5.5

BB AL E LB

TEARH > FAMMGAT R L2
BOVE 2 R AIAE S B R B 2 R g
B A A BIF FT o T A H FBE ALK
B A1 BE AL AT 2 2 ik B Al > R
b % 2P 2 28 AL Sk
sl [ ESAERE] BT
T A S [ A L] S R
B FCAb Ae 3 S 2 T B LA IR
B By b~ B R fd R B ) T
fE A IEE o

TEHE N EER R BER A
Io# Ml ke B 2 4 ) 95 T SR 110
115

D& R

AL B TFM b8 7 B T
P 2 AR ~ TS B B T~ AR
B~ A - Zonil » ROERL L
B A1 48 AR ) J5 T (9 B @

AL WA AR AT P BRA BT
{1 385 I A M) o 28 > SIS LB B
E B P A o > PR R BB Y A
AT B A R [ o F AP S ST A
5B TR BHMKT > B
AAT 55 B) T 35 AR DL AR bR
BT - TAERET) - TAR3E4
B0 4 1 A 4 2 TR > 1R
LA A H - W H BT
P 2R o L R S P 2 R O 4
6 B 2> WA B T 58 o

89



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 %% $2 2 5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2016 F#f

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRYE - kg KB RHAE

The personnel management principle that we
adopted is performance incentives and assurance
of internal fairness. For example, the monthly
salary of production line staff is calculated by the
comprehensive piecework approach on a team or
group basis, ensuring more pay for more work. We
adopted a policy whereby management personnel
shall abstain from any matter relating to their
family relatives, with an aim to ensure internal
fairness, and requires that family relatives of
management personnel are not allowed to work in

respective departments.

We disseminated policy and information through
posting announcements on bulletin board, emails,
employee manual or training. Staff could put
forward opinion and question to management
through interview, E-mails or group discussion. At
the same time, in the course of staff performance
assessment, for different positions, they are
being implemented according to the performance
assessment measures in respective departments.

During the reporting period, there was no regulatory
non-compliance in respect of remuneration and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, vacation, equal opportunity, diversification,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare in
the Group.
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Development and training

The Group issued policy for staff development
and training in the employee handbook. We
regard providing staff opportunities and room for
sustainable development as our responsibility.
In addition to obtaining remuneration and
benefits, staff could also participate in training
and development opportunities that the Group
will provide. Staff development and training
are assurance to achieving operation targets,
performance improvement and fulfillment of
sustainable development, it is also a way for staff to
accomplish competent in duties, self-improvement
and potential development.

For staft career development, the Group performed
staff position rotation as and when appropriate
according to employees’ capabilities, work
performance and actual operation needs, which
fully gave staff to demonstrate their abilities and
potential to achieve the purpose of nurturing staff’s
abilities in varies aspects and improving overall
working efficiency. We adhere to put internal
promotion as the main principle and external
recruitment as support in case of job vacancy
exists. For staff who worked diligently with
outstanding performance and outstanding abilities,
they would be given priority for promotion and

development opportunities.

At the same time, the Group prepared “Staff
Training Management System” and “Methods
for Staff Career Development Management” to
guide staff training and implementation of specific
development work. We provided trainings for staff
through two approaches, which are class training

and online learning.
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5.7

5.8

Labour standard

Our corporate social responsibility has expressly
stipulated the prohibition of recruiting child labour
under 16 years old. For minors between 16 to 18
years old, we carried out special protection in
accordance with the laws. At the same time, the
Group stated in the policy that we only recruit
employees above the minimum recruitment age in

compliance with Labour Law.

The Group illustrated the policy of preventing
forced labour in the employee handbook. Our
leading production model under the order-oriented
approach falls under the seasonal-restricted
industry category. Pursuant to the Labour Law
and the approval from local labour department,
we implemented a work system with integrated
computation of workings hours to ensure staff’s
rest and right to take leave can harmonize with
normal completion of production and work tasks
through collective working, collective rest, on shift
and adjustment leave and flexible working hours,
etc.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
find any misconduct or regulatory non-compliance
related to child labour or forced labour prevention.

Anti-corruption

The Group prepared the anti-corruption and anti-
bribery code of conduct, which aims to enhance
internal control within the Group. According
to practical situation, we strengthened system
supervision, promoted system anti-corruption, and
reinforced supervision for key segments and staff in

key positions that are vulnerable to corruption.
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The applicable range for the code of conduct
for anti-corruption and anti-bribery included
material procurement, appointment of external
processing, facility projects, business sales,
equipment procurement and maintenance, quality
supervision, other economic activities, and the
process of management of individuals, properties
and belongings. At the same time, all customers,
suppliers, service providers and underwriters
who had business relationship with the Group are
covered by the management of this code, which

covered as the followings:

. Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-
bribery conduct for purchasing and sales
staff

. Requirements of capital management
involving anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct during the purchasing and selling
process

. Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-

bribery conduct for accounting cashiers
. Regular check for evaluation system
. Whistle-blowing registration system
During the reporting period, the Group did not
find any misconduct or regulatory non-compliance

related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
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5.9

Community investment

The corporate social responsibility policy prepared
by the Group covers the information of community
investment. We advocate building harmonious
factories, participating in community care, and
improving cultural standard. Through building a
warm “staff home” for employees, we actively
participated in governmental and local community
activities to help promoting the regional economic
and cultural standard.

We concern about vulnerable groups, promotion
of environmental protection awareness, charitable
donations, support education and the like.
We launched activities of corporate social
responsibility, including organizing staff to visit
elderly homes during the Lei Feng activity month,
deploying summer camps for the children of
migrating employees, supporting local education
and donating funds for education purpose. The
Group actively participated in charitable activities
related to environmental protection which were
organized by governmental sector and donated
RMB300,000 annually to support the weak and
help the poor.
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BRE-HEgLER - BREESF

ESG
Aspect  Key performance Description Page Note
ESGJ& 1 [ 3t &34 i H¥ GEf
Environment
R
Al Emissions Policies on waste gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge 74-78
e into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, etc.; and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have an important impact on the issuer.
A TR B SR it 2 SR PR T K B T B RS A e R
TEW) 1A A A B BOR 5 OB ST R AT A E O B B
LBl o
A2 Utilization of resources Policies on efficient use of resources (including energy, water and 78-80
&R A other raw materials).
AR B IR (R RV 7K B H A R R ) ) B -
A3 Environment and natural Policies on minimizing the impact on the environment and natural 79-80
resources resources made by the issuer
B R R IR G AR B AT N B BRI Je K IR W A I R B B UK
Society
iR
B1 Employment Policies on remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and 80-90
Ieé i promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination as well as other benefits and welfare; and
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have an
important impact on the issuer.
A B K R - R RS T TR B P ERE 2
Tl ~ BB DL B FA Ry 8 R AR A B BOKE 5 MRS B 8 AT A A
TR B 9 A B O 1 S R A
B2 Health and safety Policies on providing a safe working environment and protecting 86-88
it e Bl 22 4 employees from occupational hazards; and compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have an important impact on the
issuer.
A B e 2 4 AR BR T M AR B A B A S B S 1 e IO 5 %
LT SR AT N AT I RS A AR B 1 S R
B3 Development and training  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 91

B K

discharging duties at work; description of training activities.
A7 B AR TR B AT AT I A0k B 5 RE Y R o il 2 B I
ff o
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BB A& LB

ESG
Aspect  Key performance Description Page Note
ESGJE | i & &% L HY i
B4 Labour standards Policies on preventing child labour and forced labour; and 92
&5 T HER compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
A B By 1F R ] 55 A0 B 5 R R S AR Bk S B
BS Supply chain management Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply 83-84
3t 4 21 chain.
A LA R 10 BR 0T Ay L B R o
B6 Product liability Policies on health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy 84-85
JEE i T AT relating to products and services provided as well as remedial
measures; and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
A7 R 4R 3 o R R ) i R L2 A TR R AL
VLBl R7 125 00 B 5 O SR BR S R R HL
B7 Anti-corruption Policies on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money 92-93
V5 laundering; and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
A7 TR By L B B~ R R S g R B Y BOR 5 KR S AR B A
Je B o
B8 Community investment Polices on community engagement to understand the needs of the 94

A I 1%

communities where the issuer operates and ensures its business
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

A B DAL [ 2 B AR I Aol 28 7R T A A [ 75 2 0 fE R L SE 5505 )
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e

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 108 to 215,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“TASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

o 13 B 85 e A 2 M A B e
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

ALY 2 B

T CAR R G AT G A CRIE T RTE
Ry 4T 2wt o AN AR % 25 HE R R ORISR AT E
TEAHR A [ ORI AL 2 = A5 B 5 i R U 19 3
A 1RO AR — 2 WA ARAR A s A B
il CHEF RS (U R 7R )
DA B BELFR A 365 B 2 T IS 2 T B S R B 7 A R
HOE P8 20K AL BEM e EfTE
LB TE PR DA RS U v i) HAt S AE TR AT - R
AR > FAM P HE15 19 7 w1 8 R 70 K L 30 i
Ty BAM 0 T R R PR A

I3 ot 7 Wt IR

] SR o 2 SRR AR PR BT A S B SR AR
WY AR G B R A B R e 2 E Y IH o I s
JEURAE BAM B w48 1 A SV R St HL et B
SR HEAT R BR Y o T AN & i Lo 8 AR (it B
ME R -

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

W i e 22 ¢ 2 B K B

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 139.

i 2 [R5 6 B B AR I AE3 R 5139 F 1Y B 7t B o

The Key Audit Matter
B ot st R TH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FAM £ 7 w1 o] i 2L 5% = JH

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors and other customers in a variety of end-user
markets.

Wi 4t = BEAIE [ 1] 4% o A% i T 35 2 40 8 AL % S 8
TR -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from distributor arrangements included the following:
FoAM FY LA EA 23 8 78 % Bk 2 Ui AR e R B 3R R AR R AL 4
PLN #4508
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Key audit matters (continued)

o 13 B 85 e A 2 M A B e

A3 st FIEH ()

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (continued)

Wik e a2 o B Kk (A

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 139.

i 2 ] A7 G B B R R W RE3 R A 139 H Y & it B

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

the Group’s revenue for the year. Each year, the Group
enters into a framework distribution agreement with each
distributor and sells its products in accordance with the
terms of separate purchase orders. Once the products are
delivered to the location designated by the distributor,
the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
considered to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised accordingly.

o8 2 SR BRI AR IR A65% o HAE
5 47 B 2% 70 G T R SLAE 2200 i o el AR R A% BRI T B
AR B i o — L i S 20 B T R AE Y MR
FU) 65 ity 1) 8 AR JRRL B e [ w45 RS T 20 B 7
B e 3 A i o

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and therefore
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

FAM 15 5 e 2 e 2 Wi 2 e )y ) R IR i
PR W ai )5 5 42 I B R R B A 2 — > o 2
fi 5 Wi A 2 PR B Ak DA 2 EOH 1 A TR g A A A
e o

B S 7 it 5 F A B S oy 8 P
Sales to distributors accounted for approximately 65% of | ¢ assessing the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

. FEA A B A A R 2 A L TG B SR D R B 2 Rk
Fh o HOM B AT AT 5

. reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;

. il b ] B B2 8 T T oL 2 o) B ok o B TR
A7 AT AT Tih e 60 2 70 FF 20 6 6 R ] 2 AR

. for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the related
goods delivery notes, which had been signed
and dated by the distributors as evidence of their
receipt of the goods, to assess if the related revenue
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period on the basis of the terms of sale as set out
in the distribution agreements and the terms of the
purchase orders;

AL AR R BT AR O Bk 2 M 2 B BRAS T 5 > A A7
B A B B (LT ok 2 0 280 8 Dk A O AR i
BIRE) - UL A B dic 4 2 5 O R 98 20 89 1l ok
o S 22 G A R S B B TR A R T B S
W[ T DA AR 5
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Key audit matters (continued) ok 2 GH S 0H ()

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (continued) W& # % : 7 Sivi L P (A7)

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements 752 456 TR ZE M 7E3 R 55139 5 19 8 il 7% -
and the accounting policies on page 139.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
B ot 7% 5t 0H Fe AP B A w1 o R P % S 0H
. evaluating the recoverability of long overdue

receivables from distributors by enquiring of
management the reasons for delay in settlement
and comparing cash received in respect of
these receivables after the reporting date with
bank statements and other relevant underlying
documentation; and

. 70 A [6] 7 B i A ) A ST ) DR B A B
5 H AR 5% 5 O H 2 C il B 4 AR AT B IR
B A AR B SCPR 3, EL o Ak R i 40 8 T 2 2
E A Z BIE R AT i ] o 5 R

. inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

. A AT 0 P AR BT AR A R T B R
LT 0 [ A ] o 4 A DR o SIS R 119 A BELAT
BRI ST AT L o
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PR st IEH ()

Recoverability of trade receivables

SR ki T o ]

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 123 to 125.

R 5
B A TR M ISR FF 123 F 1255 19 & G
% o

The Key Audit Matter
B o % 5t 0H

How the matter was addressed in our audit

F A B S oy i P 5

The carrying value of the Group’s net trade receivables
as at 31 December 2016 totalled RMBS813,714,000,
which included an allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB32,885,000.

ACER-ANFETAZ1T—H, BEBESEIK
R MR T (B A IR H813,714,0007C - £ 45 R
HRR 5 465\ R 132,885,000 7T ©

The Group’s allowance for doubtful debts is based
on management’s estimate of the recoverability of
individual trade receivables with reference to the
ageing of overdue balances, repayment histories of
individual debtors, existing customer-specific and
market conditions and the fulfilment of repayment
arrangements agreed with specific debtors.

4R M 2 R IR AR 0 P B I 2 B R MR
AT R A K822 A R 2 IR A~ A
BN RS BUA & F B ER & 5iik
DLLA K B85 A g 7 1 e B 2 i B AR R
(G

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade
receivables included the following:

FoAM FY LA T A 22 T B SR R 2 mT i T G i R )T R
LR & 0A
. obtaining an understanding of and assessing the

design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and the calculation of the allowance
for doubtful debts;

. TR B R A A BRAE B 1fi%4&@&%ﬁ§f§§f%
w2 TR R B 2 R e S AT RO

. assessing the classification of individual balances
in the trade receivables ageing report by comparing
the details in the trade receivables ageing report
with underlying sales invoices, on a sample basis;

. 780988 i bR ﬂ%x%ﬁgﬂﬁlﬁ% o R B R 2 W B AR
I 5 45 9 AT EL T STl 52 ) B SR R R B
A R A R 2 2
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Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables (continued)

W WS M sk W T W Il A (A7)

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 123 to 125.

2 5 HEW
B A T M ISR FF 123 F 1255 19 & G
%’ o

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

in assessing the allowance for doubtful debts for
individual trade receivables. The ability of the debtors
to repay the Group depends on customer-specific and
market conditions which involves inherent uncertainty.
7 LT A A 1 1) 58 S R SR R R 5 AR B 2T
FIB - B NE B B R R EE T R B
HLHGIR L B i 35 MR DL > 6366 TR 7 S 5 1

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty
in assessing if trade receivables will be recovered in
full and because the assessment of the allowance for
doubtful debts requires the exercise of management
judgement.

T A 465 52 5 B WSO A F) T A T Al ) 7 ) o o
VE > JEUFR I Tl 22 5 M WO O 75 ) B ol [ 2
TE e 5 A B A A I B A4 2R A (o A ) B

BA 42 % Gt 38 8 F A 04 2 oy i BE % A
Management is required to exercise judgement . obtaining an understanding of the basis of

management’s judgements about the recoverability
of individual overdue balances and evaluating the
allowance for doubtful debts made by management
for these individual balances with reference to
the industry in which the debtors are operating,
the ageing of overdue balances, historical and
post year-end payment records and repayment
arrangements agreed with specific debtors. This
included inspecting relevant correspondence with
individual debtors;

. TR A L LA L A A i R s [m] E ARE
ZHYE QA2 B NE AT s A iR 2
ARG ~ B S0 AR ORAR AT G Bk S 2 P M E 2
B 22 PRAR - WAL A8 P il 5% 56 {1 I 46 R A o 2
R R o 10 EO A B A R B AR5 B R B

. assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates
made by the management for the allowance for
doubtful debts by comparing the level of allowance
made by management as at 31 December 2015 with
the actual new provisions, write offs and recoveries
in respect of trade receivables as at 31 December
2015 during the current year; and

. A EMER - TFE =+ A
2 B K AR —F oA+ A
= B 25 o MWK E B R 2R A i
S B Wi (e L B A A L R e R A T A
H A R R S R S R

. comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent
to the financial year end relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2016 with bank
statements and relevant underlying documentation,
on a sample basis.

. AR M 2 B AR BE AR A H AR & — R4
T2 H =t B2 A 5 RO A B 1 EB A
W B 2 B 4 i B R AT R B A Bl SC RSB B o
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

o 13 B 85 e A 2 M A B e
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o 13 B 85 e A 2 M A B
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

12 SR R A B i 3 JH AR IS R
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A7 I8 i R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEF—ANEL A= —HILFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI RIS R )
2016 2015
i S e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt F AR ¥Fic N R ¥F oL
Revenue BB 3 5,576,696 4,977,829
Cost of sales B A (4,751,647) (4,148,068)
Gross profit EH 825,049 829,761
Other income HoAb g 75 4 40,122 41,413
Distribution costs 73 8 WA (123,835) (107,192)
Administrative expenses TR 52 (279,706) (293,970)
Profit from operations 2 i M 461,630 470,012
Finance costs W A 5(a) (117,950) (149,138)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate M} 5425 28 7% A~ (E518) 13 7,611 (214)
Profit before taxation B e i ¥ 5 351,291 320,660
Income tax IEEE) 6 (52,815) (54,893)
Profit for the year attributable to A< 2 W] R £ 5 5 FE Al 45 B ¥z Al
equity shareholders of
the Company 298,476 265,767
Basic and diluted earnings 9 JE 6 A e B 9 2L R
per share (RMB yuan) (N ST 9 0.71 0.64

The notes on pages 115 to 215 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note 23(b).

5E215H Z M5k B a2 5 MR A — 3640y -
A EHE 25 T R RE A A R e A 2 AT S R A A
B EE23(b) o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Fi B 1H AR B At 4 v U 6 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZF N ] = A — H I

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2016 2015
TR A e TS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx AR ¥ET T
Profit for the year A B ¥ A 298,476 265,767
Other comprehensive income WREEHSEEEGEZ
for the year that may be A JBE b 2 T 4 ¢
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of i e NRILFIE ([ B ])
financial statements of operations DISNET 2 A R 2
outside the People’s Republic of China it 58,7 %
(the “PRC”) 1,493 270
Total comprehensive income for AR 2y ) RE £ 1B SR RE 4 4F B
the year attributable to equity EL &R E
shareholders of the Company 299,969 266,037

The notes on pages 115 to 215 form part of these financial 55 115F215E 2 [l 5 £ 5% % MBS & 1 — B0y
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A 5 W 55K Dt

At 31 December 2016

W ZE—ANFEf ZH=A—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS R )

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—®A e
FoASE R R oAt
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
Bt 7t ANR¥ T NRWEF T
Non-current assets Ik i B B A
Property, plant and equipment S ENN N &) 10 1,794,185 1,905,468
Lease prepayments TAATAH & 11 294,461 301,494
Interest in an associate AU N T 2 R R 13 9,515 1,416
Deferred tax assets i SE T A A 22(b) 42,562 41,465
2,140,723 2,249,843
Current assets i B e
Inventories ' 14 963,458 678,262
Trade and other receivables A8 gy I At IR i 3K 15 1,582,028 1,298,059
Pledged deposits [T REE 16 212,815 278,141
Cash and cash equivalents B R B S E Y 17 443,431 416,012
3,201,732 2,670,474
Current liabilities B £ R
Trade and other payables A8 5y B HoAth JRE A 3 IH 18 1,772,676 1,407,636
Loans and borrowings B 19 1,384,150 1,699,467
Obligations under finance leases REEMH B EFAT 20 - 6,712
Current taxation B 3 B T 22(a) 27,514 25,197
3,184,340 3,139,012
Net current assets/(liabilities) WEEE(AF) FH 17,392 (468,538)
Total assets less current liabilities 42 % 72 I ¥ B £1 {& 2,158,115 1,781,305
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

50 B IR Ol 3R
At 31 December 2016
W ZE=ANFESZH = —H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS )
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
“E N &R A
+ZHA=Z=+—H TZH=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
Mt AR WT ANREFr
Non-current liabilities JE R B £ fE
Loans and borrowings B IR 19 419,252 301,000
Deferred income R JE A 21 47,847 56,769
Deferred tax liability I AiE 3 T A i 22(b) 3,096 3,690
470,195 361,459
Net assets & EE 1,687,920 1,419,846
Capital and reserves T AR B ik i
Share capital J& A 23 3,731 3,731
Reserves fiti 1 1,684,189 1,416,115
Total equity BE 25 A 1,687,920 1,419,846

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2017.

Liu Libin
B 37
Chairman

T

The notes on pages 115 to 215 form part of these financial

statements.

AR —EFEEA = R IR

T

Luo Riming

MHM

Executive Director

HITEF

5 E215H 2 Wik B ez 5 M MR i — 300

111



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 3% $5 242 iE B BR A &)
Annual Report 2016 4F %R

112

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEFANFS ZH=A—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LUN BRI )
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARG R
Share Share Capital Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserves earnings Total
123 Rhf EARH luRe i1 | LR REEH it
Note RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMBO00
i3 NEETL  ABETE  AREFL ARETT ARETL ARETT AREFL AKX
Note23e) — Nowe23@)i) — Nowe23(d)ii) — Note 23(d)iii) — Note 23(d)iiv) — Note 29(@)fv)
Wit WA WiEsa o BEam o BERde) BEn)
Balanceat 1 January 2015 RoB-EE-H N2k 3 179565 6200 W80 131052 6351) B39 LIS
Changes in equity for 2013: CE-LEERES:
Profit for the year L] - - - - - - 265,767 265,767
Other comprehensive income Kb EiE - - - - - m - 2
Total comprehensive income ARlEES - - - - - m 265,767 266,037
Dividends approved in respect ofthe previous year B | FEC EEZ A 23b) - - - - - - (30,152) (30,152)
Appropriation o reserves HREARE - - - - 2997 - (997) -
Balance at 31 December 2015 and RoZ-1%
1 January 2016 i ES i
“R-RE-f-H2ER 371 179565 6200 W80 16704 (3481) 868 14196
Changes in equity for 2016: CENEEEED:
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 298476 298476
Other comprehensive income LA - - - - - 1493 - 1493
Total comprehensive income AElGEET - - - - - 1493 298476 199,969
Dividends approved in respect of the previous year B L FEEC B E 2 BB 23b) - - - - - - (31,895) (31.895)
Appropriation to reserves HRERE - - - - 38,676 - (38,676) -
Balance at 31 December 2016 REZ-A%
Y ERRET 3 179565 6200 W80 20570 (989 LT LesTom

15 to 215 form part of these financial 55 115% 2158 Z Wl 5k 5 5% 55 BB B —F 4y o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HAaBlaemER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE A A = — H I

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU RS )
2016 2015
TR A e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 7 AR Fx AR ¥ET T
Operating activities BEWmH
Cash generated from operations TS B & 17(b) 540,854 518,140
Income tax paid by the rh R B RS 2 R EAS T A B
subsidiaries in the PRC (49,800) (54,233)
Income tax (paid)/recovered by M E AR (B
the subsidiary in Hong Kong s T ) A5 (2,389) 297
Net cash generated from REmBHmEHETEH
operating activities 488,665 464,204
Investing activities BHEED
Interest received S &IPE! 7,455 10,176
Proceeds received upon maturity N TEF’ AE B 4%
of pledged deposits 2 i 15 510A 521,051 757,078
Payment for pledged deposits C HCH A7 3K AT 3K (455,725) (705,005)
Payment for purchase of property, TEEY - WE K&
plant and equipment A 2 AT (188,012) (224,097)
Proceeds from disposal of B KE K&
property, plant and equipment R A A5 A
30 -
Net cash used in investing REWMB B & FH

activities

(115,201) (161,848)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GoBemaR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEF—ANEL A= —HILFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2016 2015
RN B e TS
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt F AR ¥Fic N R ¥F oL
Financing activities Al ¥ 3 B)
Interest paid CATFLE (116,710) (136,461)
Proceeds from loans and B S BT 15 R IH
borrowings 2,297,675 2,090,800
Repayment of loans and BEER MG
borrowings (2,494,740) (2,093,365)
Capital element of finance lease O Rl AH B AH 4 AR TR Ay
rentals paid (6,712) (25,814)
Interest element of finance lease EL AT Al A 4 R R
rentals paid (58) (1,227)
Dividends paid EAT R 23(b) (31,895) (30,152)
Net cash used in financing Al 3 B o ) B
activities (352,440) (196,219)
Net increase in cash and B4 KRB &S HED
cash equivalents B i 21,024 106,137
Cash and cash equivalents W—H BB &R
at 1 January W E&FEHD 416,012 305,856
Effect of foreign exchange R 32 5 B & 5 B
rate changes 6,395 4,019
Cash and cash equivalents RT_HA=+—HMW
at 31 December BekBl&%FHYD 443,431 416,012

. The notes on pages 115 to 215 form part of these financial  2f115F 2155 & Ml 5E £ 5% % BB R 00 — 540 -
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“TASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting

policies adopted by the Groups is disclosed below.

The TASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

&5 6 W R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

1 FEGFIBOR
(a) HHEY

7% S U i 3 R 2 R A T R
J 255 i A T (T 1 e o B e o e
BILL) A S o 1o I B 5 i A Y T B A
P R AR R B (TR g
FPHERIZ B 6 |) AR A B A 7 AR
il e % S S o )~ T R e
B (T Bt o A ) B R DA M
A O w0 2 0 P L E -
MBI R I B BB A5
A BR A YR S b iR 2 T 4
e SC o A B 11 i BR 1) 2 B R
AR

I % o R ) 22 B 2 A A TR
HT R A HT B R B s e R 3%
S5 UE ) 5 7 A A [ AS g ST 0 P K
A RS PT AR LR AN o W U R S
LA A5 [ A B 2 [ % B i s 1 )
T 51 BE A DL e a2 AR
ol g 5 EOR 2 ) > O R BUR 325
Bk 2N A B E RO B R
(c) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 WA W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, which is the functional currency of the
subsidiaries carrying out the principal activities of
the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 29.

1
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Y R 2 o
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W) B3 W E AR BHEEN T
(VRPN PR e SR
Z W 2 W 2 D RE

FABE R < B DAJEE S AR 3 2

A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The TASB has issued a number of amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (Note 1(h)).

&5 6 W R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

1 FEEGEIER &)
(c) & BT8R 52 B

I 5% i i oA B 2 B A T
% B B i A R ) 2 AB T AR TSR
ASE B A U AR R e 7
S5 AG AT B AR AR P A A 10 ] A 30
] T i S 2 2 97) 2 SE AR R B IR L
3lfr 45 B R L2 o

A 4R [ Sz 40 B Y A AT A T 30
W) oA A2 2002 7 e T i R o

(@ FEAFE

W 8 2 ) i o AR 4 I 42 ) B R o
i A% 4 9] (K] 22 BEL B 6 ) 5 25 T
15 2 A M =2 A T A (o] 9% > NI AR
T R
e A 4 P 92 ) %R A o TE T A
AR HR TR A R (5 8
FURHER (g A 52 1) B CH At A A 5
) e

T — [HI B J 2 R 2 BEE 1 428 o B e
O P A ACE B R AR A
o5 R 3R AR AR o SR A ]
45 Bk - 0o KB & 8 LA AR
A2 ) [H] 52 o 7 A 2 AT AR o 3 B i
AT Ao 5 A5 5 T B ik 3R TR 2
S o 4R [ IR 2 R [H] 22 5 AR 2 O B
B 15 DA B R 2 B0 4 A (7] 2 J7 5K
S > A I (L A R AT
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WA JE 2 ) 2 5 i BROAS Y 2 Yk L
BN (MfaEihm) ) -

117



118

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2016 4 #f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (Note 1(h)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net

investment in the associate.

1
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(e)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(®

Associate (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 1(h)), unless classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale)).

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and

equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (Note 1(h)).

- Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as held

under operating leases (Note 1(g)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 77 150151 > AL R WS 7 )

1 FEEGEIER &)
() BBAF ()

A 2 1] LI 0 W) 2 [ 2 5 T E A
9 A T B 36 ) R 2K > 3 A S
TR Ty B HE i LU I8 5 HL
R 5 B M 1R R B0 7 o B
{6 > S RZ 45 o 5 B ks 18 & B RF 7E 4R
it 1A i 58 o
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5 W 5 WA W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (Note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or

loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

. Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than

35 years after the date of completion.

. Machinery 3 — 20 years

. Motor vehicles 3 — 5 years

. Office equipment 3 - 10 years
and others
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(2

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost
or valuation of the assets over the term of
the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in Note 1(f).
Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in Note 1(h). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g2) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

For trade and other current receivables
carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(BF 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:
- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayment;

- interest in an associate; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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&5 6 W R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEFEBUR ()
(h) Impairment of assets (continued) (h) & WAL (4
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued) i) HMEFEWME ()
Recognition of impairment losses - T 8 6 1 s 18
An impairment loss is recognised in ik ¥ 7 L i Ja B 4
profit or loss if the carrying amount A LA 2 R T (R

of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).
Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (Notes 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

i)

Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Inventories (continued)

(i)

(i)

Aluminium profiles manufacturing
(continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Property development

Inventories in respect of property
development activities are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
and net realisable values are determined as
follows:
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Inventories (continued)

(ii)

Property development (continued)

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under
development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including
the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised
(Note 1(s)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling
the property.

Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable
value represents the estimated
selling price less costs to be incurred
in selling the property. The cost of
completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and

condition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)]

(k)

@

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (Note 1(h)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 1(p)(i), trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank

and on hand, demand deposits with banks and

other financial institutions, and short-term, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination

benefits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

(0)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Termination benefits (continued)

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an

expense.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes

levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

o the same taxable entity; or

D different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a

debt instrument.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at
the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 1(p)
(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group, under the guarantee, and
(b) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customershe consideration
re taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
held for sale is recognised upon the later
of the signing of the sale and purchase
agreement and the completion of the
properties, which is taken to be the point
in time when the risks and rewards of
ownership of the property have passed to the
buyer. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement
of financial position under forward sales

deposits and instalments received.

Services income

Revenue from services rendered is
recognised in profit or loss upon the

completion of transaction.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

1

EEGEHBOR ()

(q)

W ik e G (A )

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B ¥

H B A R A 3 T AR Ak
NTE S RT L Th e S 9
I3 [H] 19 52 B ) 3 B ) S B A
AR 1Y R I JL e % [ S T
5% I Tl G0 o 7 Al B8 WA I A
H 0 S W) BT A 4 3
3 A B85 IR B3R 1Y
0 6 B T R e A
KA

MR WA

e A 1R IR B 2 W2k i 52 5
€SI A 48 45 T R o

HMEMBEZ RN

AR AL 2 RO 2 A TR
A B REL 0 PR 8 4 4 70 ) 4
il R > M A HL A Ty ik e

T A M S k(8 ) LR T
15 Wi g 2 A58 SR BR o © L 2
A R i R 9 E AR
B AR o SR B R
P 5 & w300 [ e 8 2 WA o



B 2% En 2R A BR A A XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

3% Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

v

(vi)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other income
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are

translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at

the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the

reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates

the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

()

(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the

Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(w)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii)) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a

group of which it is a part, provides

key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 Accounting estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual

value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation
expense for future years is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimation.
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A B A5 A A Y AT AR R
LRI ERAEE () o i 15 A R A
ORI R AR AR I
BA 3

145



146

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 j B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2016 F #f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W WA W
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(K577 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

2

Accounting estimates (continued)

(b)

Impairments

()

(i)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment, lease prepayments, non-
current financial assets and prepayment
for machinery, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these
assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires
significant judgment relating to items such
as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that
is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as revenue and
operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are assessed and provided based
on the directors’ regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of

each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

2

&t fli vt )

(b)

Tk A

()

(i)

TE% 8 T3 s Mok
> TEATAR & IR B
LA M i TS IR B Sk (L
Yl E I > JH R G W2 45 B Y
AT [ T o AT i [ T
{3 B 1 B (B 3 2 B
& o AR 5 WAG % 5 G
F1% T 85 A - ke LUK A
B AR o A R S (BB
TR A B B T A B R
NGB L BLE Y 7
B SEBUKF S AR 8
S T H AR ORI e AR 4R
EEEN - ER &
SE AT W B EOH 2 A B
LT AR PR3 S SR N
ASEIEH 2 A B H AT DL
S 2 ABRGBOR T AT 2 A
=

IR SR Tl (LM 48 1 7 = )
Al B4 B i 2 A R AT s [ AR
JEE BT Al HEAT BT Al S 4 o 3
L R SR DI ERIE 51
B A U R AC Bk IR At AR K
T BE I 1 ) i -

b 3l G A A A T 3 el 2
B 5 R AR AT B 1) AR 5 ks
Ei=REIR
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2 Accounting estimates (continued)
(b) Impairments (continued)

(iii) Impairment losses for inventories are
assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of market price
against inventories costs. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the
directors when assessing the market price.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles.

The amount of each significant category of revenue
is as follows:

&5 6 W R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

2 E#FEHEE )
(b)  WRAE (A7)
(i) A7 5 Wk (E I 18 4 3 e A
A B £ A 04 b 5 A T
FEAG B H A o 2 AR SR T

AR b AR R B B A
B -

et ol (L R R 04 A AT 35 ek 25
o 5 28 R A A B 1 AR SR
Ei=REiR I
3 BEHRS WA
(a) wmEE

A 45 ) A o R B A T
F1 o

2518 AR U e A R

2016 2015
TR AR ZE A
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Tx A B W+ Ic
Manufacture and sale of B TR 6 B b
aluminium profiles 5,491,680 4,896,701
Manufacture and sale of Sk T B 6 B AR
aluminium panels, moulds and 5B R A
spare parts 76,510 77,754
Provision of processing services 24t TR % 8,506 3,374
5,576,696 4,977,829

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does
not include any individual customer (2015:Nil)
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the

,
Group’s revenue.

AEMEFE#Z T A A®
G G G AR LB S EHBHR10%2
T ERZE (& —HAE: ) o
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3

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines.
In a manner consistent with the way in which the
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following reportable
segments.

. Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium

profiles, mainly for industrial usage.

. Construction aluminium profiles: this
segment manufactures and sells aluminium
profiles with surface finishing, including
anodic oxidation aluminium profiles,
electrophoresis coating aluminium profiles,
powder coating aluminium profiles
and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely

used in architecture decoration.

All other segments include the provision of
processing services, manufacture and sale of
aluminium panels, moulds and spare parts and

property under development for sale.

3

CES N Tig S NE D

(b)

g W

A ] FE i AR B S o 4 B
1) 74 L e e LA A BN R A
 DUEST B IR B R BTS2 &
BBz T O AREME 25T 5
] A 43 o

. TSR BURE - 5% 00 WR i K
AR EEAMET
HEME -

. HEGEGE AL ¢ 5% B R I
B B 00 3% 1 HE R A AL >
375 15 1 SR AL 8 R AE ~ Uk
F BB AUME - By oK W R g B M
K PVDFM ¥ ¢ 7 b o 1 28
SR R T R R A A -

Jiv A H A 73 A5 45 2 44 AR
R K AR AR R A K
R gE Y-
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on

the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales of aluminium
profiles, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and

technical know-how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s

senior executive management regularly.

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

3 BEBESEWAE @)

(b)  EbHELE (A

(i)

2w~ B ER AT

T AT I VR BT Al B o3 T
] R 3 TE > A4 v AL
(RN 2 UNSERVNIE T3 5
LR TS

Wt K B 32T 2 %5 5% 5 03 T
Jir 7 AR 2 8 8 B % A oy v B
7 A 2 B ST e 5 O3 B AL
B I e P R 2
il B S 73 i 22 AT 4R 1 53 3 o
IR > Bk i 5 20 0[] 6 45
RIBE SN He— o F 1 55— )
MRt 2 W B (R E
JE S BLSE B ) A w5 AE
7 o

JRHA #7523 v M) 2 w7
KB B A 45 W i LAY
BELN B R A B 2 L
i ik A 2 53 B R o 23
B L B AR 40 Y ) A 4
B AT N B
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3  Revenue and segment reporting (continved) 3 BEEBR MG )

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)
i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is
set out below:

g iRl ()

(i) AR BERAM
(%)

MEE T ARNFER_F
—HAE+ A=+ —HIR4E
JE 2GR T B Ay AR
AT 5 > 1) A< 42 [ I s AT
FH N B2 A AL
CIE S 3 -was 27 K 1NN

Industrial aluminium  Construction aluminium
profiles profiles All other segments Total
THMmuH R By S 2 3 ait

2016 2015 2016
SERE CT-TE SFR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
T-5f - S3-EF A F-1F
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB’000  RMB 000

ANRBTH ARWTE ARBTH AR T ARETH ARWT 0 ARBTHR ARHT 0

Reportable segment revenue 8t ¥ 2 F it 4
Revenue from external RASMEF 2 idi
customers 968,861 757,894 4,522,819

4,138,807 85,016 81,128 5,576,696 4977829

Reportable segment profit % 4 Hi Al
Gross profit EA 112876 115014 673467

691,397 38,706 23350 825,049 829,761
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f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

CES VT S NE Y

Segment reporting (continued) (b) SRR ()
(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) AR S B R
profit
2016 2015
ZE N S s 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRWET T
Reportable segment profit KAALEINAET 2
derived from the Group’s EIE S I
external customers 825,049 829,761
Other income HoAh i £5 40,122 41,413
Distribution costs 3 8 A (123,835) (107,192)
Administrative expenses TR X (279,706) (293,970)
Finance costs Jt B A (117,950) (149,138)
Share of profit/(loss) of an JRE A% W 8 2 ) s R/
associate (J18) 7,611 (214)
Consolidated profit before FR A0 Al %5 i )
taxation 351,291 320,660
(iii)  Geographic information i) Al E

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
as well as analysis of the Group’s carrying
amount of segment assets and additions
to property, plant and equipment by
geographical market has not been presented
as over 96% (2015: 98%) of the revenue are
generated from the PRC market.

S 48 2 51 A< 4 [ 4 b [ 1T 3
B 5> 2 W 4 B 2 A8 A B DA
B A A [ 4y & 6 E W T
Bas B Mm%k
BT TR R B 396% (%
— H A 98% ) Z W2k Bk
B T e
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4  Other income 3 Al Wit £
2016 2015
ZE N TR —HA
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR F AR T
Interest income FlLE A 7,455 10,176
Government grants (7) BT Al B (1)
— Unconditional subsidies — A A A 13,500 10,494
— Conditional subsidies (Note 21) — ARG (M AE21) 17,314 13,524
Rental income LEE AN 14,735 15,584
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEU % (k518 ¥ 38 3,676 (6,842)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and Y2 R
equipment B i (16,558) (1,523)
40,122 41,413

()

Government grants in the form of cash subsidies
were received from various PRC government
authorities.

Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMB13,500,000 (2015:
RMB10,494,000) were unconditional. They were
funds to subsidise the operating expenses of the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group during the current
year.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were conditional
government grants and initially recorded as
deferred income. The amount of conditional
government grants charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB17,314,000 (2015:
RMB13,524,000) (Note 21).

()

SR B A U A B A R
i S5 J 2K B0 U At Bl

A0 1 1 ol

S N R ¥13,500,00000 (%
—H A AR %10,494,0007T) 2 &
- BT H Bh B AE B S E o B B
5 A T A B ) 2 o R R A D 2
R S PR o

A 1 1 il B

£k R i Bh 25 78 5 A4 E0OR A B
G W IG T B R AR WA o R E &
—NEFT A=+ HIEFE 2 4
A 18 15 2 A0 R 22 A O i B
SHE B NR®17,314,0000C ( %
— H A4 AR ¥13,524,0000C) (Hf
F21) -
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Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

5 BRBET A

BB AT A T3 A ER 7 (FEA) LR & JH AR

(crediting): i
(a)  Finance costs: (a) 0 A
2016 2015
ZE N e S 2
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T A R+ Ic
Interest expenses on bank loans SRATE K Z A E BT 102,765 129,090
Interest expenses on OB B 25 2 RSB S
discounted bills 15,127 18,885
Finance charges on obligations REMAESEZ
under finance leases W & T 58 1,227
Total borrowing costs AT A H AR 117,950 149,202
Less: interest expenses W TRANZ
capitalised into F 2B S EARAL
construction in progress - (64)
117,950 149,138
(b) Staff costs: (b) B A :
2016 2015
TR A e T
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥ T AR T
Salaries, wages and other W~ LE I H A A
benefits 467,897 441,233
Contributions to defined ] 5t 72 R IR AR I 5T #
contribution retirement plan [his=¢ 35,561 29,022
503,458 470,255
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(b)

Staff costs: (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the
local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible

employees’ salaries.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The Group and its employees in Hong Kong make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from
employees and employers are subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”) 30,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: HKD30,000).

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions

described above.

B Bt il e A (47)

(b)

BTRA: ()

AR v B A B 55 8 A B Sk B o
1] o o > ) 22 L ol b 5 BOR 1 B AL
Ak 0 52 A OB KRR A RE B (TR
DAY 3: AN T 000y F/ARSIF 3y
B AR BB e i T A 2 B R
e ke

T 5 o PE N B A w46 R 1)
B A RE A (TR 4] ) 1 4t
Ho AL KR HFERE Y H %
il AR wH MR 6T 52 iR B
A BRI S 5% [r] 5 A 4 5 B A )
W e —F—NE+H
=+ —H IR R B KR A
LA H AR B Ui A 30,0009 ¢ (—
K — T4 130,000 7T ) £ LR -

B b 2t A R A - A G2 Sl 0 sl S A+
18 B B PR S A 38 PR AR A AR 3
b R AT -
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Profit before taxation (continued)

(o)

Other items:

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

f 5 A it wE

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

B Bt il e A (47)

(¢ HiwiEH:

2016 2015
—E AN e S
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR Fii AR ¥ET T
Depreciation (i) iK1 280,468 176,964
Amortisation of lease TEAT A & #E 8 (h)
prepayments (1) 7,033 7,033
Research and W3 LA (i)
development costs (i) 23,898 23,477
Impairment losses on trade and 32 Gy B FCAb E i
other receivables (Note 15) AIE WA 1R (M AE15) 6,824 17,260
Auditors’ remuneration 727 5 B T <2
— audit services — HEIRFS 1,140 1,100
— other services — Ho A e 75 683 620
Cost of inventories (i) FE B AR (D) 4,751,647 4,148,068
Operating lease charges (i) mEME G 1,458 823

()

(i)

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2016 included RMB568,544,000
(2015: RMB432,225,000) relating to
depreciation, amortisation, operating lease
charges and staff costs, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 5(b)
for each of these types of expenses.

Research and development costs include
RMB10,228,000 (2015: RMB9,762,000)
relating to staff costs of employees which
amount is also included in total staff costs
as disclosed in Note 5(b).

1) HE _ _FX—-XNF+_H
=t —HIEFE A EEA
AW K E - s R
& S & B Tl 2 2
A B 568,544,0000T ( &
— A4 N R 432,225,000
JG) AR E REA L
ok B 55 (b) 23 B 4 5 1Y) 45 4
B S A -

(i)  BFEENA R B2 B T
AN K %10,228,0007T ( —
F— H A AR %9,762,000
Jt) > A I E A M
S(h) P 2 B TR A AR -
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(B 776 1581 5F > BEE LN KSR )
6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents:

&R IR AR RN Z P 7 B

(a)

REAIRE RN Z B

2016 2015
RN e el I
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T NRWEF T
Current tax PP 31 8 9H
Provision for PRC corporate o B A 2 BT 13 B 43
income tax 53,388 52,084
Provision for Hong Kong Profits 7 5 | 15 i 1 ff
Tax 1,118 930
54,506 53,014
Deferred tax HE %k Bt IH
Origination and reversal of B IR 22 5 7 AR B 3% [l
temporary differences (Kt7E22(b) )
(Note 22(b)) (1,691) 1,879
52,815 54,893
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of (i) R4 B 2 B I B % o IR 4

the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI.

(i1) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 16.5%).

B (T3 0 2 #E 155 1) LA
B B > A S 1 ) JE 430 A B
S S i LR 2 AT
o] By 4584

(i) EHBAABEMAE I EEE
SE-ANFt A=+ —
H 1k 4 B 2 Al 5t e 3R B i
FLA16.5% (% — T 4F
16.5% ) Bi K5+ -
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(iii)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to
PRC corporate income tax at a rate of
25% for 2016 (2015: 25%) except for
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Xingfa”), Xingfa Aluminium
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Xingfa”),
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan)
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Henan”) and Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Jiangxi”) which were certified
as “Advanced and New Technology
Enterprises” (“ANTE”) and entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% for
2016 (2015: 15%).

fo B B 5 e A PR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 B 159151 > B LI R HEA )

6 MEGHEXRNZINGH @)

(a) REGHEXRNZBESL: (H)

(iii)

R v [y 45 B8 Rl B B
5] > A 52 [ 22 v [ R 4 D
W — N EAE25% (—
F—HAF 1 25%) 2 B K HL
AR A 2 T AR B M SRR
BLE R AT RN A (TR R
BEE ) - B B 2E (AR
HRAR ([ A EEE])
JBE SR R 2E (T ) PR
oy a] (TELEE R ) B R 3R
HLBE 4R 2 (VL) A BRA A
(THLEEVITE |) Hofl [ e H
2] ([ i2E])
ZEREA I T NEEA
15% ( “F—HF 15%) 2
B S A B R o
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6

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to the new tax law in the PRC,
from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which
have an establishment or place of business
in the PRC but whose relevant income
is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the
PRC, will be subject to withholding tax
at the rate of 10% (unless reduced by tax
treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources
within the PRC. Pursuant to the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and the
related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident will be liable for a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends
from a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong
tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of
the PRC enterprise. As Guangdong Xingfa
is held by a Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiary, a rate of 5% is applicable to the

calculation of this withholding tax.

At 31 December 2016, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB3,096,000 (2015:
RMB3,690,000) (Note 22(b)(i)) have been
provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from
Guangdong Xingfa in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated since 1
January 2008.

6

PEFIRERNZ B )

(a)

REGRERNZBES: (H)

(iv)

FRAE R BB Bl i > th =%
JAE—H—H il 5
N R S B~ 5 T > 1
il AE R B T R R ST M - 1
PR TUAR 2 A7 BE WA B AR
FP I S R AT R TR
AEBBSZ ERRAMAZE
2 R B U A (TR
A E B 2 B ) 7 10%
Bl R (R FE 4% Bk 0 5 W
o) BIAN TE AR B o AR BE A b
B A s 5T o 0y (B R OB
e KA BE B i — 4
AR FBBRBERR S H
t A NN R A 2
25%8% DL i BERE > 11 A
RS R ZE w Hosk 5
4 20 B S B R5%
BUAN TE R B oty 5 JE R B g
Hy — [ A s s M T 2 A
| F/NEIE S S N E
Bl 2 Bl R 5% ©

WZE—=NAETZH = —
H o> DL BB 8% 7 v 71 %
Rt EH FEE/NFE—H—H
L JIT 2 A RS9 R ) TR
WM B A T Tt AR
3,096,0007C ( & — H.4F:
A B #3,690,00000) 2 1k 4t
BiIE A& (B E220p)(0) ) 1E
B -
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Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss (continued)

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

REFIRBERNZ B ()

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) 590 FH BE RG22 B JH B 3 B g 5t
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: va ) 3 WG
2016 2015
ZER AN e el I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EFi AR WT o
Profit before taxation BBt AT 6z A1) 351,291 320,660
Notional tax on profit before A R ) I 7 B R
taxation, calculated at the rates B2 BR BT I R 2
applicable to the jurisdiction 2 F B
concerned 91,827 83,208
Tax effect of non-deductible AT L B S 2 B R 2
expenses 837 758
Tax effect of share of (profit)/loss MEAk Wi 45 A 7] (# Fl) 7
of an associate &5 18 Bl 75 s 2 (159) 32
Effect of tax concession ol S 2 (35,800) (32,795)
Super deduction on research and & — A4 Z W5 X
development expenses in respect  JIFT 15k (1)
of 2015 (i) (3,296) -
Withholding tax effect on H [ e 2 W) R 4 e OR B VR
undistributed profits retained by I 1) T £ Bl 52 2
PRC subsidiaries (Note 22) (Mtit22) (594) 3,690
Income tax expense JT 15 8 B 52 52,815 54,893

(i) During the year of 2016, Guangdong
Xingfa and Xingfa Henan obtained approval
from local tax authorities to claim super
deduction on research and development
expenses. As such, the income tax for 2016
was reduced by RMB3,296,000 (2015: Nil).
Such additional tax deduction on research
and development expenses equals 50% of

the amount actually incurred.

() A E N AR R R B I
BLEE R C 8 H RS N ET I BR
TiFF- 2 B S 48 A5 3 M B R 4t
Weo R, B — NEZ
B> N R H3,296,00000
(B — T4 4E) o £ B 3
R85 BH S 2 BE AN 0 R A
ENE B ELE SR 2 50% ©
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

7  Directors’ emoluments 7 EHFEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section R YE T #5  F AR B 55383 (1) S i~ Al (9
383(1) of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of % 3 5 F £ Bk B SR 2 Bk i 2 3B S T
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits EoR /I

of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salary,
allowance Contribution
and benefits to retirement 2016
Fees in kind  benefit plan  Bonus paid Total
b AR BkwEA “E-RE
e REDAG At 3k 5% [SER 3N At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARWFH  ARWTE ARWTZ ARETZ ARETE

Executive directors UiEH

Mr. LIU Libin Btk 720 210 24 1,776 2,730
Mr. LUO Su i3S 636 278 = 1,599 2,513
Mr. LUO Riming BHWEL 536 270 17 1,599 2,422
Mr. LIAO Yuqing BEEEE 536 283 18 1,776 2,613
Mr. LAW Yung Koon FibT Y e 533 = 15 823 1,371
Mr. WANG Zhihua EHE#ERE 416 103 16 1,425 1,960
Mr. DAI Feng (-3 320 203 24 1,421 1,968
Non-executive director FoES

Mr. CHEN Shengguan B ot - - - - -

Independent non-executive B JE P47 % 3

directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BB sk 150 = = = 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fal B 250k 150 = = = 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #k3E8 54 180 = = = 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin etttk e A 150 = = = 150
Alternate director to PRz BIEESR

Mr. Liu Libin
Mr. WONG Siu Ki R 511 120 15 388 1,034

Total At 4,838 1,467 129 10,807 17,241
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 B 159151 > B LI R HEA )

7  Directors’ emoluments (continued) 7 HEWE 4w
Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits  to retirement 2015
Fees inkind  benefit plan ~ Bonus paid Total
B A IR ARAE A TE-NE
e REWHEG NS EAf AL Mgt

RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000
ABWTE  ARKTT ARKTLT ARFTEZ ARKTL

Executive directors WiTEH

Mr. LIU Libin Bl 720 198 26 1,540 2,484
M. LUO Su BERLE 636 264 - 1,386 2,286
Mr. LUO Riming A WEE 536 270 21 1,386 2,213
Mr. LIAO Yuging B £ B e 536 267 9 1,540 2,352
Mr. LAW Yung Koon B e 502 - 14 615 1,131
Mr. WANG Zhihua FEERE 416 193 13 966 1,588
Mr. DAI Feng Wt 320 198 26 1,232 1,776

Non-executive director FEPTEF

Mr. CHEN Shengguan BRI O e - - - - -
Independent VRS R

non-executive directors
Mr. CHEN Mo V3 ted 150 - - - 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu i 22 e A 150 - - - 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ #R3EME B4 180 - - - 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin Pl e 150 - - - 150
Alternate director to PRz B ESR

Mr. Liu Libin
Mr. WONG Siu Ki kR 481 120 14 100 715

Total gt 4,777 1,510 123 8,765 15,175




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 3% §5 2 478 i 5 BR A &)
Annual Report 2016 F#f

162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 755 e A PR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(553 B 159151 - BAR LI R HEA )

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five Individuals with the highest emoluments, all
of them (2015:5) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 7.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB298,476,000 (2015: RMB265,767,000)
and the weighted average number of 418,000,000 ordinary
shares (2015: 418,000,000 shares).

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and
therefore, the diluted earnings per share are the same as the

basic earnings per share.

I A L

HAREFHMA L 2 RER K
PN N SR TR (—F — A R
%) e

(53 R

B W BE A JG R T MR 8 AR N ) 5E RE 25 R
HOME A6 3 AN IR 15298,476,0007C (&
— H A N R ¥265,767,00000) K ¥ 8
N HEF- 4 #418,000,000 /8% ( —F — TL4F -
418,000,000/ ) 5F & o

BE - F-ARNER_F-AF+ " H
= H AR N A B BT T A v
A o WA T A B R S A L R A
[ o
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&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 W3-~ Wb Bk i
Office
Buildings Motor  equipment Construction
and plants ~ Machinery Vehicles  and others in progress Total
T
M B & Wil REM  GRTH At
RMB’000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ANRBF ARBFL ARNETIL ARWTLT ARETT ARFFIL

Cost: JRA :
At 1 January 2015 A S 2

—H—H 977,563 1,227,448 26,361 139,986 57,188 2,428,546
Additions WE - 158,221 1,321 5,760 35,944 201,246
Transfer from construction in progress EREAERETRE 42,939 31,609 26 1,149 (75,723) -
Disposal ik - (2,007) (110) - - (2.117)
At 31 December 2015 BHEF—HE

+ZA=1+—H 1,020,502 1,415,271 27,598 146,895 17,409 2,627,675
At 1 January 2016 B E =N

—H—H 1,020,502 1,415,271 27,598 146,895 17,409 2,627,675
Additions NE 4,062 145,635 1,572 3,148 31,843 186,260
Transfer from construction in progress EEAEETR 15,310 19,924 67 - (35,301) -
Disposal Rk (599) (34,647 (978) - - (36,224)
At 31 December 2016 R

+ZA=+—H 1,039,275 1,546,183 28,259 150,043 13,951 2,777,711
Accumulated depreciation: Bt :
At 1 January 2015 RoF-nLA

—~A—H (16,752)  (373,980) (17,313) (77,762) - (545.,807)
Charge for the year AR (28,479) (116,808) (2,329) (29,348) - (176,964)
Written back on disposals 48 o] - 488 76 - - 564
At 31 December 2015 R F— A

tZA=+—H (105,231) (490,300) (19,566) (107,110) - (722,207)
At 1 January 2016 BRI

—HA—H (105,231) (490,300) (19,566) (107,110) - (722,207)
Charge for the year AR (29,4100 (231,343) (1,916) (17,799) - (280,468)
Written back on disposals R 194 18,061 894 - = 19,149
At 31 December 2016 RF—AAE

tTZHA=+—H (134,447) (703,582) (20,588) (124,909) - (983,526)
Net book value: R i A
At 31 December 2016 AT

+ZA=1+—H 904,828 842,601 7,671 25,134 13,951 1,794,185
At 31 December 2015 RoE—HAE

+ZA=+—H 915,271 924,971 8,032 39,785 17409 1,905,468

J
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10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

All properties owned by the Group are located in
the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is in
the process of applying for the title certificates
of certain properties with carrying value of
approximately RMB248,150,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB258,986,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
use of and the conduct of operating activities at the
properties referred to above are not affected by the
fact that the Group has not yet obtained the relevant
property title certificates.

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB483,163,000 (2015: RMBS535,009,000) were
pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group as
at 31 December 2016. (Note 19(b))

As at 31 December 2016, there was no equipment
held under the finance lease (31 December 2015:
net book value of RMB85,122,000).

Change in estimates

The aluminium profiles are extruded or forced
though moulds in different shapes, which are
recorded under machinery and are designed to
fulfil respective sales orders. The management
had previously expected that the moulds could be
generally used for 4 years, which is in line with the
average sales cycle of aluminium profiles. With the
technology improvement in aluminium engineering,
the sales cycle of most aluminium profiles were
less than 4 years, which in turn led to be shorter of
the expected useful life of moulds.

10

Wk W Bt a)
() SR AT A R 2 1 i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

[ o

BB H W AL IEE AR
TR -NET A= HZER
8 #) B N R 248,150,0007T ( %
— FH A N R #5258,986,0000C) &
T I RS o AN
R N Lk LA bl
X e h R N PN S
W A BT AH B ) 2 SERE R 5 A2
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R o

RoE—RNFETFA=+—H R
T 7 E B N R 5483,163,0000T (-
T — A4 AR ¥535,009,0000C)
25T W5 O IR R 2 A 4L [ 4R AT
B YER o (HfaE19b))

R TN EF =1 —H %
4 1A B A B TR RR A AT o] B
(ZF—HFE+ A =+—H k@
T H A N R %85,122,0000C) °

fili 5t 5% By

5 T RF AT e AL JRR A B2 A A A
IR > 2 G BBITE M 2R JH H P g
Bk > KR BCRT AR 0 G A I B TR
B PE R 5T i TR YA — i AT fi 4
AF > I B % Y B ) S 24 A A —
Bo BE 2 B A TR 00 B9 PO - R
H8 73 8 T A 1) 0 1 D TR 44F > T
K] U 4 AL L 4 T 300 {6 ) 4 J00 A 0 o
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10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iv)

Change in estimates (continued)

In addition, the management previously expected
that the moulds could retain a residual value of
20.51% after 4 years’ usage. However, based
on past years’ experience and current market
conditions, the residual value of these moulds was

minimal.

Considering the above facts, circumstances and
report from internal technicians, the management
changed in estimates for the expected useful
life of moulds to 3 years with no residual value.
As a result, the expected useful life of the
moulds decreased and its estimated residual

value decreased. The effect of these changes on

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

10 W3E -~ W7 Bkt (ar)
Gv)  fEtaEs ()

Ve Ak > 45 B Sl iy TE AL n] AR 447
i i 01 4% 13 £520.5 1 %% ik 15 {8 - 4%
T - AR5 3R FE AR B S B AT T I > 3%
S AL ) e i 1 AR A

S bt = L R N R il B
Z o A R A B A TN 08
G B34 HOREA R R
{6« PRI O > A HL 2 6 ) 4
B0 B FC Al TR R AR (E 980D - % 5
5 B S 4T 25 B S0 (RE BRI T8 45
A ] HERR) A E R MR AR ] Y R

depreciation expense, recognized in ‘cost of sales’ HUE
in current and future periods, is as follows:
RMB 000 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
NRET T ZE-RN “F L ZFNE ZEFNE ZEIFE
Increase/(decrease) in 8 B S s/
depreciation expense (B
93,306 47,039 9,374 (15,094) (16,204)
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11 Lease prepayments TH AT 4
2016 2015
) TR A4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ANR¥ T
Cost: B :
At 1 January and 31 December w—H—H K

F=A=1—H ey 352,929

Accumulated amortisation: Bl sy .
At 1 January w—H—H (51,435) (44,402)
Charge for the year AL JE T (7,033) (7,033)
At 31 December RtZA=t—-8 (58,468) (51,435)
Carrying amount: R THI A -
At 31 December Bt=—H=+—H 294,461 301,494
(i) Lease prepayments represent the Group’s land use TR A B A A H B 2 &

rights on leasehold land located in the PRC. As at

31 December 2016, the remaining period of the

land use rights ranges from 36 to 43 years.

(i1) The lease prepayments with carrying value of
RMB294,461,000 (2015: RMB228,660,000) was

pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group as

at 31 December 2016 (Note 19(b)).

T A RE o N
T HZ=Z+—H Ll R %
TAE A F36E 434

AR —NETZH =T —H R
T {8 25 A R #5294,461,0000C ( %
— 4 N R #228,660,0000C) 2
TE A AR 4 CLHEHR > 1R 2 A 4 [ 4R AT
B YER (M 7E19b) ) -
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12 Investments in subsidiaries 12 REBARZHRE
The following list contains only the particulars of R AR WA
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or BEZWE AR RS A W #H
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary HAF A Z B AR S 7 52 i -

unless otherwise stated:

Place and date Particulars of
of incorporation/  issued and paid up
Name of companies establishment capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
at L/ S#TR
kA WL R F B BB A A Bl B3 3/
Group’s
effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
interest ~ Company  subsidiary
REE mARE R E A
I A i
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007 Dollars
(“USD”) 1,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited RBIE LR R 1,000 G B
([ Xingfa BVI]) ZEEFLETAZH ([%5x])
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars 100% - 100%  Sales of aluminium
(“Xingfa Hong Kong”) 14 April 2008 1,000 profiles
BB (R AR i 10007 70 HE BB
(TELEEE]) “EENE
pER i
Guangdong Xingfa PRC RMB 360,040,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
Aluminium Co., Ltd 26 May 2006 of aluminium profiles
TR SR BB AR R () )
(“Guangdong Xingfa”)
FORBLB 8 A R /) I N EERHE R
(TRREE]) “ERFNE 360,040,000
LAZAAH
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB 130,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
B3 3 (CRR) A PR () i) 7 July 2009 of aluminium profiles
(“Xingfa Chengdu”)
BB R (VR A IR i) i AR EERHE R

([ SEENELALE  130,000,0007C
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W A R 2 BB )

12 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 12

Place and date Particulars of

of incorporation/  issued and paid up
Name of companies establishment capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
AL,/ S#Tk
kA L K % 1 BB AGHE WA B il FEREH
Group’s
effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
interest ~ Company  subsidiary
REW mARE hRE A
B i i
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB 100,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. 30 May 2012 of aluminium profiles
BORBLBHRSE (L) A W2 (o) i)
(“Xingfa Jiangxi”)
BORBRIAE OLR) HRA A G)6) TR INH EERHE R
(THEITH]) SE-CE 100,000,0007¢
H=1H
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB 100,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sales
(Henan) Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 of aluminium profiles
BERBUE SR 3E (VTR ) AR R0 i)
(“Xingfa Henan”)
RORERAE () HRA GG TR AR R E SRR
(TEETR ) SEFELATR 1000000007
Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC RMB 8,000,000 100% - 100%  Development, sale
LT EEFBEREARAT 5 June 2013 and management of
(i)(iii) (“Xingfa Real Estate”) properties
o I B8 5 A LA ) R AR ELL S
(i) ([HEFHE]) “E-ZEARLA 8,000,0007C B R
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Trading of aluminium
LT S A RN A () i) 6 February 2015 profiles
(“Xingfa Trading”)
o i 55 A PR ) i) HH N BEMES
(TRLEMmR]) SE-REZAAR 100000007
1) The English translation of the Company names (1) YNEIEY A S G AL

are for reference only. The official names of these

companies are in Chinese.

(i1) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

(iii)
liability.

The subsidiaries are companies with limited

R T 2 B S PSCARE

(i) %A A F 2 A i g T A

(iii)

25BN E A REAE LT
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Interest in an associate

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

13 R o H Z HE 4R

A SR F A B s R RE 2 R AR A 5 3
AL HE ik AR RERE AT

Proportion of
ownership interest

A HE L
Form of Place of Particulars ~ Group’s
Name of business incorporation of issued and  effective Held by a Principal
associate structure and business paid up capital interest subsidiary activities
C#Tk A% i I 2 W)
i 7 4 1 FEHREWER kM B o BREAEN  AREG Fif EEEH
Jiangxi Province Jingxing Limited liability People’s Republic of Registered capital of 80% (ii) 80% (i)~ Manufacturing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing company China RMBS5,000,000 and sales of
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Jingxing”) aluminium panels
VLTS8 5 BLER R il i
HIRAT (@)
LA RERBRHEERAT  ARAR o \ R LA B o M E A A RSB R R
(LT RE)) i) A #5,000,0007C
(1) The English translation of the company name is for (1) NG g R
reference only. The official name of the company is NP WA YL
in Chinese.
(i)  20% of Jiangxi Jingxing’s paid up capital was (i)  VLVE 5 B 2 20%4% 2 1A dr B

contributed by B M R B EER G R A A
(in English for identification only, Guangzhou
Jingxing Construction Technology Co., Ltd.)
(“Guangzhou Jingxing”). The Group has entered
into the contractual arrangement with Guangzhou
Jingxing. According to the agreement, Guangzhou
Jingxing has control over Jiangxi Jingxing. Hence,
the Group considered that Jiangxi Jingxing is an

associate of the Group.

Jiangxi Jingxing, the only associate in which the Group

participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted

market price is not available.

During 2016, the amount of the Group’s share of profit
from this associate and the unrealised profit from
transactions with this associate are RMB7,611,000 (2015:
share of loss of RMB214,000) and RMB488,000 (2015:

RMB689,000), respectively.

SRR R A (TR R
BL|) o A A B R S B ET
SE A AT B o AR T el o RN S B
42 T VI P S B TR A £ T
ViR EA AL E B A

TG S5 B A 4 [ OfE — 2 BRL A g A D
FIF BT A SE TR - A M R

e AN SN S ) M = /NN )
T R K B 5% W % N W I 3 B AR 2 R B
B %5 K & 48 4 Bl B N B HE7,611,0000C (-
E— h 4 EAL R A R #214,00000) K&

R H488,00098 (= B —F 7 : A R HES

689,0007C) °
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(B 53 B 159151 > BAR LI R HEA R )

14 Inventories 14 &

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) R EEA IR R A 2 7 &4

financial position comprise:

2016 2015
SEORE SR W
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T AT

Aluminium profiles SRR A A
manufacturing
Raw materials JE M K} 274,478 143,275
Work in progress TE 3 82,074 73,261
Finished goods Loy 352,628 290,021
709,180 506,557
Property under development FEERBYE
for sale
Lease prepayment TE A L4 47,388 47,388
Deed tax ) 4,760 4,760
Construction cost A A 202,130 119,557
254,278 171,705
963,458 678,262
The balance of property under development for sale P65 B8 e b W) SEBR AR TE R 8 — 4R
is expected to be recovered after more than one ST o

year.
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Inventories (continued)

(b)

The analysis of the amount of inventories

5 W 5 A it Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

14 HF8(#)

(b) TR P Rt AR 2 fF BB

recognised as an expense and included in profit or SEHTANE
loss is as follows:
2016 2015
RN SE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARWETE
Carrying amount of EEABEIRmME
inventories sold 4,751,647 4,148,068

Certain inventories with carrying value of
RMB100,000,000 were pledged as securities
for bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: RMB40,000,000)
(Note 19(b)).

AT E—RNFE+_HA=+—H I
T {8 25 A\ B %100,000,00000 2 % T
A2 B O HE A A 2 A 4 1 R AT B 3K
2R (CE—FAETH =+ —
H: AR #40,000,0000C) (57

19(b)) °
Trade and other receivables 15 &5 K 3 At g Wi 5k JH
2016 2015
ZE N e S 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N R+
Trade debtors 22 5 HE WU 3K 846,599 646,697
Bills receivable JRE i 675,086 585,037
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R IR A
(Note 15(b)) (Mf#E15(b) ) (32,885) (27,906)
1,488,800 1,203,828
Other receivables A B i K TE 13,882 17,260
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W R IR A (1,845) -
12,037 17,260
Prepayments and deposits TR B % % 81,191 76,971
1,582,028 1,298,059
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15

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Certain bills receivable with carrying value of
RMB209,216,000 were pledged as securities for bank
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB260,292,000) (Note 19(b)).

The Group’s trade and other receivables included amounts
due from related parties of RMB78,695,000 (31 December
2015: RMB58,672,000) (Note 27(b)(i)). The remaining
current trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
(a) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging

analysis of trade debtors and bills receivables

(which are included in trade and other receivables)

15

88 5 Be At Wk JH (40)

MoF—ARNFTA=1+—H RHES
AR #5209,216,00000 2 %5 T E = 24K
PPEL ARLEBMBITERZ R (ZF—A
FE+TA=+—H: AR%260,292,0007C)
(Mtzt19¢b)) -

K] 2 28 Gy I At Ak T L 455 1 i
iy 2 HIA N R 78,695,000 ( —F— 1
£+ H=Z+—H: AR¥58,672,0007T)
(BitaE27(b)(@) ) » BLREER R 2 58 5 B HoAth
WAL T T — A P A T A R B S o

(a)  WRES T
TR IR > R 8RS B RS I 40

IR R BB 4 2 5 o B SR A B B G
SR TGRS 5 K H At B8 ik

based on the invoice date and net of allowance for IH) ZRE AT -
doubtful debts, is as follows:

2016 2015
ZEN T HAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ Fi AR T
Within 1 month —fMHRN 879,189 638,927
1 to 3 months — & ={AH 394,522 354,993
3 to 6 months =ZE N A 181,662 178,111
Over 6 months B 7S R H 33,427 31,797
1,488,800 1,203,828

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within
60 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
Note 24(a).

22 G M A R R e A S A B 2
W60 H 90 H Ik £ 1 - 4 B A< 4
B 2 {5 B BUR 2 3 — 25 W05 O B
5E24(a) ©
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors

5 W 5 A it Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

15 R5 KA ERKIE 4)
(b)  WAHNE IR

A B 22 5 B U R R M R R 2
BE B HER 1A AR P AL Bk > BRIE AR
A J 5 A i [m] < 2 AT REPE AN K
TEBERE DL > W ey 1R EL R 58 5
B Wi SR 2 B W 9 v (MR

and bills receivable directly (Note 1(h)). 1(h)) °
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts N R IR 2 BB
during the year, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E N e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fr AR T
Balance at 1 January W—H—H 2 &5 8k 27,906 11,111
Impairment losses recognised SR ERSREN Fi] 18,570 25,597
Write back i [ (13,591) (8,337)
Uncollectible amounts written off /A~ B Ui [|] 4 4F fif & - (465)
Balance at 31 December Wt H=+—HZ4%% 32,885 27,906

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade
debtors of RMB33,498,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB28,948,000) was individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivable related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivable is not expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB32,885,000 was recognised (2015:
RMB25,327,000).

Wo_E—AR"NFET+_HA=1+—H"
A SEH 2 A8 5 I AR BN R
33,498,0007C ( & — F 4+ = H
=+ —H: AR %28,948,0007T)
AR B B E 2y B B W - 5% 8 R
T (EL B W K T BRLAT BB IR B 2 K
A B A AL SR K
R N g E S AN el 3
32,885,00070 Z & & R MR A (=
E— A4 AR H25,327,00000) 2
TERR
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15

16

17

(0

Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 2 5 B it JE W sk JE (42)
Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not 3P AR PR Z 2 T W WAL R ok S B Wi
impaired 7
2016 2015
“E A -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Neither past due nor impaired A 9 75 A A 1,444,123 1,172,184
Less than 1 month past due i b — AR A 35,383 6,742
1 to 3 months past due i — & = A 4,987 12,584
3 to 6 months past due i = F N A 3,694 11,276
1,488,187 1,202,786
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired A% 48 3 7N A U (2 B A 3 T B
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there AN I R R IHRL R 2 Z B
was no recent history of default. AR -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired 3 A 1E A B 2 TR AR T B A B
relate to a number of independent customers that FARIEZS Bk KREB LA
have a good track record with the Group. Based HRA - RIBBERE R EER
on past experience, management believes that no BPAC SN T PN T
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of AT B ER B AT LA A SOl IR - A S
these balances as there has not been a significant R T NI 00 TR 5 A R A e
change in credit quality and the balances are still A -
considered fully recoverable.
Pledged deposits 16 CHFEHR
Pledged deposits mainly represented bank deposits CHM AR FEERC N TRITIEL A
pledged to bank as securities for certain banking facilities TERATE & (M FE19b) ) ~ EAT AR (Bt 7
(Note 19(b)), bills payable (Note 18), and other deposits, 18) Z AR 2 SRATAF 3K > T ik 49 J 1%
required by the local laws and regulations. FUHLE 1 oAt A7 3K
Cash and cash equivalents 17 BERBEFED

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(a BERREFHMORE:

2016 2015
SR SR

RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥ T ARW T

Cash at bank and on hand SRAT X F B &

443,431

416,012
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(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 77 150151 > AL R WS 7 )

17 BERBEEEY @)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)  BRBLET A BSE B R &2 B
generated from operations: MR :
2016 2015
RN S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥T ANR¥ T
Profit before taxation R Bt i i A 351,291 320,660
Adjustments for: BN 5 25 I A
Depreciation e 5(c) 280,468 176,964
Amortisation of lease e g AT A &
prepayments 5(c) 7,033 7,033
Impairment losses on trade 3¢ & % At M8 g 3 I
and other receivables RIEN ZF 0 5(c) 6,824 17,260
Interest income FLE A 4 (7,455) (10,176)
Finance costs BB A 5(a) 117,950 149,138
Loss on disposal of EYE- BB R
property, plant and M2 e
equipment 4 16,558 1,523
Share of (profit)/loss of JRE A — IR B 2 ]
an associate (A e 8 13 (7,611) 214
Unrealised profit from A& g B — [
transactions with an NI D]
associate R 5 Bl i A 13 (488) (689)
Net foreign exchange gain 4 i Ui #5 5 40 (4,902) (3,749)
Changes in working capital: &% &4 7 % &)
Change in inventories pen ety ) (285,196) (46,655)
Change in trade and other 38 5 T FoAth I e
receivables HIEZ 5 1) (290,306) 217,562
Change in trade and other 38 5 S FLAth & £+
payables I 2 55 ) 365,779 (311,204)
Change in deferred income  #E JE WL A 7 % &) (9,091) 259
Cash generated from EBREEZHE
operations 540,854 518,140
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18

Trade and other payables 18 2 5 B H Al BE £+ 5k JH
2016 2015
RN TR~ AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ANR¥TF T
Trade payables 22 5y WA IR 683,596 530,181
Bills payable (i) JEAST B4 (i) 637,850 471,949
Receipts in advance TE N FIH 124,281 117,033
Accrued payroll and benefits JE T L K AR 135,220 117,579

Other payables and accruals H Al 8 AR K IE

JE st 2 166,604 145,600
Deferred income (Note 21) ALY A (M FE21) 25,125 25,294
1,772,676 1,407,636

Amounts due to related parties are included in trade and
other payables, the breakdown of which is set out in Note
27(b)(ii). All of the trade and other payables are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year or
are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis
of trade payables and bills payable (which are included in
trade and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

22 Gy B FoAth A 3K T £ 45 B A IR 2 K
TH > HREIE O B 5E27(0) () » BT 28 5 K&
JH At B AT R I TR S0 A — 4 DR AT e R
F A i SR

T R > 588 5 HU R 2 52 ) A+
AIE N AT R (KT R AZE 5 B HoAth g
FHERIE) Z BREE P Hr N T

2016 2015
—FA SR

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Fi ANRETF T

Within 1 month — 1 A 496,569 389,080
1 to 3 months — £ =i H 653,090 397,157
3 to 6 months —E=NAHA 145,557 198,503
Over 6 months B N A 26,230 17,390
1,321,446 1,002,130

1) Bills payable were secured by pledged bank
deposits of RMB206,900,000 as at 31 December
2016 (31 December 2015: RMB179,893,000)
(Note 16).

(1) W oE—RNEFT+ A =1T—H>
2295 DL R #206,900,0007C (-
E-THEFTFH=+—H:  AR¥
179,893,0007C) 2 B 4 #f SR 17 17 3K
WOk (Htitie) -
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Loans and borrowings 19 HExEEE
(a) Loans and borrowings were repayable as (a) Bk B As B RER T 5 H B E s -
follows:
2016 2015
SECNE CF R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T N BRI T T

Within one year —%*nN 1,384,150 1,699,467
After 1 year but within 2 years — BT AFE RN 402,651 175,000
After 2 years but within 5 years WHEBBERER 16,601 126,000
L S 301,000
1,803,402 2,000,467
(b) Terms (b) 168 3%
2016 2015
RN SR —RAE
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARW T NBRWET T

Secured bank loans AR AT B 1,703,402 1,961,774
Unsecured bank loans MG P ERAT B K 100,000 38,693

1,803,402 2,000,467
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19 Loans and borrowings (continued) 19 BEHXEEE @)
(b)  Terms (continued) (b) WK ()
The secured bank loans were secured by the T W A7 SR ERAT B R DA AR
following assets of the Group as at the end of the EE DL & VR o
reporting period.
2016 2015
ZE RN e Sl
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Carrying value of assets: 7 MR T
Property, plant and equipment L/ESY: & ]
(Note 10) (Mtit10) 483,163 535,009
Lease prepayments (Note 11) AR & (Mt at11) 294,461 228,660
Bills receivable (Note 15) MW 208 (Y aE1S) 209,216 260,292
Pledged deposits (Note 16) A AF R (K FEL6) 1,062 84,263
Inventories (Note 14) T8 (Mit14) 100,000 40,000
Total REt 1,087,902 1,148,224

As at 31 December 2016, banking facilities of the
Group totalling RMB4,006,338,000 (31 December
2015: RMB3,564,542,000) were utilised to the
extent of RMB2,310,959,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB2,221,955,000).

As at 31 December 2016, seven (2015: five) of
the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of
the subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios, which are
commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in Note 24(b). As at 31
December 2016, none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2015:Nil).

W oE—RNEF A=+ —H>
AR A 3L R #4,006,338,000
T —F-HFEFZA=+—H:
N R #3,564,542,0007C ) Z 4R 4715
B AR %2,310,959,0000C ( —
E-RAEFTF_H=+—H: AR¥
2,221,955,00070) £8 L&) H -

REF—RNEFT+ A =+T—H &K
SEE-CIHE (T FE A TIE) ST
BRI BB AR S T &
EAMRLEZ L (8 R4
Tl M A 5T o 2 R HE) 15 O I E
HoMALEERZERLL O
B2 A5 EHPR BRI R - AR EE
EMEREERETZERN-F
B A S 0 S 0 B R B 2
HE— R U B EE24(b) o A
—ANEFTHZ1—H i ERER
LA R IRRGE R Y (%
— A JE) o
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Obligations under finance leases

20 MEMBEEME
2016 2015
“EFOA S
Present value Present value

of the minimum Total minimum of the minimum  Total minimum

lease payments lease payments lease payments lease paymems

A R IEA 5 R E RIEHE

sk 2 B BE¢L B E vl R

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000

ARBFL  ARWFZ ARFTT ARWTZ

Within 1 year —ER - - 6,712 6,770
Less: total future interest expenses W RARA BB - (58)
Present value of lease obligations MERE2BE - 6,712

Deferred income 21 EREWA
The movements in deferred income as stated under current SIAWE LIERE B EIH N 2B A 2
and non-current liabilities are as follows: SRENUNE
2016 2015
I Ay e e G
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥Fi N R+
At 1 January w—H—H 82,063 81,804
Received during the year T4 A AR 8,223 13,783
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 4) FE G N TSR (K aE4) (17,314) (13,524)
At 31 December mrt_H=+—H 72,972 82,063
Less: current portion included in trade W 5 A ZE Gy B A AT
and other payables (Note 18) I 2 Ui B A A
(Mfit18) (25,125) (25,294)
47,847 56,769

Deferred income represents government grants obtained
for the purposes of subsidising the Group’s operation
costs and sponsoring the costs of acquisition of fixed
assets incurred by the Group. Government grants received
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as deferred income.

AR SE WS AL U 7 4 I 22 7 A I
By A 432 0 {5 B [ R O E A 2 A T R
153 2 BUR A BY & o B U 22 B #iff BY <82 40
BT R A B IR LR TR e B A A AE WA
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21 Deferred income (continued)

Government grants received to subsidise the operation

costs are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic

basis in the same periods in which the related costs of

operation are incurred.

Government grants received for sponsoring costs of

acquisition of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss

over the useful life of the asset.

22 Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement

of financial position represents:

21 BEREWA ()

R T 752 B 0 4 A
A0 2 e 2 A 0 4 R B
A3

LW [ T I A 2 O A TR R A
B RF A B < 4 6 A 48 i A e

.
o

22 ERE MR LR N Z BB

(a) TR MBI DL N Z B B IR

1 :

2016 2015
SEoNE SEEA
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt AN RWT T

At 1 January

Provision for PRC income tax
(Note 6(a))

Provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax (Note 6(a))

Income tax paid

At 31 December

w—H—H

H R i £ 4 A
(Mf7t6(a))

B Vs W15 B
(Mit6ca))

SENDIRES

R+ =H=+—H

25,197 26,119
53,388 52,084
1,118 930
(52,189) (53.936)
27,514 25,197
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Income tax in the consolidated statement 22 %A MBERIEN Z 5B

)
of financial position (continued) (#%)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) O T 0 90 %iE ot VL M LM
@) Movement of each components of @) A i I
deferred tax assets and liabilities AEHan2EE
The components of deferred tax assets/ AP IR A G5 BAFS R UL R TR
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated R IEE E (A
statement of financial position and the A INCER Ay B 2 B R
movements during the year are as follows:
Unrealised
Employee profit from
Impairment of benefits  Impairment intra-group  Government
non-current acerued loss on bad transfer of grantsin ~ Undistributed
financial butnot  and doubtful certain land use deferred  profit of PRC
assets paid debts Tax loss right income  subsidiaries Total
SEPATR
WRET LN Ll
g kR RERRA fEmEEL:  BEUANZ W AR
SHEERE AR B REEE  AEBEN O BEEBE  AAREN At

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETE  ARETFL  ARETFL  ARBFC  AREFE  AREFT  ARETE  ARETFL

Deferred tax assets/ i 2 B
(liabilities) arising from %/ (£
At 1 January 2015 REF-RE—-H—H 1787 549 1,765 198 23,494 11,861 - 39,654
(Charged)feredited to profit M 1Y (41F%) /3 A
or loss (Note 6(a)) (##t6) - (549) 2519 (198) - 3 (3,690) (1,879)
At 31 December 2015 REZ—1
+oA=1-H 1,787 - 4284 - 23494 11,900 (3,690) RININ
At 1 January 2016 REZ-AE-—H 1,787 - 4284 - 23494 11,900 (3,690 1,115
Credited/(charged) to profit I & HFHA/ (1)
or loss (Note 6(2)) (Hitea) - - 1,027 1,024 - (954) 594 1,691
At 31 December 2016 REF-RE
FZA=1—H 1,787 - 5311 1,024 23494 10,946 (3,09) 39,466
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22 Income tax in the consolidated statement 22
of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

4

(7

(b)

5

T & B IR DL R Z B 1 B

L il 20 8 Bt 9 A % AR
(#)

(i) HAT T B R DA 0 B

2016 2015
—E N B A
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR EF AR ¥T T
Net deferred tax assets A GE A ABS IR L AR 2 1R
recognised in the 8 TH R
consolidated statement of
financial position 42,562 41,465
Net deferred tax liability i %¢ & BAHS IR DL R HERE 2
recognised in the 10 S 3 I B AR
consolidated statement of
financial position (3,096) (3,690)
39,466 37,775
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) A THE 58 2 WE #E B JH £ 1

The Group is subject to 5% withholding tax on
dividends receivable from its PRC subsidiaries
in respect of their profits generated since
1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2016,
deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary
differences relating to such undistributed profits
of RMB1,049,776,000 (2015: RMB797,109,000)
were not recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that those profits will not be

distributed in the foreseeable future.

AL B AR AR B P B g/ 8
TARER)NAE— H — H LT AR i A
PP JRE S FBEE BN 5 9% 1 AT AR © |l
AR N w2 ) 5% 5 W N R
3@ R | AT (A N I ST N
TR A B A WO —F—RAE
H =+ —H > M Rt B 5% %5 R 7 IR
T Al N E #1,049,776,0007C ( %
— H A AR ¥797,109,00070) A
W8] 114 17 TR i A e 90 A T i o
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends 23 JBA - fl i R i R
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HE %3 3B 1y 5% B)
The reconciliation between the opening and AR B A3 W A 45 A 2 AR B AR
closing balances of each component of the Group’s K& 2 BHR RN 45 G Mt 2 8
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated o AN w7 HE A5 AR 4 R 4
statement of changes in equity. Details of the W B AR R 2 S B s s N

changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

The Company
KA
Retained
earnings/
(accumu-
Share Share Other Exchange  lated losses)
capital premium reserve reserve  REER/ Total
123 o b ¥ HA it EipG  (RiER) it
Note RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
Wit ARETE  AREFT  AREFLT  ARETT  ARETT  ARFTX
Note 23 () Note 23 Note 23 Note 23
() (d)(ii) ()
Wit23 ) Witz Wi Witz
()(i) (d)(ir) ()(v)
Balance at 1 January 2015 REZE—HE
—A—HZ&R 371 179,568 441976 580 (1,652) 618,203
Changes in equity for 2015 CE-LEEREE
Profit for the year R A - - - - 70,167 70,167
Other comprehensive income Kb 2EigA - - - (48.618) - (48.618)
Total comprehensive income for 4 2 L A A%
the year - - - (48,618) 70,167 21,549
Dividends approved in respect of 8 % A4t 2 it &L
previous year 23(b) - - - - (30,152) (30,152)
Balance at 31 December 2015 and ~ F =% —F 4
at 1 January 2016 toAZT-RR
I St S i
bai 2 371 179,568 41976 48,038) 32,363 609,600
Changes in equity for 2016 ZR-NEE
s
Profit for the year ERRA - - = = 7,533 7,533
Other comprehensive income R ON - - = 39,580 - 39,580
Total comprehensive income for 2 F i A 2848
the year - - - 39,580 7,533 47,113
Dividends approved in respect of  §t £ HIEZ IR
previous year 23(b) - - - (31,895) (31,895)

Balance at 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF

S EN R :P4 i 3 2 3731 179,568 441976
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 23 WA ~ il i B B, (47)

(b)  Dividends b ’E
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders @) JE fif K AF P 2 A 4 5] B s B
of the Company attributable to the year FIR B
2016 2015
ZE N TR —HA
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T NRWT T

Final dividends proposed it ¥t 5 # K 1% @ 3k
after the end of reporting YR A} 2 & i /It B

period (2015: HKD9 (= F—H4:

cents per ordinary share) % &5 48 oW Al - 31,518
The Board did not recommend the payment HHREAERRMNEE -F
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 —NEF+ZA=+—HI
December 2016 (2015: HKD9 cents per FEZRMRE (ZF—1
ordinary share). AR IR A 9 WEAIL) -
The final dividend proposed after the end of TR A IR AR R IR 2 R
the reporting period has not been recognised A e 7 0 R 5 A K e R
as a liability at the end of the reporting A

period.
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J A ~ fifi i B B B, (a7)

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23

(b)  Dividends (continued) (b) IS ()

(ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders i) REAHERITN S L—MH
of the Company attributable to the B BAF PEZ JE AT K 2 v s
previous financial year, approved and VEY P
paid during the year

2016 2015
—FA S 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR EF AR ¥ET T
Final dividends in respect A 4F (A 4it ifE J¢
of the previous financial ~ JR{} 2 b —1A
year, approved and paid WP B 2 R
during the year, of HKD9 % & & % 35 48 At
cents per ordinary share Ul ( & — F4F
(2015: HKD?9 cents per B % 4 o s )
ordinary share) 31,895 30,152
(c) Share Capital (c) J% A<
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CFETREE HFBIR -
2016 2015
ZEONE e Sl I
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares Amount
Bt ¥4 SR 1 it by 4B fiiEex
RMB RMB
equivalents equivalents
('000)  HKD'000 000 ('000)  HKD'000 000
(1) Tk i (FHE) T T
ARETT ANRBT T
At 1 January and at 31 December B=A—HR
BrZA=+—H 418,000 4,180 3,731 418,000 4,180 3,731
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23

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance on
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.
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23  Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents waivers of
liabilities due to related parties.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity

shareholders.

PRC statutory reserves can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to equity shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies with functional currency other
than RMB.

5 W 5 A it Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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23

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e)

®

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2016 was
RMB621,087,000 (2015: RMB605,869,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings and obligations under finance leases)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.
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23  Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

®

5 W 5 W itk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

23 A GE M RS ()

Capital management (continued) (f) BEARE (4)
During the year, the Group’s strategy was to AR > AR S B 2 5 W T 51 A A
maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a level fi LU SR A TR A A AR [ LB 8 5
considered reasonable by the Group’s management HRETT LR AN RERE A A B 2 KT -
from time to time with reference to the prevailing 7 HE TR R R L R A HE [ W] BB AR
market conditions. In order to maintain or adjust 1) RE 25 B R SCAS IS~ BEAT R
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of 538 4 T 655 Al o
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares or raise new debt financing.
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 N _HF—RERE—HHETZH
December 2016 and 2015 was as follows: = —H o AR F 2 SRR R
EAH R T
2016 2015
—EF A TR IAE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i 7t ANR¥ T A RIFT T
Current liabilities: it B
— Loans and borrowings — B R ER 19 1,384,150 1,699,467
— Obligations under finance — il &l & & 1T
leases 20 - 6,712
Non-current liabilities: F i B £ %

— Loans and borrowings — BRI EE 19 419,252 301,000
Total debt s AR 1,803,402 2,007,179
Add: Proposed dividends RS 23(b) - 31,518
Less: Cash and cash Bk - B R B4

equivalents HFEY 17 (443,431) (416,012)
Pledged deposits T HC R A7 2 16 (212,815) (278,141)
Adjusted net debt KRR TF A 1,147,156 1,344,544
Total equity HE 2 20 %A 1,687,920 1,419,846
Less: Proposed dividends W AR 23(b) - (31,518)
Adjusted capital SRR G 1,687,920 1,388,328
Adjusted net debt-to- RHBEFAKER

capital ratio ke % 68% 97%
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23

24

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(®

Capital management (continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
except that banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the subsidiaries’ balance
sheet ratios (Note 19). The Group will actively and

regularly monitor its compliance to such covenants.

Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
debtors are due within 60 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 5% (2015: 1%) and 16% (2015: 14%) of
the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the plain aluminium
profiles and aluminium profiles with surface

finishing segment.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in Note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 26.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade

and other receivables are set out in Note 15.
Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

&5 6 W R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )
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I PR M T 5 2 R AR B R
[ R e S N Y
SR e -GN R R
ot AR > 38 G B 3 Al 1 iR T A
BZ5% (—FE—AF1%) X16%
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I8 400 518 TR0 A 0 8 S 466 3% 1 e L i A
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ik BEF ek 26 Tl A 23 =] R Hh 2 B 4
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24

Financial risk management and fair 24
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using

<e il L B A BE e ik T H 22 A

FE

(b)

(#)
i B & R (A

RN ik AR A 4 B 2
BRI G A B RIE T4 &
IR BLBL & 0 (B AR & A
R (U iE B 45 0 o R 2 B
FRES i iD= e Il &

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates AT 2 e B A AR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2016
“ERE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHARMBBR 2R
More than 1~ More than 2
Within 1 year but years but Carrying
year or on less than less than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years Total 31 Dec
R+=A
—HEN —H K3 =+—H
BEX  HEEHN  HIER i ZIREH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARKTZ ARETZ ARKTZ ARKTZ
Loans and borrowings B RGEE 1,433,970 418,863 17572 1870405 1,803,402
Trade and other payables 25 R RE £ 50R 1,488,050 = - 1488050 1,488,050
2,922,020 418,863 17,572 3,358,455 3,291,452
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(o)

Liquidity risk (continued)

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

24 SEEPEEMEESHMTHZA
A (4)

(b) WEHELEE (4)

2015
TR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RAARMBE 2
More than 1~ More than 2
Within 1 year but years but Carrying
year or on less than less than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years Total 31 Dec
R+=A
AR —Hf [k =t-A
sk EmER ERFER st kW
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETL ARFTT ARETT ARETT ARETL
Loans and borrowings BHREE 1,780,663 185,621 133,206 2,09490 2,000,467
Obligation under finance leases ~ FETHE & 6,770 - - 6,770 6,712
Trade and other payables 25 RIS R 1,147,730 - - L4170 1147730
2,935,163 185,621 133,206 3,253,990 3,154,909

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting to
RMB1,433,970,000 were due to be repaid during
2017 (2016: RMB1,780,663,000). The short-term
liquidity risk inherent in this contractual maturity
date was not significantly changed after the

reporting period.
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from borrowings from banks. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

SN A 4y AT TR > A B T B N
[ #1,433,970,00070 2 $R 17 & 3K &
AHEARE B STy —F— LA (=
FT—754 0 NRH1,780,663,0000C)
NEN I TR ARG KB H
] A 22 e 1 9 B < L g i 4
% 3 41 F K S o

(c) MR B

AL B 2 AR R B A B ERAT A
B o H VR ) R % R [ E R R 2
0 Al A A A B ZE R A7 B T
) 23R g B A T (B ) %6 S o A 4
o] P 7 P R S AR 2 R SR AME L IR T
() °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(553 B 159151 - BAR LI R AR )

24 Financial risk management and fair 24 SREBEEASEBTARZA
values of financial instruments (continued) P (4)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) R )R B ()
1)) Interest rate profile @) VIE:¢: ¥
The following table details the interest I ER A A A A R R
rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing FhE B R SR o
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.
2016 2015
ZEFN “E-IE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
YIRS W ik 2H
000 000
i T
Fixed rate borrowings: EREHE:
Bank loans RITER 2.90%-6.80% 1,345,313 1.90% - 6.92% 1,437,217
Variable rate borrowings: FEMEHE:
Obligation under finance lease BEHEET - - 4.46% 6,712
Bank loans RITEK 4.04%-5.23% 458,089 4.75% - 7.20% 563,250
o e
Total borrowings gk 1,803,402 2,007,179
Fixed rate borrowings as a E R EEARTE AL

percentage of total borrowings 75% 2%
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB3,894,000 (2015:
RMB4,845,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2015.

5 W 5 W itk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )
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() MIREE (4)
(i) BB

RZE—ANETZH =+ —
Ho Al gt Fl R 3, F
FH100MR 5 25 > m H A fr A
BRI AN RERZ KR
B e A S R B i ) R e
b BN £ R 3,894,000
T F—HE: AR
4,845,0007C) °

Ak U M Re AR R T 2
I A% i ) K R B i A1) T e
7 R 2 BIVIRE 55 ) o B BE
BT AR % 1) 2R 52 )y i i 4 R
O as A 0 0 R E R R
AN A 3 T R A I A I
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24

Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars
(“USD”).

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date. Difference resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency is
excluded.

24

<e il L B A BE e ik T H 22 A

VAl ()
d BB

NRBEIWIETT B h i &¥ - m
N 4 T o R 2 32 o R BT T i
T2 AMFERR ] o A4 [ 32 25 A A
B H 25 % M BE 2 Th e & R DL A 2
B EZHE LHEE K2 EW
JE B o 5% JE\BR 35 B A F s T M 3R T
(r%£sa])

S 155 I B AR

R RS AR A R R AE LA
F A Bl D1 RE B LA 2 At B W
HZOREESRAEIEE 2K’
W JE B R A o i 25 H 9T R A
RS 2 SRR SR > 36D
AEAEH 2 BB ARG - ST A 36
B 8 W ok B AR B 2 5 B T
2 A A RN

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

SRR B (DAARWESR)

2016 2015

ZENE ZE-HE
HKD USD HKD UsSD
7 E 7 E
‘000 000 ‘000 ‘000
i i T T
Trade and other receivables 25 BRI R 19,992 12,905 15,409 40,056
Cash and cash equivalents e kA &S EY 32,349 83,445 31,985 37,334
Trade and other payables 7 o BOE A A 2R (20,498) (970 (14,218) (686)
Short-term loans M E - - - (260,232)

Gross and net exposure arising from EHREERA R

recognised assets and liabilities EEZRBAEREE 31,343 95,380 33,176 (183,528)
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

24 SEEPEEMEESHMTHZA
A (4)

United States Dollars ES
Hong Kong Dollars oo

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting

period for presentation purposes.

(@  BWEkE (A7)
4 188 JE A B
T AR BH R AR R R R A
R Ja\ g 7R I 2 BEE 2SR 5% H A P 5
B o 37 i ST A H: A B 5 A AR
g AR ) BRBAR Ui ) B R
i A1) AT BE B BV A ) o
2016 2015
ZERE ZE-LE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign  after tax and in foreign  after tax and
exchange rate retained profit  exchange rate  retained profit
HERH% HERE
EELA/  WHRRE  ExLAS BARRY
(TH)  EHZPE (TH)  wHzEe
000 ‘000
T T
1% 791 1% (1,561)
1% 249 1% 281

EERBIN 2 M A5 R AR A &
NEILAS A 2 TR & W R 2 BRI
1% i A 2 A wt BN 2 3l k2 51
I 9 2 3 3 R 2 B A4 58 o IR
e o
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2015.

Fair values measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values.

SHEBEEREBTHZ A
A )

(d)

(e)

£ W g ()
BB (A

R B 1 A M 8 T e 5 B A 2
DAH BT w2 S5 R i R A 4R
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25 Commitments 25 kB
(a) Capital commitments (a) G A I
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December A Z—H o R B R RN
not provided for in the financial statements were as T R B AT E AR T -
follows:
2016 2015
ZEN e S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T ANR¥ T
Contracted for S
— Purchase of property, plant and ~ — & B AR T 2
equipment for the production A 7 L B
base in Chengdu City ERY & ] 4,268 458
— Purchase of property, plant and — 2 H A& &2
equipment for the production 2 7 A b i
base in Yichun City L ERY: & ] 8,501 2,042
— Purchase of property, plant and — — & f# 11 T = 7K [ 2
equipment for the production A 7 L B
base in Sanshui, Foshan City ERY & ] 25,869 18,758
— Purchase of property, plant and ~ — %% ¥ 5 17 2 2E /2 Jk b
equipment for the production W 2E - W T
base in Qinyang City s 284 8,572
— Building an integrated — AL T R R B AR A
commercial and residential HEKTETWE
property base in Nanzhuang,
Foshan City 209,689 284,754
248,611 314,584
Authorised but not contracted for X H#E{H KT 86,033 88,769
Total Hwt 334,644 403,353
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25 Commitments (continued) 25 R (w)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) £ 2 F A R i
The group leases out investment property and a AL E AR LA E WA E ¥
number of items of machinery under operating B TR IEH o
leases.
At 31 December, the total future minimum lease Wt H=+—H > WA ] el
payments under non-cancellable operating leases 67 FH 4 R AT 1) A% 2 S IR 4 A
are payable as follows: s
2016 2015
ZE A e e T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TT ANRWET T
Within 1 year —AEN 2,256 985
After 1 year but within 5 years —AEEERAFEN 6,872 -
Over 5 years i AR 7,433 -
16,561 985
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 &g — M2 & 12 104F > WA
to 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after REE IR 45T R T A e g &
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. B 1 o A 4 AT 3O H & g = A
Lease payments are usually increased every three s DA R Bl T 355 A 4 7K P o 4% JH AR
years to reflect market rentals. None of the leases YA E R & -
includes contingent rentals.
26 Contingent liabilities 26 HAAM

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

hFE-RNFEF A= H AEE
EASRRAM (ZF 4 ;) -
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Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the
following individuals/companies:

Name of related parties

B 3y 4 1

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

HOK BT R 5

B 5% 55 B 5 k3R L Atb 3 4 BT 4 B 19 32 5
Lo s A > A S BAEAT DA T BEOK B 7 52
5

BIE % T = B
E R A AT AL 2 A S
s

Relationship with the Group
SiL A 42 1 A 4%

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating™)
(1L Sz B R BR A 7 (1)
1l 57 B R A BRA ] (TSLBERL ) )
Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall™) (J5 3B % #5505 M % A R 2 7)) ()
A SR B R A BR A B (T BB ARG ) (@)
Guangxi Laibin Yinhai Alumium Co., Ltd. (“LBYH”)
(R TG 2 R 8 B I 3 A PR WD) (d)

Ji T A B SR 8 A R A R R (AR SR L) (i)

Jiangxi Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

(“Jiangxi Jingxing™) (VL V4 ¥ 5% B $ia AR S A PR 7)) (3)

VLV 7 5 B BAR BOE AT BR A ] (TVLPE S8 ) ()

i) The English translation of the company names
is for reference only. The official names of these

companies are in Chinese.

Effectively owned by certain executive
directors of the Company

MARFE T ERTEREA

Effectively owned by certain executive
directors of the Company

MAR A T EREREA

Joint venture of a substantial shareholder
of the Group, Guangdong Province,
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.

A AR R SR TR SR T A
ARAFIZ BB

Associate of the Group
A B ) 2 Wt N

() EHEAFMECGREAEMSRE F
S50 A Y R 304 R 2 TR K4 R o
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27 Material related party transactions 27 BRBHETTRY (4)
(continued)
(a) Transactions (a) 5
Sales and purchase HE
2016 2015
Z“E A e e TG
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Tx N R HF T
Sales of goods to HEE T
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB s 176,997
— Jiangxi Jingxing — L7V 5o B 14,867
191,864
Purchases of raw materials from & JF# K A
— Leahin Coating — 57 L R -
- LBYH —RE W 16,326
16,326
Dormitory rent T & Fl 4
— Jiangxi Jingxing —YL7E 5B 1,901
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27 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following balances with related parties:

5 W 5 W itk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R W9 7 )

27 WARBEHTRY (4)

(b)

S I3 32 5 WY 4 B

A S A A > A A [ BEL [ 3 O A 4
i r

@) Trade and other receivables @) X 55 Je KAl JE W 5k T
2016 2015
—F-AN TR R4
RMB’000 RMB’000
N R Fix AR ¥ET T

Trade related B 5 A B

Xingfa Curtain Wall % 5 30,562 33,075
Jiangxi Jingxing VLY S5 B 48,133 25,597
78,695 58,672

(ii) Trade and other payables

i) K5 K H M IH

2016 2015
SR AN —E A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN R¥ T AR T

Trade related B 7 A A
Leahin Coating DAL g 31 137
LBYH A R it 207 3,807
238 3,944

The amounts due from/(to) related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

HE Wk, (RE A ) B 2t 7 3K A
2y A A - G S HL A E R
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27 Material related party transactions 27 WRBHEGTRY 4#)
(continued)
(c) Key management personnel compensation (¢) FHEERANEME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEAEMANR WM& (EIEMETX
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors Bt 5843 7l BT % % S A T A AR [
as disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management FREBERANBNEE) W -

as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

2016 2015
—F-AN S
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR F i AR ¥ET T
Short-term employee benefits 5B B AR A 30,332 24,080
Contribution to retirement benefit 2 A4 | 51 1 {1k 3
plan 235 229
30,567 24,309
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” Mo st AT B L A&
(Note 5(b)). (Htit5m)) -
(d)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (d)y b A )k I B AR B = A T
connected transactions
The related party transactions of sales and bl 2 BN LSS G R
purchase above constitute connected transactions Wik 5 28 o BT A B2 ) 25 b Tl R )
or continuing connected transactions as defined in (M BT RRN) S 14A% B e 2 B
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of AT s R A B 2E g o BT R
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong S 14ATE KB 2 45 1 i 3 i A AR SR
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures FEREGWEZ FFERESRY | —

required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules i -
are provided in the section headed “Continuing
connected transactions” of the Reports of the

Directors of this annual report.
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of financial 28 A W] JE T B OIR DL %

2016 2015
—F A e S g2
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR EF AR ¥Fic

Non-current asset I B A
Investments in subsidiaries PHE AR 2 B E 12 620,901 581,544

Current assets i B & A
Amount due from a subsidiary JARE Wi — ] B JE A ) I 49,305 60,885
Cash and cash equivalents B4 I B4 S 18 2,687 7,564
51,992 68,449
Current liabilities i B A

Amount due to a subsidiary JREAS — [ B Jogg 2> ] 3 I 42,883 31,768
Other payables L A AT 35 T 5,192 8,625
48,075 40,393
Net current assets i B & R A 3,917 28,056
Total assets less current liabilities 48 & /% I ifi B £ {4 624,818 609,600
Net assets I 624,818 609,600

Capital and reserves JB A B £ A
Share capital e A 3,731 3,731
Reserves Tl fhd 621,087 605,869
Total equity HE #5 A 624,818 609,600
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29

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a few of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

29

RBEEZF-AHF+_H=1+—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 H R A= 2% B fis
al > B R R R A T AE S

O S B R A T B B R R
K Z B G OB IS HRBE - F
=N T = B AR R A
BT B B JU) > i % S5 B 5 R 2 S 0 R A
% S5 A HT BORHE ) LA TR 51 AT g B AR 4R
A B Y A T L Y L

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
T H Bk %

bl 4 Y €7 5 30 ) AR R

Amendments to IFRS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

W B 05 it e ISR TSR < B RT > B i A - W EE B

Amendments to IFRS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses

V% S 5 S o Y ) BB 12858 2 AB T B 77 B < B K 5 B s 18 T 8 AR A B A B

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

W o 5 A e BN SR 9% > 2l T A

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

PR B 5 i R RN SR 1S E - B S A A 2 Wk

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions

W B 55 e o5 B S S5 2558 B RT - LU 45 FEBE T 1T 5K - LUR 07 13 ZERE 1 309 58 55
Wy MR 7t 8

IFRS 16, Leases
2] [ S 75 i B BN A 165K - TH &

1 January 2017
—ZF—t#H—-H—H

1 January 2017

—E—tHF—-H—H

1 January 2018
—ZF—/N\FE—~H—H

1 January 2018
SENFEH A

1 January 2018

—FE - NF—H—H

1 January 2019
“FAFA A
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, further impacts may be identified
in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which
transitional approach to take, where there are alternative

approaches allowed under the new standards.
IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, IAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets, calculation of impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, IFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of IAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
financial statements are as follows:

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

RBEZF-AF+_H=1—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 1H R A= 2% B i
al > B R Rk R T AE S

(#4)

AR B IEAE AT AN % 55 B AT AR I UOHE T A0
] T 2 R 2 o A SR A2 5 Ty 1k 2 O B
R B AT AR AR S IS R A O
2T o R B 2 R e
U7 o R P AR SR T 0 OR SE LRE A 3 — 2
5B T 0 B A T o SIS TR E A R
S HBLE HE 20CH IR A BR AR AT ] 5% 45 b
5 B AR A8 T R HE BN A B A D5 3 W] R R
A e A0 0 3k IR O R R A R

I o S 5 i ot o TSRO - Ak TR

I % S 5 o U S5 0 B BOAC A B <
T Egr 5 By ik 00 B A E R B B e
HIZ539%5% > Sl T H : ARl L at & o BRI
5 4 e A BE 95 5 A 2 B Kt B el
T ~ O 4B L R (L B b R
SE o 73— J7 T > [ ¢ A 5 A A B B 9 B Ak
N LS 0 A W A Bl o i YA B SR 39 B A
IR Tt 0 o A 1L e < T L e < £
FHBHLSE o 0 A A 4R B T 5 R R I
BT
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29

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified
as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal

will be recognised in profit or loss.

For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be
recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive income

without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with
their respective classification and measurements
upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

29

RBEEZF-AHF+_H=1+—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 H R A= 2% B fis
al > B R R R A T AE S

(#1)
I o S 5 o R USROS - Rk TR (A7)
(a) ABEit &

I 5% B 5 o 1) 5 0% 60 355 < il
R AR B ()i
AR > (AT EFI AR (%
PN FF AR S K3 A T EF
AH A2l as (3% A FEFA K
f ATl g ) FHEIE

. R T L0 20 U 5L A B
BB 4 A Y S R
% B W #B 4 R B T
e S o A AR BF TR0 JH I 1%
PR FEACH A A T i ik 7
B JUED BORE AR B R S
B i, 1R I 1R 4R T e

it ©

. A R IR 10 5 - A
BRIl ol S5 A6 5K 0 T
B EFT AR A AT & ME
A 7 75300 FF 5 R R G
A TR [ 28R AR A E %
Ry R /A S R N N 1
T Wi g w5 A o ik e A
i R AR A B i A PR A
FC Al 2 T S 5 W o R X
i 25 F) JBE RSO A B 4 A
e 8 o 5% bt 7% B WL 4R~ s 1R
e 3 (B T L Al 4 T W 45 A0
fife 58 HL AN AT 8¢ [m] o

ARG 25 AT » A o D PR LA
0 RS B 452 P AR 3
1 4 6 R R A0 8 T
e 0 1 S50 75 48 L 5 1 00 2
Foiti
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Possible impact of amendments, new 29 REE_ZR-AEF_H=4—
standards and interpretations issued but H 1k 47 58 A8 i AR A 3% fi
not yet effective for the year ended 31 )~ T A R R R A T A Y B

December 2016 (continued) (#)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

I o S 5 o R R SR OB - Rk TR (A7)

(a) Classification and measurement (continued) (a) SER G ()
The classification and measurement requirements % o 5 i 45 Y6 F) 25 058 A B <
for financial liabilities under IFRS 9 are largely BRI 0 S0 I T R B PR e R T
unchanged from IAS 39, except that IFRS 9 WE ) 55 39 5% AH 100 KL A AR 155 R 5 5 M
requires the fair value change of a financial liability P B 5 i £ Y R 25 0 9% B A2 I 4
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes FE By AR AR AR a2 71 R 0 45 Rl
of that financial liability’s own credit risk to be A EAE B R A 5 N A B T
recognised in other comprehensive income (without S T8 140 90 70 T 77 JF Al 22 T A 4 A i
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group BAANFEH P EIELR) - AEH
currently does not have any financial liabilities BLIREIG AT AA] 458 72 2 45 AP FEA
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new B4 w4 R R RO SR AR
requirement may not have any impact on the Group I % o 75 o A RIS O S IF > B2 L
on adoption of IFRS 9. FE N 3t A A 1)l AT o] g 2

(b)  Impairment (b)  WfH

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in TAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the expected
credit loss model, it will no longer be necessary
for a loss event to occur before an impairment
loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure expected credit losses as
either 12- month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. This new impairment
model may result in an earlier recognition of credit
losses on the Group’s trade receivables and other

financial assets.

However, a more detailed analysis is required to
determine the extent of the impact.

Pk B 5 s ¥4 F 25 9 5% 14 B el (L
B LL T £ & 18 B U
B g Gt e I 2E305R IH Ty [ 2 &
P g 1R A K AR R TR (R £ 1R
B2 B P 7 84 i 4R o 1 O
w8 (B s 1H o A S B ZE IR R
FE DA M 2 5 15 DL e R R TE
o BEl 18 2% 124/ A TEI (5 B H 51
AR TR B R 18 < S 8 (A KT
REAE B FL A 42 T B ) B AUk OR
PEREA 3 AR 3T

SR > 475 75 6w &0 B 20 AT DA i 5 5
BWFEIL -
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29

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue
from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting IFRS 15 on its financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which are likely
to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 1(q). Currently, revenue arising
from the provision of services is recognised over
time, whereas revenue from the sale of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. IFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(a) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(b) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

RBEEZF-AHF+_H=1+—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 H R A= 2% B fis
al > B R R R A T AE S

(#1)

B 5 e RSB 1SSE  RE B P AR
W 4k

I8 ¢ S 5 o v )2 15%?@1?6%%’35{6 A
5 6 B9 Y 2 T AE B2 o (o B B R

EEU%I%F%EMHE%W@ FURRC IS
wal e RS89 - Wi (IR EIE B &
F A3 P s i A A WA ) % B R v
St @A A (RIS Al a1
B FE R B k) o A SR BIE BT A BR A 1
I P 755 e o A 555 1 5 508 3B L BB S R 1
B o ARPRA) AP WAL > A S E Ak LR AT
RE 32 5 B0 J5 1A

(a) W at w09 R

S T ) A i e R TR 48 A A B
1(q) ° BT » $HEARTS BT 15 i 4 4% 1RF
MR - T 6 5 1) T A i A 2 R
T T R SR B S ) R RS TR IR
TR o

AR 2 % T B A RS 15 % > i
i 5 5 RS S A B R B ) B
5 B 42 1 HEE B ke 5 o D R I S
W 159RHEE T LT EURGE B Y)
AR s 119 4 i A 2y I ] RS 1)
= RE YL

(a) H T E A R [R] R
S Ko A B B8 R A0 T B Y
) 25 1 5

(b) R A B R e 0 — IE
A E B A R o IR
HEPEHIR G E (T
) s
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

@

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

(c) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
IFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining

when the transfer of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-
reward approach to the contract-by-contract
transfer-of-control approach, it is possible that
once the Group adopts IFRS 15 some of the
Group’s contract manufacturing and residential
property development activities that are currently
recognised at a point in time may meet the IFRS
15 criteria for revenue recognition over time. This
will depend on the terms of the sales contract and
the enforceability of any specific performance
clauses in that contract, which may vary depending
on the jurisdiction in which the contract would be
enforced. It is also possible that for the remainder
of the Group’s contracts the point in time when
revenue is recognised may be earlier or later than
under the current accounting policy. However,
further analysis is required to determine whether
this change in accounting policy may have a
material impact on the amounts reported in any

given financial reporting period.

f 5 A it wE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LI R WS 7 )

RBEZF-AF+_H=1—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 1H R A= 2% B i
al > B R Rk R T AE S

(#4)

B B 5 e RSB 1SSE  RE B P AR

Wtk (A4F)
(a) Wt i ng R ()

(c)  HECHE BN R AN A
s RSB EE
HZ BRI 558 N B4
FEHCRA AT BUAT HE R By

il A9 ek K B R T B A AT
A7 5% 55 = M D > AR 482 R 5 B
ot e SR 155E TN — 8
B 1] B (B £ ol B A% I ) A 4
By S S e R M A o T A B
T Ve e e R A8 T TR R 42 1 HE
o 8% 2 Wy 1% 25 8 A HL b — THAE A

PR 0 BB B [ ik 325 1) 4% - 40 R
A2 MR R A > S bR T B R
B it e RIS 1S RAR > AN SR 1 H AT
e — iy I 2 b e R e g
B AEEY) SR RIE B A A > T RE
AR A R 5 o S o T U5 1 S RO A
e T — B Ry [H] IR0 R R R < 75 1
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AT T L 8B 4 3K AT AT R UL
ARG I 5 AT B R B RS
AN IR T AL o 3B A A 42 B A Y H
BRI > WO e R B T B S ] RE
MRIEBUA € BRI ] B 52 i
HEAE - SR > 18 2 A B Wt BUR 2
5 2 5 3 A ] R 5 o S i A 0 T
TAY REE ¢ F) < S A R AT ZL A
i — A o
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Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

RBEEZF-AHF+_H=1+—
H 1k 4F J5 O 8 4 H R A= 2% B fis
al > B R R R A T AE S

(#1)

B 5 e RSB 1SSE  RE B P AR
Wt (A7)

(b)

Signiticant financing component

IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance or in arrears.
Currently, the Group would only apply such a
policy when payments are significantly deferred,
which is currently not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers. Currently, the
Group does not apply such a policy when payments
are received in advance.

Advance payments are not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers, with the exception
of when residential properties are marketed by the
Group while the property is still under construction.
In this situation, the Group may offer buyers a
discount compared to the sales price payable,
provided the buyer agrees to pay the balance of the
purchase price early.

Currently, the revenue from property sales is
recognised when the property is complete,
measured at the amount received from the
customer, irrespective of whether the customer
pays early or on completion. However, under IFRS
15 such advance payment schemes are likely to be
regarded as including a financing component.

(b)
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B B 5 e RSB 1SSE  RE B P AR

W sk (4E)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Significant financing component (continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing whether
this component in the Group’s advance payment
schemes would be significant to the contract
and therefore whether, once IFRS 15 is adopted,
the transaction price would need to be adjusted
for the purposes of recognising revenue. Any
adjustment to the transaction price under IFRS 15,
if considered necessary, would result in interest
expense being recognised while the construction
work is still in progress to reflect the effect of the
financing benefit obtained from the customers,
with a corresponding increase to revenue on sale
of properties recognised when control of the

completed property is transferred to the customer.
Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the Group estimates the level of
returns and makes an adjustment against revenue

and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 15
will not materially affect how the Group recognises
revenue and cost of sales when the customers have
a right of return. However, the new requirement to
recognise separately a return asset for the products
expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of

recognising a separate asset.

(b)

(c)
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into

some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is adopted, lessees
will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a
lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply
this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

29
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application
of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on
the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed
in note 25(b), at 31 December 2016 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB16,561,000 for properties, the
majority of which is payable either between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date or in more than 5 years. Some of
these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as
lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once IFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of
new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of IFRS 16, after taking into
account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt IFRS 16
before its effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early
adoption of IFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier
than the adoption of IFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that
IFRS 16 will be adopted before the effective date of IFRS
15, being 1 January 2018.

f 5 A it wE
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T AF 2

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“ER-NE CFZ-nE SF-NE SF-=F SF-F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANRBFL ARBEFLZ ARETFT ARFTFL ARBFTIL
Assets and liabilities BEEKAM
Property, plant & equipment ESY T 1,794,185 1,905,468 1,882,739 1,832,942 1,560,832
Non-current financial assets ERBESMER = - - 11,912 11,912
Lease prepayments S 294,461 301,494 308,527 363,274 371,616
Interest in an associate TR W A O RE 45 9,515 1,416 941 - -
Prepayment for machinery 2 AT FOH = - - - 11,001
Deferred tax assets EERIAE 42,562 41,465 39,654 20,995 27,745
Net current financial WE AR (A GRS
(liabilities)/assets 17,392 (468,538) (698,489) (663,809) (460,219)
Total assets less current liabilities 42 ¥ 7 il i B) & f& 2,158,115 1,781,305 1,533,372 1,565,314 1,522,887
Non-current liabilities FE AR (470,195) (361,459) (349,411) (589,570) (660,516)
Net assets B A 1,687,920 1,419,846 1,183,961 975,744 862,371
Capital and reserves e A il 6
Share capital e A 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731
Reserves Tl 1,684,189 1,416,115 1,180,230 972,013 858,640
Total equity attributable to AR RHERE A
equity holders of A B 5 4 40
the Company 1,687,920 1,419,846 1,183,961 975,744 862,371
Operating results REka
Revenue EEX 5,576,696 4,977,829 4843915 3,907,457 3,546,566
Profit before taxation W B0 i i 351,291 320,660 269,259 168,892 109,696
Income tax expenses PR BB 3 (52,815) (54,893) (44,653) (38,292) (23,136)
Profit for the year A JE B 298,476 265,767 224,606 130,600 86,560
Attributable to equity holders i J& Jit A4 2 W B HEF5 A
of the Company 298,476 265,767 224,606 130,600 86,560
Basic and diluted earnings T 2 A I
per share (RMB yuan) (ANEHT) 0.71 0.64 0.54 0.31 0.21

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

b AR NI O R A R AR A M B R 2 —
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